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EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *
June 2005

This Binder contains the following sets of regulations:

A. Texas Administrative Code, (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001.

B. Texas Administrative Code, (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2000, as amended, effective
through December 31, 1999.

C. Texas Administrative Code, (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 1997, as amended, effective
through January 1, 1997.

D. Texas Administrative Code, (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 1994, as amended, effective
through January 1, 1994.

Please note the following:

@ The 2002 TAC, Title 30 is the most recent version of the Texas authorized hazardous waste
regulations. For a few provisions, the authorized version is found in the TAC, Title 30,
Environmental Quality dated January 1, 1994, January 1, 1997, or December 31, 1999. Texas
made subsequent changes to these provisions but these changes have not been authorized by
EPA. The provisions from earlier sets of regulations are noted in the table below.

2 Certain provisions found in the official regulations in this Binder include amendments that are not
approved by EPA. Such unauthorized amendments are not part of the State's authorized program
and are, therefore, not Federally enforceable. EPA will enforce the State regulations that are
actually authorized by EPA. In the Table below, provisions with unauthorized amendments are
presented in italics. The actual State regulatory text authorized by EPA (i.e., without the
unauthorized amendments) is available as a separate document, Addendum to the EPA-Approved
Texas Regulatory Requirements Applicable to the Hazardous Waste Management Program, June
2005. This document is available from EPA Region 6, EPA Region 6 Library, 12" Floor, 1445
Ross Avenue, Suite 1200, Dallas, Texas 75202, Phone number: (214) 665-6444.

Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified
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State Citation | Description | Page
CHAPTER 20: RULEMAKING
20.15 | Petition for adoption of rules. | 61
Page 1 of 18

*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.




EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *
June 2005

Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation | Description | Page

CHAPTER 35: EMERGENCY AND TEMPORARY ORDERS AND PERMITS: TEMPORARY
SUSPENSION OR AMENDMENT OF PERMIT CONDITIONS

35.402(e) | Public notice and emergency orders | 111
CHAPTER 39: PUBLIC NOTICE

39.5(9) General Provisions. 246

39.11 Text of Public Notice. 247

39.103(a)(2), (b), (d)(4), and Application for Industrial or Hazardous Waste

(9) Facility Permit 250-252

39.405(f)(1) General Notice Provisions. 262-263

39.411 (except (b)(4)(B), Text of Public Notice.

(b)(10), (11), and (13)) 263-265

39.503(d) Application for Hazardous Waste Facility Permit. 270

CHAPTER 55: REQUESTS FOR RECONSIDERATION AND CONTESTED CASE HEARINGS;
PUBLIC COMMENT

55.25(b)(1) - (3) Public Comment Processing. 299
55.152(b) Public Comment Period. 304
55.154 Public Meetings. 304
55.156(b)(1) Public Comment Processing. 304

CHAPTER 281: APPLICATIONS PROCESSING

SUBCHAPTER A - APPLICATION PROCESSING

281.3(c) Application processing. 1174

CHAPTER 305: CONSOLIDATED PERMITS

SUBCHAPTER A - GENERAL PROVISIONS

305.1(a) (except the Scope and Applicability.
reference to Chapter 401,
relative to Radioactive

Materials) 1661-1662

305.2 (except the reference Definitions.
to Chapter 401, relative to

Radioactive Materials in the
introductory paragraph and
the redlined definitions) 1662-1665

SUBCHAPTER B - EMERGENCY ORDERS, TEMPORARY ORDERS, AND EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR AUTHORIZATIONS
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*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.
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APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *
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Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation Description | Page
305.29(a) Emergency Orders.
(January 1, 1997) See page 1310 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
authorized provision.
305.30 Emergency Actions Concerning Hazardous
Waste. 1666

SUBCHAPTER C - APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

305.41 (except the reference | Applicability.
to Chapter 401, relative to

Radioactive Materials) 1666
305.42(a), (b), and (d) Permit application requirements. 1666-1667
305.43(b) Applicant requirements. 1667
305.44, except (d) Signatories for applications. 1667
305.45(a) (except (a)(7)(1) Contents of Application for Permit

and the phrase "8305.54 of
this title. . .Content of
Applications),” in

305.45(a)(8)(C)) 1668-1669
305.45(b) Contents of Application for Permit 1669
305.47 Retention of application data. 1669
305.50 introductory Additional requirements for a hazardous or
paragraph through (3) industrial solid waste permit application.
(except the last two
sentences in 305.50(2)) 1670-1671
305.50(4)(B) — (D) Additional permit information requirements.
(January 1, 1994) See page 973 - 974 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1994 for the
authorized provision.
305.50(4)(G), Additional requirements for a hazardous or
industrial solid waste permit application. 1672-1673
305.50(5) — (8), (13) and (14) | Additional requirements for a hazardous or
industrial solid waste permit application. 1673 & 1675
305.51 Revision of Applications for Hazardous Waste
Permits. 1675-1676

SUBCHAPTER D - AMENDMENTS, MODIFICATIONS, RENEWALS, TRANSFERS,
CORRECTIONS, REVOCATION, AND SUSPENSION OF PERMITS

Page 3 of 18
*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.
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EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *

June 2005

Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective

through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation

Description

Page

305.61

Applicability for subchapter.

1678

305.62(a) (except the phrase
in the first sentence “305.70
of this title...Solid Waste
Class | Modifications” and the
phrase in the fifth sentence “If
the permittee requests a
modification of a municipal
solid waste permit...8305.70
of this title”.)

Causes for amendment.

1678

305.62(b)

Application for amendment.

1678

305.62(c)

(January 1, 1997)

Causes for amendment.

See page 1324 - 1325 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for

the authorized provision.

305.62(d) (except (d)(6)),
305.62(e)-(h)

Application for amendment.

1679-1680

305.63(a) introductory
paragraph (except first
sentence)

Renewal of permits.

1680

305.63 (a)(1), (2), (3) (except
the last sentence), (4)-(6)

Renewal of permits.

1680

305.64(a), 305.64(b) (except
(b)(4) and (b)(5)), 305.64(c)
and (e)

Transfer of Permits

1680-1681

305.64(g)

(December 31, 1999)

Permittee responsibility.

See page 1503 of 30 TAC, as amended December 31, 1999 for the

authorized provision.

305.66(a) (except (a)(7)-(9)), Permit denial, suspension, and revocation.
305.66(d) 1682-1683
305.67 (except (c)) Revocation and suspension upon request or
consent. 1684
Page 4 of 18

*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.
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Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation

Description

Page

305.69(a) — (h)

(January 1, 1997)

Solid waste permit modifications at the request of the permittee.

See page 1330 - 1335 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for

the authorized provision.

305.69(i) — (k) (except (k) A.8
— A.10)

“Military hazardous waste munitions storage,
processing, and disposal” and “Appendix I".

1690-1701

SUBCHAPTER F - PERMIT CHARACTERISTICS AND CONDITIONS

305.121 (except the phrase
“radioactive material
disposal”)

Applicability for subchapter

1708

305.122 (a)-(c)

Characteristics of permits.

1708-1709

305.124

Acceptance of Permit.

1709

305.125 (except (1), (3), the
last two sentences in (5), (6),
(9)(C), the phrase “as
otherwise required by
Chapter 336 of this title”
relative to Radioactive
Substances in (11)(B), (20),
and (22))

Permittee responsibilities.

1709-1711

305.125(6)

(January 1, 1997)

Standard permit conditions.

See page 1355 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the

authorized provision.

305.127 introductory
paragraph, (1)(B)(ii)), (1)(E),
(D)(F), (2), (3)(A) (except the
last two sentences), (3)(B),
(3)(C), (4)(B), and (5)(C)

Conditions to be determined for Individual
Permits.

1712-1714

305.128

Signatories to Reports.

1714

SUBCHAPTER G - ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS FOR HAZARDOUS AND INDUSTRIAL SOLID
WASTE STORAGE, PROCESSING, OR DISPOSAL PERMITS

305.141 through 305.145

"Applicability" through "Release or Discharge of
Solid Waste".

1715-1716

Page 5 of 18

*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company

620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.
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Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation Description | Page
305.146 introductory Reporting.
paragraph and (1)
(January 1, 1997) See page 1361 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
authorized provision.
305.150 Incorporation by Reference of 40 CFR 260.11
through May 14, 1999. 1718
SUBCHAPTER | - HAZARDOUS WASTE INCINERATOR PERMITS
305.171 through 305.175 “Determining Operational Readiness” through
“Conditional exemption for demonstrating
compliance with certain Air Standards”. 1721-1724

SUBCHAPTER J - PERMITS FOR LAND TREATMENT DEMONSTRATIONS USING FIELD TESTS
OR LABORATORY ANALYSES

305.181 through 305.184 | Permitting requirements. | 1724-1725
SUBCHAPTER K - RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT, AND DEMONSTRATION PERMITS
305.191 through 305.194 | Applicability; waiver; termination and renewal. | 1725-1726
SUBCHAPTER L - GROUNDWATER COMPLIANCE PLAN
305.401(c) | Investigation report. | 1726
SUBCHAPTER Q - PERMITS FOR BOILERS AND INDUSTRIAL FURNACES BURNING
HAZARDOUS WASTE
305.571 through 305.573 "Applicability" through "Prior approval of trial burn

plan by the Director". 1738-1739

CHAPTER 324: USED OIL
SUBCHAPTER A - USED OIL RECYCLING

324.1 Federal Rule Adoption by Reference 2085
324.2 introductory paragraph | Definitions.

—(6) 2085
324.2 “Secondary Definitions Note these definitions are numbered 324.2(7) — (9) in the
containment”, “Sufficiently December 31, 2001 30 TAC.

impervious to used oil”, and

“Synthetic oils”. See page 1697 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the

authorized provisions.
(January 1, 1997)

324.3 Applicability |  2085-2086
324.4 Prohibitions.
(January 1, 1997) See pages 1697-1698 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for

the authorized provision.
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*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.
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Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation Description Page
324.6 Generators. 2086
324.7 Collection centers.
(January 1, 1997) See page 1698 - 1699 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for
the authorized provision.
324.11 through 324.14 “Transporters and Transfer Facilities” through
“Marketers of Used QOil Fuel”. 2087-2088
324.15 Spills.
See page 1703 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
(January 1, 1997) authorized provision.
324.16 Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) | 2088
324.21 Suspension or revocation of registration.
(January 1, 1997) See page 1704 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the

authorized provision.

CHAPTER 335: INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE AND MUNICIPAL HAZARDOUS WASTE

SUBCHAPTER A - INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE AND MUNICIPAL HAZARDOUS WASTE IN

GENERAL

335.1 (except redlined Definitions. 2593-2609
definitions and phrases)

335.1(113) Definitions “Remediation waste”. Note this provision is located at

335.1(119) “Remediation waste” in the December 31, 2001 30 TAC.
(December 31, 1999)
See page 2562 of 30 TAC, as amended December 31, 1999 for the
authorized provision.

335.2(a) and (c) Permit requirements.
(See 335.2(c), effective 335.2(c) includes amendments not authorized by
11/7/91 in the Addendum to EPA.
the EPA Binder) See pages 2 and 3 of the Addendum to the EPA
Binder (335.2(c) effective 11/7/91) for the wording
of the authorized version of this provision. 2609-2610
335.2(d) Permit requirements.
(January 1, 1997) See page 2379 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the

authorized provision.
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*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.
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EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *

June 2005

Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective

through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation Description Page

335.2(e)-(9) Permit requirements for existing facilities,

industrial solid waste facilities, conditionally-

exempt small quantity generators, storage

facilities, hazardous waste industrial waste or

municipal hazardous waste facilities. 2610
335.2(i), (j), and (1) Permits required during active life; post-closure

permit requirements; HSWA requirements. 2611
335.4 General prohibitions. 2612
3355 Deed recordation of waste disposal. 2612
335.6(a) Notification requirements.
(See 335.6(a), effective 335.6(a) includes amendments not authorized by
7/29/92 in the Addendum to EPA.
the EPA Binder) See pages 3 of the Addendum to the EPA Binder

(335.6(a) effective 7/29/92) for the wording of the

authorized version of this provision. 2612-2613

335.6(h)

(January 1, 1997)

See page 2381 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the

authorized provision.

335.6(c)

(See 335.6(c) introductory
paragraph, effective 7/29/92
in the Addendum to the EPA
Binder)

Notification requirements.

335.6(c) introductory paragraph includes
amendments not authorized by EPA.

See pages 3 and 4 of the Addendum to the EPA
Binder (335.6 (c)introductory paragraph, effective
7/29/92) for the wording of the authorized version
of this provision.

2613

335.6(d) (except last
sentence) and (e)
(January 1, 1994)

Notification requirements for generators.

See page 1856 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1994 for the

authorized provision.

335.6(1)-())

(See 335.6(g), effective
7/29/92 in the Addendum to
the EPA Binder)

Notification requirements.

335.6(g) includes amendments not authorized by
EPA.

See page 4 of the Addendum to the EPA Binder
(335.6(qg) effective 7/29/92) for the wording of the
authorized version of this provision.

2614

Page 8 of 18

*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.
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Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation Description | Page

335.7 Bond or other financial assurance required.

(December 31, 1999) See pages 2575-2576 of 30 TAC, as amended December 31, 1999
for the authorized provision.

335.8(a)(1) and (2) Closure and post-closure requirements. 2615

335.9(a)(except (a)(2) and Recordkeeping and annual reporting procedures

3) applicable to generators. 2617-2618

335.9(a)(2)-(3) Annual reporting procedures applicable to generators.

(January 1, 1997) See page 2386-2387 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for
the authorized provision.

335.9(b) Generator who ships waste off-site must comply with reporting

requirements.

(January 1, 1994) See page 1861 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1994 for the
authorized provision.
335.10(a) introductory Exceptions to shipment of hazardous or Class | waste.

paragraph - (a)(1)

(January 1, 1994) See page 1861 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1994 for the
authorized provision.
335.10(a)(3) (except the Shipment of waste by a generator.

phrase “, unless the
generator is identified in
paragraph (2) of this
section”); 335.10(a)(4) and
(a)(6) 2619

335.10(b) (except Information requirements for manifest.
335.10(b)(5), (8), and (18))

(See 335.10(b)(22), effective | 335.10(b)(22) includes amendments not

7/27/88 in the Addendum to authorized by EPA.

the EPA Binder) See pages 4 of the Addendum to the EPA Binder
(335.10(b)(22) effective 7/27/88) for the wording of
the authorized version of this provision. 2619-2620
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*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
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Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

authorized provision.

State Citation Description | Page
335.10(b)(5), (8), and (18) Manifest requirements.
(January 1, 1994) See page 1862 - 1863 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1994 for
the authorized provision.
335.10(c) (except the phrase | Manifest requirements.
"the United States customs
official,") 2620
I 335.10(d)-(f) Additional generator manifest requirements. 2620-2621
z 335.11 (except (d)) Shipping requirements for transporters. 2621-2623
m 335.12 (except 335.12(a)(5) Shipping requirements applicable to owners or
and (d)) operators of storage, processing or disposal
z facilities. 2623-2624
: 335.13(a) Generator or primary exporter shall retain a copy of each manifest.
(January 1, 1997) See page 2393 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
U authorized provision.
o 335.13(c) and (d) Recordkeeping and reporting by generators of greater than 1,000
kilograms of hazardous waste.
(January 1, 1994) See page 1867 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1994 for the
m authorized provision.
> 335.13(e) and (f) Additional recordkeeping requirements.
(= (January 1, 1997) See page 2394 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
authorized provision.
: 335.13(g) Additional recordkeeping and reporting requirements applicable to
u. generators.
u (January 1, 1994) See page 1868 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1994 for the
authorized provision.
q 335.14 Recordkeeping requirements applicable to
transporters of hazardous or Class | waste 2626
¢ 335.15 introductory Recordkeeping and reporting requirements applicable to owners or
n paragraph operators of storage, processing or disposal facilities.
m (January 1, 1994) See page 1868 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1994 for the

Page 10 of 18
*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.




EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *

June 2005

Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective

through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation Description Page

335.15(1) Recordkeeping requirements for owners and

operators. 2626
335.17(a) introductory Special definitions for recyclable materials and
paragraph — (a)(12) nonhazardous recyclable materials. 2627-2628
335.18 (except 335.18(b)) Variances from classification as a solid waste. 2628-2629
335.19 (except 335.19(d)) Standards and criteria for variances. 2629
335.20 through 335.22 Variance to be classified as a boiler; procedures

for variances; additional regulations on case-by-

case basis. 2630-2631
335.23 (except 335.23(2)) Procedures for case-by-case regulation. 2631

335.23(2)

(January 1, 1994)

Notice requirements storing recyclable materials

authorized provision.

See page 1873 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1994 for the

u 335.24(a)-(f) Requirements for recyclable and nonhazardous
o recyclable materials.

(See 335.24(b) introductory 335.24(b) introductory paragraph and (c)
a paragraph and (c) introductory paragraph includes amendments not

introductory paragraph, authorized by EPA.
m effective 3/1/96, in the See page 5 of the Addendum to the EPA Binder

Addendum to the EPA (335.24(b) introductory paragraph and (c)
> Binder) introductory paragraph effective 3/1/96) for the
—d wording of the authorized version of this provision. 2631-2633

335.24(j)-(k) Requirements for recyclable materials and
: nonhazardous recyclable materials. 2634-2635
u- 335.29 through 335.31 Adoption of appendices by reference; Appendix I;

Incorporation by reference of 40 CFR 260.11. 2636-2638

u SUBCHAPTER B - HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT GENERAL PROVISIONS
q 335.41(a)-(h), and (j) Purpose, scope and applicability.

(See 335.41(c), effective 335.41(c) includes amendments not authorized by
ﬂ 9/1/86, in the Addendumto | EPA.
n the EPA Binder) See page 6 of the Addendum to the EPA Binder

(335.41(c) effective 9/1/86) for the wording of the
m authorized version of this provision. 2638-2640
, Page 11 of 18

*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.
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EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *

June 2005

Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective

through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation

Description

Page

335.43

Permit Required.

2640

335.44

(December 31, 1999)

Application for existing on-site facilities.

See page 2603 of 30 TAC, as amended December 31, 1999 for the

authorized provision.

335.45

(See 335.45(b), effective
9/1/86, in the Addendum to
the EPA Binder)

Effect on existing facilities”.

335.45(b) includes amendments not authorized by
EPA.

See pages 6 and 7 of the Addendum to the EPA
Binder (335.45(b) effective 9/1/86) for the wording

of the authorized version of this provision. 2640-2641
335.47 (except 335.47(b) and | Special requirements for persons eligible for a
the second sentence in Federal permit by rule.
335.47(c)(3)) 2641-2642
335.47(b) Special Requirements for Persons Eligible for a Federal Permit by

(December 31, 1999)

Rule.

See page 2605 of 30 TAC, as amended December 31, 1999 for the

authorized provision.

SUBCHAPTER C - STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO GENERATORS OF HAZARDOUS WASTE

335.61(except (f)) Purpose, scope and applicability. 2642
335.62 Hazardous Waste Determination and Waste

Classification 2643
335.63 “EPA identification numbers” 2643
335.65 through 335.69 “Packaging” through “Accumulation Time”.
(except 335.69(i)) 2643-2647
335.70 Recordkeeping. 2647
335.71 Annual reporting requirements.

(January 1, 1994)

See page 1891 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1994 for the

authorized provision.

335.73 Additional reporting. 2647
335.74 Special requirements for generators for between
100 and 1,000 kilograms per month. 2647
Page 12 of 18

*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.
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EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *
June 2005

Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation Description Page
335.76 (except 335.76(a), Additional requirements applicable to international
(b)(2), (), and (h)) shipments.
2648-2649
335.76 (a), (b)(1), and (f) Additional requirements applicable to international shipments.
(January 1, 1997) See page 2418-2419 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for
the authorized provision.
335.77 Exemption for farmer disposing of waste
pesticides. 2649

335.78 (except (b), (d)(2), (e) | Special requirements for hazardous waste
introductory paragraph, (f)(2), | generated by CESQG.

and (9)(2)) 2649-2653
335.78 (b), (e) introductory Special requirements for hazardous waste generated by CESQG.

paragraph, (f)(2), and (g)(2)

(January 1, 1997) See page 2420-2422 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for

the authorized provision.
SUBCHAPTER D - STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO TRANSPORTERS OF HAZARDOUS WASTE

335.91 (except 335.91(e)) Scope. 2653

335.92 EPA Identification Number. 2653

335.93 (except 335.93(e)) Hazardous Waste Discharges 2653

335.93(e) Hazardous Waste Discharges.

(December 31, 1999) See page 2616 of 30 TAC, as amended December 31, 1999 for the
authorized provision.

335.94 (except the phrase Transfer Facility Requirements.

“owned or operated by a
registered transporter” in (a)
introductory paragraph) 2654

SUBCHAPTER E - INTERIM STANDARDS FOR OWNERS AND OPERATORS OF HAZARDOUS
WASTE STORAGE, PROCESSING, OR DISPOSAL FACILITIES

335.111 Purpose, scope and applicability. 2654

335.112 (except (a)(7), Standards.

(@)(17), (b)(4)(1) and (J), and

(b)(7)) 2654-2656
Page 13 of 18

*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.
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EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *

June 2005

Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation

Description | Page

335.112 (a)(7)

(January 1, 1997)

Standards.

See page 2425 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
authorized provision.

(January 1, 1997)

335.113 Reporting of emergency situations by emergency
coordinator. 2656-2657
335.114 Reporting requirements.

See page 2426 - 2427 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for
the authorized provision.

335.115 introductory
paragraph
(January 1, 1997)

Additional reports.

See page 2427 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
authorized provision.

335.115 (1) - (4)

Additional reports. 2657

335.116 Ground Water Monitoring Requirements. 2657-2658
335.117 (except ()(2)(B), Recordkeeping and Reporting.
(2)(2)(C) and (b)(2)) 2658-2659

335.117 (a)(2)(B), (2)(2)(C),
and (b)(2)

(January 1, 1997)

Recordkeeping and Reporting.

See page 2429 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
authorized provision.

335.118 through 335.127

“Closure Plan; Submission and Approval of Plan”

through “Cost estimate for closure”.. 2659-2663

SUBCHAPTER F - PERMITTING STANDARDS FOR OWNERS AND OPERATORS OF
HAZARDOUS WASTE STORAGE, PROCESSING, OR DISPOSAL FACILITIES

(January 1, 1997)

335.151 Purpose, scope and applicability. 2664
335.152 (except (a)(4), (a)(6) | Standards.

and (c)(5) - (7)) 2664-2666
335.152(a)(4) and (a)(6) Standards.

See pages 2435 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
authorized provision.

335.153

Reporting of emergency situations by emergency
coordinator. 2666

Page 14 of 18

*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.



EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *
June 2005

Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation Description | Page
335.154 Reporting requirements.
(January 1, 1997) See page 2437 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
authorized provision.
335.155 introductory Additional reports.
paragraph
See page 2438 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
h (January 1, 1997) authorized provision.
z 335.155 (1) — (3) Additional reports. 2666
335.156 through 335.166 “Applicability of Groundwater Monitoring and
m Response” through “Corrective Action Program” 2666-2678
z 335.167(a) Corrective Action for Solid Waste Management
Units. 2678
: 335.167(b) and (c) Corrective Action for Solid Waste Management Units.
— (December 31, 1999) See page 2640 of 30 TAC, as amended December 31, 1999 for the
o authorized provision.
n 335.168 through 335.178 “Design and Operating Requirements (Surface
Impoundments)” through “Cost estimate for
closure”. 2678-2687
m SUBCHAPTER G - LOCATION STANDARDS FOR HAZARDOUS WASTE STORAGE,
> PROCESSING, OR DISPOSAL
335.201(a) (except Purpose, scope and applicability.
- 335.201(a)(3)) 2689-2690
I 335.201(c) Conditions for issuance of permit. 2690
u 335.202 (except the redlined Definitions.
definitions) 2690-2691
u 335.203 Site selection to protect groundwater or surface
q water. 2691
335.204(a) introductory Unsuitable site characteristics.
¢ paragraph 2691

Page 15 of 18
*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.
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EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *

June 2005
Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified
State Citation Description Page
335.204(a)(1)-(5) Unsuitable site characteristics: storage or
processing facilities, excluding storage surface
impoundments.
(See 335.204(a)(1), effective | 335.204(a)(1) includes amendments not
5/28/86, in the Addendum to authorized by EPA.
the EPA Binder) See page 7 of the Addendum to the EPA Binder
(335.204(a)(1) effective 5/28/86) for the wording of
the authorized version of this provision. 2691-2692
335.204(b)(1)-(6) Unsuitable site characteristics: land treatment
facilities.
See 335.204(b)(1) and (6), 335.204(b)(1)and (6) includes amendments not
effective 5/28/86, in the authorized by EPA.
Addendum to the EPA See page 8 of the Addendum to the EPA Binder
Binder) (335.204(b)(1)and (6) effective 5/28/86) for the
wording of the authorized version of this provision. 2692-2693
335.204(c)(1)-(5) Unsuitable site characteristics: waste piles.
See 335.204(c)(1), effective 335.204(c)(1) includes amendments not
5/28/86, in the Addendum to authorized by EPA.
the EPA Binder) See page 8 of the Addendum to the EPA Binder
(335.204(c)(2) effective 5/28/86) for the wording of
the authorized version of this provision. 2693-2694
335.204(d)(1)-(5) Unsuitable site characteristics: storage surface
impoundments.
See 335.204(d)(1), effective 335.204(d)(1) includes amendments not
5/28/86, in the Addendum to authorized by EPA.
the EPA Binder) See page 9 of the Addendum to the EPA Binder
(335.204(d)(1) effective 5/28/86) for the wording of
the authorized version of this provision. 2694-2695
335.204(e) introductory Unsuitable site characteristics: landfills.
paragraph 2695
Page 16 of 18

*Copies of the Texas regulations that are incorporated by reference are available from West Publishing Company
620 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0779; Phone: 1-800-328-4880.



EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *
June 2005

Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified

State Citation Description Page

335.204(e)(1) introductory Unsuitable site characteristics: landfills.
paragraph (except the phrase
"Except as. . . (B) of this
paragraph,” and the word
"event" at the end of the
paragraph) 2695

335.204(e)(2) - (7) Unsuitable site characteristics: landfills.

See 335.204(e)(6), effective 335.204(e)(6) includes amendments not
5/28/86, in the Addendum to authorized by EPA.

the EPA Binder) See page 9 of the Addendum to the EPA Binder

(335.204(e)(6) effective 5/28/86) for the wording of

the authorized version of this provision. 2696
335.204(f) Unsuitable site characteristics: injection wells. 2697
335.205(a) introductory Prohibition of permit issuance.
paragraph — (2) and (e) 2697 - 2698

SUBCHAPTER H - STANDARDS FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF SPECIFIC WASTES AND
SPECIFIC TYPES OF FACILITIES

335.211 through 335.212 “Applicability” through “Standards applicable to
Generators and Transporters of materials used in
a manner that constitutes disposal”. 2698-2699
335.213 Applicability.
(January 1, 1997) See page 2473-2474 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for
the authorized provision.
335.214 Use of waste, used oil, or other material. 2699-2700
335.221 (except (a)(1)(B) Applicability and Standards for Hazardous Waste
Burned for Energy Recovery. 2700-2701
335.222 through 335.225 “Applicability of standards” through "Additional
Standards for Direct Transfer”. 2701-2705
335.241(except (b)(4) and Recyclable materials utilized for precious metal
(d)) recovery. 2705-2706
335.241(d) Recyclable materials utilized for precious metal recovery.
(January 1, 1997) See page 2483 of 30 TAC, as amended January 1, 1997 for the
authorized provision.
335.251 Spent lead-acid batteries being reclaimed. 2706-2707
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EPA APPROVED TEXAS REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO THE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM *

June 2005
Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 30, Environmental Quality, 2002, as amended, effective
through December 31, 2001 unless otherwise specified
State Citation Description Page
335.261(except (e)) Universal Waste 2707-2709
335.271 Purpose, Scope, and Applicability for Military
Munitions. 2710
335.272 Military Munitions Standards. 2710-2711
SUBCHAPTER O - LAND DISPOSAL RESTRICTIONS
335.431 Land disposal restrictions. 2745
SUBCHAPTER R - WASTE CLASSIFICATION
335.504 introductory Hazardous waste determination.
paragraph — (2) 2756
335.504(3) and (4) Hazardous Waste Determination.
(December 31, 1999) See page 2726 of 30 TAC, as amended December 31, 1999 for the
authorized provision.
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malter covered. Mowever, this publication was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed 0 practice law In a particular
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OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES AND REGISTRATIONS

13: i § ’ (b) A petition may be denied for failure to comply

(a) After the close of the hearing and the réceipt of with the requirements of subsection (2) of this section.
all documents, the presiding officer shall prepare a (c) Within 60 days after submission of a petition,
report to the commission, which shall include: the commission shallrconsiderkthe petition and shall
(1) a summaryof the subject of the hearing; either deny the petition in writing, stating its rea-

sons for the denial, or shall initiate rulemaking
proceedings in accordance with the APA.

. ' Source: The provisions of this §20.15 adopted to be effective
(3) any revisions recdmmended as the result of June 6, 1996, 21 TexReg 4719.

public comment presénted;

{4) a copy of the rule as recommended for adop- §-20-17-—Emergency Rules 7
tion; and If the commission finds that an imminent 1;;}7ﬁ or

(2) a review and analysis of the comments sub-

mitted;

(5) other’pertinent information. extraordinary circumstance may threaten the public

(b) THe report shall be submitted to the commis- health, safety, or welfare or the integrity’ of the
sionfor final action commission’s regulatory programs, and reduires the

: adoption of a rule on less tha day’s notice, i
//§ource: The provisions of this §20.13 adopted to be effective P ru n 30 day)s notice, it

#Fune-6,1996, 21 TexReg 4719, may adopt an emergency rule withouy/prior notice
: : and hearing or with any abbreviatéd notice and
§ 20.15. Petition for Adoption of Rules hearing that it finds practicable under the

(3) Any person may petition the commission to  circumstances. The commission shall make a writ-
request the adoption of a rule. Petitions shall be ten finding which shall be filed with the secretary of
submitted in writing to: Executive Director, Texas  State setting forth its reasons fof such determination.
Natural Resource Conservation Commission, PO. ~ The emergency rule shall be effective immediately
Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087, and shall ~ upon filing with the secyetary of state and will

comply with the following requirements: continue in effect for a pefiod of up to 120 days. The
(1) each rule requested must be submitted by emergency rule may b¢’ renewed once before expi-
separate petition; ‘ ration for a period of 60 days.

s Source: The provisioné of this §20.17 adoj ted to be effective
(2) each petition must state the name and address  jype 5, 1996, up-;exge 4719. P

of the petitioner;
(3) each petition shall include: . § 20.19. Working Groups
(A) abrief explanation of the proposed rule; Before initiating any formal rulemakmg action,
(B). the text of the proposed rule prepared in a the commigsion may convene informal working
manner to indicate the words to be added or deleted groups to btain vxeyvgomts and advice of interested
from the text of the current rule, if any; persons,/The commission may also appoint working
grouyof experts or interested persons or represen-
tatives of the general public to advise it regarding
any contemplated rulemaking. The powers of such
rking groups shall be advisory only. "~
!/ Source: The provisions of this §20.19 adopted to be effective

(C) a statement of the statutory or other authority
under which the proposed rule is to be promulgated;
and

(D) an allegation of injury or inequity that could
result from the failure to adopt the proposed rule.

AP [ % = HIPAT “:- - & -‘\"‘" - s TRA i‘(-"
SUBCHAPTER A: - ADMINISTRATION OF Section o
OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES AND 30.24. License and Registration Applications for Renewal.
REGISTRATIONS 30.26. Recognition of Licenses from QOut-of-State.
30.28.-Approval of Training.
Section P S . :
} _-30730. Terms and Fees for Licenses and Registrations.
30.1. Authority.

30.33. License or Registration Denial, Warning, Suspen-

30.3. Purpose and Applicability. sion, or Revocation.

30.5. General Provisions. e 30.35. Hearings.
30.7. Definitions. ) ’
30.10. Admxmstran e SUBCHAPTER B. BACKFLOW PREVENTION
ons for Initial Registration. - ASSEMBLY TESTERS
pplications for an Initial License. 30.51. Purpose and Applicability.
inations: 30.57-Definitions.

61
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EMERGENCY AND TEMPORARY ORDERS AND PERMITS

.duration-than required-to-prevent-the-hazard.The
Do horized Leinth
(€) Public notice shall accompany the emergency
order, shall allow-at least 45 days for public com-
ment, and shall be given at least 30 days before the
hearing on the emergency order. Public notice of the
order may be given at the same time as public notice
and opportunity for comment on the order, and the
two notices may be combined. The notice shall
include:

(1) the name and address of the applicant;

(2) the name and location of the hazardous waste
management facility;

(3) a brief description of the wastes involved;

(4) a brief description of the action authorized or
to be authorized, and the reasons for authorization;

(5) the duration of the emergency order; and

(6) the name and address of the commission (the
office granting the order).

Source: The provisions: of this §35.402 adopted to be effective
December 10, 1998, 23 TexReg 12413.

SUBSTANCES AND MATERIALS
EMERGENCY /

§ 35.501. Emergency Orders Relatip% to Radio-
: active Substances

(a) When an emergency exists a result of a
matter under the commission’s jupisdiction that re-
quires immediate action to protegt the public health
or safety or the environmen’%fthe commission or
executive director may issue/an emergency order
under Texas Water Code, §5/516, and Texas Health
and Safety Code, §401.05¢.

(b) The commission ’; executive director may
issue an emergency 9141()&‘ directing any action or
corrective measure néeded to correct or remove the
threat to public h\;zz; or: safety or the environment
when the commigsion or executive director deter-
mines that radicactive substances under its jurisdic-
tion threatens’/the public health or safety or the
environment/ and that the licensee managing the

radioa:j\?substances is unable to remove the threat.

(c) Anémergency order issued under this section
takes effect 1mmed1ately ‘A person to whom an
emer ency order is directed shall comply immedi-
ately with that order..

d) The emergency order shall be delivered to the
person 1o whom the order is dlrected by hand

30 TAC § 35.502

Affidavitof | e, s 7
proper address, or the receipt shall be conclusiv:,

evidence .of service.

(e) If the commission or executive director issues
the emergency order without notice or hearing,/the
commission shall provide the person to whont the
order is directed an opportunity for a hearifg on
written request within 30 days of the date/of the
order. If a hearing is requested, notice of the hearing
shall be given to the person to whom the/order is
directed by hand delivery or certified ma/ll return
receipt requested, at least ten days before the hearing,.
A requested hearing shall be held not garlier than
the 11th day and not later than the 20th day follow-
ing the date of receipt of the hearing frequest.

(P All provisions of the emergentcy order shall
remain in full force and effect during the pendency
of a hearing, unless otherwise/ altered by the
commission. At the conclusion of the hearing and
after the proposal for decision is/made, the commis-
sion shall make a determination/to affirm, modify, or
revoke the emergency order and may modify, re-
voke, or suspend the license based on the determi-
nation made. /

(2) The commission shal} use the ﬁnancnal assur-
ance mechanism provided by a licensee.to pay. the
costs of actions and :}Zective measures .that: are

taken or that are to be taken under this section. The
commission shall use this financial assurance mecha-
nism under the procetlure set out in Texas Health

(h) i the costs of dactions-and corrective measures
require more funds than the financial assurance
mechanism. has pyovided, the commission shall re-
quest the ‘attorney general to seek reimbursement
from the licensee or person causing the threat.

(i) . The compmission - shall seek reimbursement
through a copmmission order or shall request the
attorney. general to file suit for reimbursement if the
commission/uses the funds provided by the licensee
for security under Texas Health and Safety Code,
Chapter 401, to pay for actions or corrective mea-
sures to remedy spills or contamination by radioac-
tive matérial resulting from a violation of the Texas
Radiation Control Act (TRCA), the: rules of this
chapter, or a license or order issued by the commis-
sion gnder the TRCA or this chapter.

Sc;}lrce: The provisions of this §35.501 adopted to be effective
Decgmber 10, 1998, 23 TexReg 12413,

§/35.502. Emergency Impoundment of Radio-
active Material

f' (a) In the event of an emergency, the cormmssxon
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30 TAC § 39.3

seta L4

This chapter specifies notice requirements for
applications, hearings on applieations, and hearings
on contested enforc t cases, including require-

: The provisions of this §39.3 adopted to be effective
ry-8,-1997-21-TexReg-12550-

§ 39.5. General Provisions

that is required by this chapter and the applicai

does not cause the notice to be published within 30
days of receipt of the notice from the chief clerk,/the
chief clerk may cause the notice to be published and
the applicant shall reimburse the agency for the cost
of publication within 30 days of publicatioJ

(b) The chief clerk may require the applicant to
provide necessary mailing lists in electrgnic form.

(c) When this chapter requires notice by mail,
notice by hand delivery may be substi&zxted. Mailing
is complete upon deposit of the docyment, enclosed
in a prepaid, properly addressed wrapper, in a post
office or official depository un;e’i the care and
custody of the United States Postal Service. If hand
delivery is by courier-receipted/delivery, the delivery
is complete upon the courierfaking possession.

(d) Unless otherwise prﬂ(rided in this chapter,
public notice requirementg apply to applications for
initial permits or applicdtions for the amendment,
modification, or renewd! of permits.

(e) If an applicant gubmits more than one appli-
cation for a facility/ notice may be combined to
satisfy more than ofie section of this chapter.

(f) When this chapter requires an applicant to
publish notice, the applicant must file an affidavit
with the chief/clerk certifying facts that constitute
compliance with the requirement. The deadline to
file the affidavit is the day of the public meeting for
notice of public meeting, two days before a public
hearing for notice of a public hearing, and 30 days
after the'last publication for other published notices.
For nggce of a public meeting, the applicant must
also gubmit the affidavit to the executive director no
than the day of the public meeting. Filing an
affidavit certifying facts that constitute compliance
vith notice requirements creates a rebuttable pre-
sumption of compliance with the requirement to
w/:pﬂb}ish notice:

(g) When this chapter requires notice to be pub-
lished according to this subsection, the applicant
shall publish notice in a newspaper of the largest
general circulation that is published in the county in

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

which the facility is located or proposed ‘to be
located. If a newspaper is not published in the
county, the notice must be published in a newspaper
of general circulation in the county in which the
facility is located or proposed to be located. If a
newspaper is not published in the county, and the
application concerns an application for a new or
amended municipal solid waste permit, and publi-
cation of notice of intent, notice of draft permit, or
notice of hearing, then the applicant shall publish
notice in a newspaper of the largest general circu-
lation in the county in which the facility is located or
proposed to be located and in a newspaper of
circulation in the immediate vicinity in which the
facility is located or proposed to be located, and
such notice may be satisfied by one publication’if the
publishing newspaper meets both circulation
requirements.

- Wi his-cl : ice-bel 1
cast according to this subsection, the applicant sha{l
broadcast notice of the application on one or moére
local radio stations that broadcast to an area/that
includes all of the county in which the facility is
located. The executive director may require that the
broadcasts be made to an area that alSn)/ird:cludes
contiguous counties.

Source: The provisions of this §39.5 adopted/to be effective
January 8, 1997, 21 TexReg 12550; amended to bé effective June 5,
1997, 22 TexReg 4578; amended to be effective ﬁecember 10,.1998,

23 TexReg 12426; amended to be effective June'17, 1999, 24 TexReg
4426; amended to be effective September 14,2000, 25 TexReg 8857

§ 39.7. Mailing Lists

The chief clerk shall maigtain mailing lists of
persons requesting pub\}]ca notice of certain
applications. Persons, inclyding participants in past
commission permit profeedings, may request in
writing to be on a mailing list. The chief clerk may
from time to time request confirmation that persons
on a list wish to remain on the list, and may:delete
from the list the name of any person who fails 1o
respond to such pé;quest.

Source: The pro¥isions of this §39.7 adopted to be effective
January 8, 1997, 24 TexReg 12550.
/

€ 39.9. Deadline for Public Comment and Hear-
, ing Requests

Notigefunder this chapter will specify a -deadline
to file/public comment and if applicable, hearing
requgsts. After the deadline, final action on an ap-
tion may be taken under Chapter 50 of this title
lating to Action on Applications).
Source: The provisions of this §39.9 adopted to be effective

¥ ¥
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PUBLIC NOTICE
8§ 39.11. ‘Text of Public Notice

When notice by publication or by mail is required
by this chapter, the text of the notice must include:

(1) the name and address of the agency;

(2) the name and address of the applicant and, if
different, the location of the facility or activity to be
regulated by the permit;

(3) a brief description of the business conducted
at the facility or activity described in the application
or the draft permit;

(4) the name, address, and telephone number of
an agency contact person from whom interested
persons may obtain further information;

(5) a brief description of public comment proce-
dures, and the time and place of any public meeting
or public hearing;

(6) a statement of procedures by which the public
may participate in the final permit decision and, if
applicable, how to request a hearing, or a statement
that later notice will describe procedures for public
participation;

{7) for notices of public meetings or hearings, the
date, time, and place of the meeting or hearing, and
a brief description of the nature and purpose of the
meeting or hearing, including the applicable rules
and procedures;

(8) the application or permit number;

(9) if the application is subject to final approval by
the executive director under Chapter 50 of this title
(relating to Action on Applications), a statement that
the executive director may issue final approval of the
application unless there is a (if applicable) request
for hearing filed with the chief clerk;

(10) if applicable, the deadline to file comments
and, if applicable, hearing requests;

(11) a statement of whether the executive director
has prepared a draft permit; and

(12) if applicable, a statement that the application
or requested action is subject to the Coastal Man-
agement Program and must be consistent with the
Coastal Management Program goals and policies.

Source: The provisions of this §39.11 adopted to be effective
January 8, 1997, 21 TexReg 12550; amended to be effective June 5,
1997, 22 TexReg 4578; amended to be effective September 14,
2000, 25 TexReg 8857

b § 39-13» 1“31‘]3& ieﬂﬁce i

‘When this chapter requires mailed notice under
this section, the chief shall mail notice to:

(D Wrs named on the application rnap

30 TAC § 39.15

(2) the mayor and health authorities of the city;,ér
town in which the facility is or will be located o; in
which waste is or will be disposed of;

(3) the county judge and health authorities of the
county in which the facility is or will be locateﬁ orin
which waste is or will be disposed of; !,f

(4) the Texas Department of Health; /

(5) the Texas Parks and Wildlife Deparjénent;

(6) the Texas Railroad Commission; /

(7) if applicable, local, state and federal agencies
for which notice is required in 40 Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR), §124.10(c), as amended and
adopted in the CFR through May };& 1989, at 54
FedReg 18786;

(8) if applicable, persons on a mailing list devel-
oped and maintained in accordance with 40 Code of
Federal Regulations, §124.10(c){1)(ix);

(9) the applicant; /

(10) if the application concéms an injection well,
the Water Well Drillers Advis’ory Council;

(11) personson a relev t mailing list kept under
§39.7 of this title (relatm /Io Mailing Lists);

(12) any other person/the executive director or
chief clerk may elect to nclude;

(13) if applicable, thie secretary of the Coastal
Coordination Counci;f and :

(14) persons who filed public comment or hear-
ing requests on or/before the deadline for filing
public comment or/hearing requests.

Source: - The provisigns of this §39.13 adopted to be effective
January 8, 1997, 21 TexReg 12550; amended to be effective June 3,
1997, 22 TexReg 4578; amended to be effective August 8, 1999, 24
TexReg 5872; ame

ed to be effective September 14, 2000, 25
TexReg 8857 /

§ 39.15. Public Notice Not Required for Cer-
tain Types of Applications

(a) Publi¢ notice is not required for the following:

(1) applications for the correction or endorse-
ment of permits under 8§305.65 of this title (relating
to Corrections of Permits);

2) pérmlttees voluntary requests for suspension
or revévcanon of permits under Chapter.305, Sub-
chaé){&r D of this title (relating to Amendments,

Modifications, Renewals, Transfers, Corrections, Re-
vocation, and Suspension of Permits);
3) applications for transportation route special
rmits under §330.32 of this title (relating to Col-
Jection and Transportation Requirements).

j (b) For the voluntary transfer of permits, no pub-

£ lic-notice-shall-be required,-except-that:

247
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~H-Netice-of-h -
(1) This subsection applies if an applicatio; is

referred to SOAH for a contested case hearing ynder
Chapter 80 of this title (relating to Contested Case
Hearings): : ’

(2) The applicant shall publish notice at feast once
under §39.5(g) of this title.

(3) Mailed notice.

(A) If the applicant proposes a n¢w facility, the
applicant shall mail notice of the hearing to each
residential or business address lgcated within 1/2
mile of the facility and to each gwner of real prop-
erty located within 1/2 mile of/the facility listed in
the real property appraisal reords of the appraisal
district in which the facility is located. The notice
shall be mailed to the persgns listed as owners in the
real property appraisal /records on the date the
application is determinied to be administratively
complete. The notice fhust be mailed no more than
45 days and no less }}ian 30 days before the hearing.
Within 30 days aftet the date of mailing, the appli-
cant must file an affidavit certifying compliance with
this paragraph with the chief clerk. Filing an affida-
vit certifying fdcts that constitute compliance with
the notice ?(quirements creates a rebuttable pre-
sumption of compliance with this subparagraph.

(B) If the applicant proposes an amendment of a
permit, the chief clerk shall mail notice to the
persong listed in §39.13 of this title.

(4) Notice under paragraphs (2) and (3)(B) of this
subgection shall be completed at least 30 days before

the hearing.
Source: The provisions of this §39.101 adopted to be effective
anuary 8, 1997, 21 TexReg 12550; amended to be effective Sep-

§ 39.103. Application for Industrial or Hazard-
ous Waste Facility Permit

‘) _— . i
(1) If an applicant decides to participate-in a local
review committee process under Tex ealth and

Safety Code, §361.063, the applicapt must submit a
notice of intent to file an application to the executive
director, setting forth the p:gp‘ésed location and type
of facility. The applicant-shall mail notice to the
county judge of the co ﬁ/ty in which the facility is to
be located. If the proposed facility is to be located in
a municipality or'the extraterritorial jurisdiction of a
municipalityy”a copy of the notice shall also be
mailed t¢ the mayor of the municipality. Mailed
notice’shall be by certified mail. When the applicant

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

‘mi Y fff E’gaf.]g. eneral f“ E} ﬂmm;’. in-the-county

(2) The requirements of this paragraph are set
forth at 40 CFR §124.31(b)-(d), which is adopted by
reference as amended and adopted in the CFR
through December 11, 1995, at 60 FedReg 63417,
and apply to all hazardous waste part B applications
for initial permits for hazardous waste management
units, hazardous waste part B permit applications
for major amendments, and hazardous waste part B
applications for renewal of permits, where the re-
newal application is proposing a significant change
in facility operations. For the purposes of this para-
graph, a “significant change” is any change that
would qualify as a class 3 permit modification under
§305.69 of this title (relating to Solid Waste Permit
Modification at the Request of the Permittee). The
requirements of this paragraph do not apply to an
application for minor amendment under §305.62 of
this title (relating to Amendment), correction under
850.45 of this title (relating to Corrections to Per-
mits), or modification under 8§305.69 of this title
(relating to Solid Waste Permit Modification at the
Request of the Permittee), or to an application that is
submitted for the sole purpose of conducting post-
closure activities or post-closure activities and cor-
rective action at a facility, unless the application is
also for an initial permit for hazardous waste man-
agement unit(s), or the application is also for re-
newal of the permit, where the renewal application
is proposing a significant change in facility
operations.

(b) Notice of receipt of application. When the
executive director receives an application, or notice
of intent to file an application, the chief clerk shall
mail notice to the state senator and representative
who represent the area in which the facility is or will
be located, and to the persons listed in §39.13 of this
title (relating to Mailed Notice). For all hazardous
waste part B applications for initial permits for
hazardous waste management units, hazardous waste
part B permit applications for major amendments,

“and hazardous waste part B applications for re-

newal of permits, the chief clerk shall provide notice
to meet the requirements of this subsection and 40
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) §124.32(b), which
is adopted by reference as amended and adopted in
the CFR through December 11, 1995, at 60 FedReg
63417, and the executive director shall meet the
requirements of 40 CFR §124.32(c), which is adopted
by reference as amended and adopted in the CFR
through December 11, 1995, at 60 FedReg 63417.
The requirements of this paragraph relating 1o 40
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CFR §124.32(b)-(c) do not apply to an application
for minor amendment under §305.62" of this title
(relating to Amendment), correction under §50.45 of
this title (relating to Corrections to Permits), or
modification under §305.69 of this title (relating to
Solid Waste Permit Modification at the Request of
the Permittee), or to an application that is submitted
for the sole purpose of conducting post-closure
activities or post-closure activities and corrective
action at a facility, unless the application is also for
an initial permit for hazardous waste management
unit(s), or the application is also for renewal of the
permit.

director shall also mail a copy of'the application or
a summary of its contents to the county judge and
the health authority of the” county in which the
facility is located.

(d) Notice of draft permit.

(1) The applicant shall publish notice at least once
in a newspaper of'general circulation in the county
in. which the facility is located and in each county
and area whith is adjacent or contiguous to each
county in which the facility is located.

) chief clerk shall mail notice to the persons
listed.in §39.13 .of this title.

‘If the application concerns a hazardous waste
cility, the applicant shall broadcast notice under

(4) The notice shall specify the deadline to file
public comment or hearing requests. For industrial
solid waste applications, the deadline shall be not
less than 30 days after newspaper publication, and
for hazardous waste applications, not less than 45
days after newspaper publication.

30 TAC § 39 103

meeting is not a contested case proceedmg und f

the APA. A public meeting held as part of a lo
review comrmittee process under subsection (a) of
this section meets the requirements of this subsec-
tion if public notice is provided under this subsegtion.

(2) The applicant shall publish notice of thf: pub-
lic meeting once each week during the threg¢ weeks
preceding a public meeting. The applic?th shall
publish notice under §39.5(g) of this title. The pub-
lished notice shall not be smaller than 94.8 square
centimeters or 15 square inches with the shortest
dimension at least 7.6 centimeters or thiree inches.

(3) The chief clerk shall mail notice /v’o the persons
listed in §39.13 of this title. /

{f) Notice of hearing. /

(1) This subsection applies if h application is
referred to SOAH for a contested case hearing under
Chapter 80 of this title (relating/to Contested Case
Hearings).

(2) Newspaper notice.

(A) If the application conc?@ns an industrial solid
waste facility, the applicant /shall publish notice at
least once in a newspaper ¢f general circulation in
the county in which the facility is located and in
each county and area which is adjacent or contigu-
ous to each county in which the proposed facility is
located. 7

(B) Hthe apphcatrlrz{ concerns a hazardous waste
facility, the hearing must include one session held in
the county in which the facility is located. The
applicant shall publish notice of the hearing once
each week during the three weeks preceding the
hearing under 839.5(g) of this title. The published
notice shall not be smaller than 96.8 square centi-
mieters or 15 sqbare inches with the shortest dimen-
sion at least 7.6 centimeters or three inches. The text
of the notice shall include the statement that at least
one session ¢f the hearing will be held in'the county
in which the facility is located.

3) Mai}éd notice.

(A) If the applicant proposes a new solid waste
management facility, the applicant shall mail notice
to each/residential or business address located within
1/2 e of the facility and to each owner of real
propérty located within 1/2 mile of the facility listed
in the real property appraisal records of the ap-
praisal district in which the facility is located. The
notice: shall' be mailed to the persons listed as

ners in the real property appraisal records on the
;ﬁate the application is determined to be administra-
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the chief clerk shall not mail notice to the persons
listed in paragraph (1) of that section. The dotice
must be mailed no more than 45 days a
than 30 days before the hearing. Within
the date of mailing, the applicant m
chief clerk an affidavit certifying ¢

days after
file with the

(B) If the applicapt proposes to amend or renew

an existing permig/the chief clerk shall mail notice
to the persons listed in §39.13 of this title.

(4) 1f the application concerns a hazardous waste

(g) Information repository. The requirements of
40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) §124.33(b)-
{f), which is adopted by reference as amended and
adopted in the CFR through December 11, 1995, at
60 FedReg 63417, apply to all applications for haz-
ardous waste permits.

Source: The provisions of this §39.103 adopted to be effective
January 8, 1997, 21 TexReg 12550; amended to be effective August
8, 1999, 24 TexReg 5872

of Public Notice) and the additional requirements in
§305.69 of this title,

(c) When mailed nétice is required, the applicant
shall mail notice 16 the persons listed in §39.13 of
this title (relating to Mailed Notice).

(d) The efféctive date of the amendment of exist-
ing §39.105 of this title (relating to Application for a
Class odification of an Industrial Solid Waste,
Hazafdous Waste, or Municipal Solid Waste Permit)
and 1hzs new §39 106 of thlS mle (relatmg to Apph-

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

for modxﬁcatlons filed before thls amended sectiony

and new §39.106 of this title become effective, wi
be subject to this section as it existed prior to June/3,
2002.

Source: The provisions of th:s §39.105 adopted to be eff;}cnve

January 8, 1997, 21 TexReg 12550; amended to be effective Decem-
ber 30, 2001, 26 TexReg 10989,

nicipal Solid Waste Permit or Reg-
istration

§ 39.106. Application for Modiﬁcatim}f/f a Mu-

i

(a) When mailed notice is required under §305.70
of this title (relating to Municipal Solid Waste Permit
and Registration Modifications), the gf’1ailed notice
shall be mailed by the permit or registration holder
and the text of the notice shall comply with §39.
411MBY1)~(3), (6), (7), (9), and (¥2) of this title
(relating to Text of Public Notice), and shall provide
the location and phone number ¢f the appropriate
regional office of the commissioryto be contacted for
information on the location where a copy of the
application is available for review and copying.

(b) When mailed notice is required by §305.70 of
this title (relating to Muni?{al Solid Waste Permit
and Registration Modificgtions), notice shall be
mailed by the permit or yegistration holder to the
persons listed in 839.413 of this title (relating to
Mailed Notice). /

(¢) The effective dat¢ of the amendment of exist-
ing 839.105 of this titl¢ (relating to Application for a
Class 1 Modification/of an Industrial Solid Waste,
Hazardous Waste, oy Municipal Solid Waste Permit)
and this new §39.106 is June 3, 2002. Applications
for modifications / led before amended §39.105 of
this title and this new 8§39.106 become effective, will
be subject to 839.105 of this title as it existed prior to
June 3, 2002.

Source: The pibovisions of this §39.106 adopted to be effective
December 30, 2001, 26 TexReg 10989.

8 39.107/ Application for a Class 2 Modifica-
tion of an Industrial or Hazardous

/ Waste Permit

The rg‘tice requirements for Class 2 modifications
are in §305.69 of this title (relating to Solid Waste

Perrmf Modification at the Request of the Permittee),
except that the text of notice shall comply with
§305.69 of this title and §39.11 of this title (relating
to Text of Public Notice). The notice shall specify the
deadline to file with the chief clerk public comment.
The deadline is specified in §305.69 of this title.
)When maxled notice is reqmred the apphcant shall
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Lwie . :

Permittee);

(13) applications for minor modifications of Texas
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (TPDES)
permits under §305.62(c)(3) of this title; or

(14) applications for registration and no#ification
of sludge disposal under §312.13 of this }A“ide (relat-
ing to Actions and Notice).

(d) Applications for initial issuance/of voluntary
emission reduction permits under Texas Health and
Safety Code, §382.0519 and initial fssuance of elec-
tric generating facility permits u
Code, §39.264 are subject only t6/839.405 of this title
(relating to General Notice Prgvisions), §39.409 of
this title (relating to Deadline/for Public Comment,
and for Requests for Recohsideration, Contested
Case Hearing, or Notice And Comment Hearing),
§39.411 of this title, 839.418 of this title (relating to
Notice of Receipt of Application and Intent to Ob-
tain Permit), §39.602 ¢f this title (relating to Mailed
Notice), §39.603 of tHis title (relating to Newspaper
Notice), §39.604 of this title (relating to Sign-
Posting), §39.605 6f this title (relating to Notice to
Affected Agencies), and §39.606 of this title (relating
to Alternative Means of Notice for Voluntary Emis-
sion Reductioh Permits), except that any reference
to requests for reconsideration or contested case
hearings i}x/ §39.409 of this title or 839.411 of this

title shall/not apply. ;
(e) :fé;ications for Radioactive Materials Li-

censes/under Chapter 336 of this title are not subject

1o §§39.405(c) and (e), 39.418, 39.419, 39.420, and

cerfain portions of §39.413 of this title (relating to
iled Notice).

Source: The provisions of this §39.403 adopted to be effective

September 23, 1999, 24 TexReg 8190; amended to be effective

§ 39.405. General Notice Provisions

prepares a newspaper notice that is requir:; by

Subchapters H-M of this chapter (relatin Appli-
cability and General Provisions, Publi€’ Notice of
Solid Waste Applications, Public Notice of Water
Quality Applications and W Quality Manage-
ment Plans, Public Notice~6f Air Quality Applica-
tions, Public Notice Injection Well and Other
Specific Applications, and Public Notice for Radio-
active MateriglLicenses) or Subchapter G of this
chapter (relating to Public Notice for Applications
for Consolidated Permits) and the applicant does not
ublished within 45 days of

O

262

tor declares the application administratively com-
plete, or fails to submit the copies of notices/or
affidavit required in subsection (e) of this section,
the executive director may cause one of the follow:
ing actions to occur: /

/

(1) the chief clerk may cause the noti%é to be
published and the applicant shall reim\?m—se the
agency for the cost of publication; or /

(2) the executive director may suspgfnd further
processing or return the application. If/the applica-
tion is resubmitted within six months 4f the date of
the return of the application, it shall };‘é exempt from
any application fee requirements, /

(b) Electronic Mailing Lists. Th¢ chief clerk may
require the applicant to provide necessary mailing
lists in electronic form.

(c) Mail or Hand Delivery./When Subchapters
H-L of this chapter or Subchapter G of this chapter
require notice by mail, noticg by hand delivery may
be substituted. Mailing is cgmplete upon deposit of
the document, enclosed ix?’ a prepaid, properly ad-
dressed wrapper, in a post office or official deposi-
tory of the United Statés Postal Service. If hand
delivery is by courier-receipted delivery, the delivery
is complete upon the g/ofurier taking possession.

(d) Combined Not}i)ée. Notice may be combined to
satisfy more than ¢ne applicable section of this
chapter.

(e) Notice and fz{fﬁdavit. When Subchapters H-L
of this chapter //61* Subchapter G of this chapter
require an appljcant to publish notice, the applicant
must file a cédpy of the published notice and a
publisher’s affidavit with the chief clerk certifying
facts that constitute compliance with the requirement.
The deadlige to file a copy of the published notice
which shows the date of publication and the name of
the newspaper is 10 business days after the last date
of publi¢ation. The deadline to file the affidavit is 30
calenddr days after the last date of publication for
each potice. Filing an affidavit certifying facts that
consﬁtute compliance with notice requirements cre-
ates/ a rebuttable presumption of compliance with
the/ requirement to publish notice. When the chief
clérk publishes notice under subsection (a) of this

section, the chief clerk shall file a copy of the

(1) the applicant shall publish notice in the news-
paper of largest circulation in the county in which
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the facility is located or proposed to be located,
except for air applications required to publish in a
newspaper of general circulation in a municipality
under §39.603 of this title (relating t0 Newspaper
Notice); and

injecti 1 publi

notice in the newspaper of largest general circula-
tion that is published in the county in whicly the
facility is located or proposed to be located. If a
newspaper is not published in the county, th¢ notice
must be published in a newspaper of geneyal circu-
lation in the county in which the facility isdocated or
proposed to be located. The requireménts of this
subsection may be satisfied by one publication if the
newspaper is both published in the gyﬁnty and is the
newspaper of largest general circulal tion in the county.

{g) The applicant shall make a /éopy of the appli-
cation available for review and £opying at a public
place in the county in which th¢ facility is located or
proposed to be located. If the/application is submit-
ted with confidential infornfation marked as confi-
dential by the applicant, applicant is required to
indicate in the public ﬁ}’é that there is additional
information in a confidential file. The copy of the
application shall comply with the following:

(1) A copy of the administratively complete appli-
cation must be available for review and copying
beginning on the first day of newspaper publication
of Notice of Reteipt of Application and Intent to
Obtain Permit and remain available for the publica-
tions’ designated comment period; and

of the complete application (including
uent revisions to the application) and

sectjibn and remain available until the commission
taken action on the application or the comumis-
sibn refers issues to SOAH.

i Source: The provisions of this §39.405 adopted to be effective

§ 39.407.— Meiling Li
The chief clerk shall maintain mailing lists of
persons requesting -notice of an
sons, including participants i
proceedings, may request”in writing to be on a
mailing list. The chiefclerk may from time to time
request confirmation that persons on a list wish to

remain e list, and may delete from the list the

E;ne/ of any person who fails to respond to such
‘ecilest

request

263
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September 23, 1999, 24 TexReg 8190
§ 39.409. Deadline for Public Commenf, and
for Requests for Reconsideration,
Contested Case Hearing; or Notice

and Comment Hearing
Notice given under this chgpler will specify any
applicable deadline to file public comment specified
under §55.152 of this tilé (relating to Public Com-
ment) and, if applicable, any deadlines to file re-
quests for recongideration, contested case hearing,
or notice and eébmment hearing. After the deadline,
final actiopron an application may be taken under

ource: The provisions of this §39.409 adopted to be effective

§ 39.411. Text of Public Notice

(a) Applicants shall use notice text provided and
approved by the agency. The executive director may
approve changes to notice text before notice being
given. .

(b) When notice of receipt of application and
intent to obtain permit by publication or by mail is
required by Subchapters H-L of this chapter (relai-
ing to Applicability and General Provisions, Public
Notice of Solid Waste Applications, Public Notice of
Water Quality Applications and Water Quality Man-
agement Plans, Public Notice of Air Quality Appli-
cations, and Public ‘Notice of Injection Well and
Other Specific Applications), Subchapter G of this
chapter (relating to Public Notice for ‘Applications
for Consolidated Permits), or for Subchapter M of
this chapter (relating to Mailed Notice for Radioac-
tive Material Licenses), the text of the notice must
include the following information:

(1) the name and address of the agency and the
telephone number of an agency contact from whom
interested persons may obtain further information;

(2) the name, address, and telephone number of
the applicant and a description of the manner in
which a person may contact the applicant for fur-
ther information; ‘

(3) a brief description of the location and nature
of the proposed activity;

(4) a brief description -of public comment proce-
dures, including:

(A) a statement that the executive director will
respond to comments raising issues that are relevant
and material or otherwise significant; and ,
B) i) ce.f .
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(5) a brief description of procedures by which the
public may participate in the final permit decision
and, if applicable, how to request a public meeting,
contested case hearing, reconsideration of the ex-
ecutive director’s decision, a notice and comment
hearing, or a statement that later notice will de-
scribe procedures for public participation, printed
in a font style or size that clearly provides emphasis
and distinguishes it from the remainder of the notice.
The notice should include a statement that a public
meeting will be held by the executive director if
requested by a member of the legislature who rep-
resents the general area where the facility is to be
located or there is substantial public interest in the
proposed activity;

(6) the application or permit number;

(7) if applicable, a statement that the application
or requested action is subject to the Coastal Man-
agement Program and must be consistent with the
Coastal Management Program goals and policies;

(8) the location, at a public place in the county in
which the facility is located or proposed to be
located, at which a copy of the application is avail-
able for review and copying;

(9) a description of the procedure by which a
person may be placed on a mailing list in order to
receive additional information about the applica-
tion;

~H9)-for-notices-of-atr-applications:

{A) at a minimum, a listing of criteria pollytants
for which authorization is sought in the application
which are regulated under national apibient air
quality standards (NAAQS) or under stste standards
in Chapters 111, 112, 113, 115, and117 of this title
(relating to Control of Air Pollution from Visible
Emissions and Particulate Métter, Control of Air
Pollution from Sulfur Compounds, Control of Air
Pollution from Toxic Mat€rials, Control of Air Pollu-
tion from Volatile Organic Compounds, and Control
of Air Pollution from Nitrogen Compounds);

(B) if notice 4§ for applications described in §39.
403(b)(11) op{(12) of this title (relating to Applicabil-
ity), a statément that any person is entitled to re-
quest @ notice and comment hearing from the
comprhission. If notice is for any other air application

e following information which must be printed in

a-ront e-ar-size-tha earliy-provides-emphasis

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

() a statement that a person who may be affected
by emissions of air contaminants from the facility or
proposed facility is entitled to request a contested
case hearing from the commission;

(ii) a statement that a contested case/ hearing
request must include the requester’s location rela-

tive to the proposed facility or activity;
(iii) a statement that a contested fgase hearing
request should include a descnptié(n of how the
requestor will be adversely affected/by the proposed
facility or activity in a manner nét common to the

(iv) and that only relevant and material issues
raised during the comment period can be consid-
ered if a contested case }marmg request is granted;
and

(C) notification that a person residing within 440
yards of a concrete batch plant under an exemption
from permitting or permit by rule adopted by the
commission is ary affected person who is entitled to
request a conte ted case hearing;

(D) the sta%;lent. “The facility’s compliance file,
if any exists/ is available for public review in the
regional office of the Texas Natural Resource Con-
servation Commission;” and

(11) fgr notices of municipal solid waste applica-
tions, a'statement that a person who may be affected
by the facility or proposed facility is entitled to
reqdest a contested case hearing from the
cofnmission. This statement must be printed in a
fgnt style or size that clearly provides emphasis and

istinguishes it from the remainder of the notice;

A
anc

(12) any additional information required by the
executive director or needed to satisfy public notice
requirements of any federally authorized program;

264

(] 4) for Class 3 modlﬁcatlons of hazardous indus-
trial solid waste permits the statement “The permit-
tees compliance history during the life of the permit
being modified is available from the agency contact
person.”
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(c) ‘Unless mailed notice is otherwise provided for
under this section, the chief clerk shall mail Notice
of Application and Preliminary Decision to those
listed -in §39.413 of this title (relating to Mailed
Notice). When notice of application and preliminary
decision by publication or by mail is required by
Subchapters G-L of this chapter, the text of the
notice must include the following information:

. (1) the information required by subsection (b)(1)-
(12) of this section;

(2) a brief description of public comment proce-
dures, including a description- of the manner in
which comments regarding the executive director’s
preliminary decision may be submitted, or a state-
ment in the notice for any permit application for
which there is an opportunity for contested case
hearing, that only relevant and material issues raised
during the comment period can be considered if a
contested case hearing is granted. The public com-
ment procedures must be printed in a font style or
size that clearly provides' emphasis and distin-
guishes it from the remainder of the notice;

(3) if the application is subject to final approval by
the executive director under Chapter 50 of this title
(relating to Action on Applications), a statement that
the executive director may issue final approval of the
application unless a timely contested case hearing
request or a timely request for reconsideration (if
applicable) is filed with the chief clerk after trans-
mittal of the executive director’s decision and re-
sponse to public comment;

(4) a summary of the executive director’s prelimi-
nary decision and:whether-the executive director
has prepared a draft permit; and

(5) the location, at-a public place in the county in
which the facility is located or ‘proposed ‘to be
located, at which a copy of the complete application
and-the: executive director’s preliminary -decision
are :available for review and copying;

- {6) the deadline ‘to file: comments or request a
public meeting. The notice should include a state-
ment that a public meeting will be held by the
executive director if requested by .a member of the
legislature who represents the general area where
the facility is to be located or there is substantial
public interest in the proposed activity;

(7) for radioactive material licenses under Chap-
ter 336 of this title (relating to Radioactive Sub-
stance Rules); if applicable, a statement that a writ-
ten environmental analysis on the application has
been prepared by the executive director, is available
to the public-forreview, and that written comments
may be submitted.

30 TAC § 39.413

(d) When notice of a public meeting or notice of 2
hearing by publication or by mail is required by
Subchapters: G-L of this chapter, the text of the
notice must include the following information:

(1) the mformanon required by subsection (b)(1)-
(3), (6)-(8), and (12) of this section;

(2) the date, time, and place of the meeting or
hearing, and a brief description of the nature and
purpose of the meeting or hearing, including the
applicable rules and procedures;

(3) for notices of public meetings only, 2 brief
description of public comment procedures, includ-
ing a description of the manner in which comments
regarding the executive director’s preliminary deci-
sion may be submitted and a statement in the notice
for any: permit application for whith there is an
opportunity -for-contested. case_hearing, that only
relevant and material issues raised during the com-
ment period can be considered if a contested case
hearing is granted. :

Source: The. provisions -of this §39. 411 adopted to.be effective
September 23, 1999, 24 TexReg 8190

Unless otherwise specified in Subchapters I‘;%f

this chapter (relating to Public Notice of Solid
Applications, Public Notice of Water ‘Quality Appli-

and. Public Notice  for .Radioactive Material Li-
censes), when this chapter requires Anailed notice,
the chief clerk shall mail notice to;

(1) the landowners named on tiie application map
or supplemental map, or the sHeet attached to the
application map or supplemerital map;

(2) the mayor.and health authorities of the city or
town in which the facility/s.or will be located or in
which waste is or will bé disposed of;

(3) The county judge and health authorities of the
county in which the facility is or will be located or in
which waste is or ill be disposed of;

(4) the Texas Department of Health;

(5) the Texag Parks and Wildlife Department;

(6) the T?és Railroad Commission;

(7). if applicable, local, state and federal agencies
for which notice is required in 40°Code. of Federal

Fe?Reg 18786;
8) if applicable, persons on a maﬂmg hst devel-
/éped and ‘maintained in-accordance with 46 CFR
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For the purposes of thlS paragraph a sxgmﬁca
change” is any change that would qualify as a Cl

3 permit modification under §305.69 of this ti le
(relating to Solid Waste Permit Modification at/the

paragraph do not apply to an application for
amendment under §305.62 of this title (rel
Amendment), correction under §50.45 of

is submitted for the sole purpose of ¢onducting
post-closure activities or post-closure ag¢tivities and
corrective action at a facility, unless application
is also for an initial permit for hazardous waste
management unit(s), or the applicafion is also for
renewal of the permit, where the renewal applica-
tion is proposing a significant change in facility
operations. /’1

(c) Notice of Receipt of Apph?/anon and Intent to

Obtain Permit. /

(1) On the executive direct/ér s receipt of an ap-
plication, or notice of intent/to file an application,
the chief clerk shall mail nt/jicé to the state senator
and representative who represent the area in which
the facility is or will be lgcated and to the persons
listed in §39.413 of thig title (relating to Mailed
Notice). For all hazardoys waste part B applications
for initial permits for hazardous waste management
units, hazardous wasfe part B permit applications
for major amendments, and hazardous waste part B
applications for renéwal of permits, the chief clerk
shall provide notic¢ to meet the requirements of this
subsection and 40/ CFR §124.32(b), which is adopted
by reference as amended and adopted in the CFR
through December 11, 1995, at 60 FedReg 63417,
and the execuv(b ve director shall meet the require-
ments of 40 ¢FR §124.32(c), which is adopted by
reference ? amended and adopted in the CFR

through Ded¢ember 11, 1995, at 60 FedReg 63417.
The requirg¢ments of this paragraph relating to 40
CFR §124/32(b)-(c) do not apply to an application
for minor amendment under §305.62 of this title,
correction under §50.45 of this title, or modification
under §305.69 of this title, or to an application that
is submitted for the sole purpose of conducting post-
closure activities or post-closure activities and cor-
rective action at a facility, unless the application is
also for an initial permit for hazardous waste man-
agement unit(s), or the application is also for re-
newal of the permit.

/ (2) After the executive director determines that

Lthe-application-is-administratively complete:

_
",

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

A o ! be & ec-b

this utle N otice under §39 4 18 wxll satlsfy the ice
of receipt of application required by §281:17(d) of
this title (relating to Notice of Receipt of Application
and Declaration of Administrative-Completeness).

(B) the executive director of chief clerk shall mail
notice of this determination along with a copy of the
application or sumyrary of its contents to the mayor
and health authOrity of a municipality in whose
territorial Jirhits or extraterritorial jurisdiction the
solid waste facility is located, and to the county
judge and the health authority of the county in

(d) Notice of Application and Preliminary Decision.
The notice required by §39.419 of this title shall be
published once as required by §39.405(H)(2) of this
title. In addition to the requirements of §39.419 of
this title, the following requirements apply.

(1) The applicant shall publish notice at least once
in a newspaper of general circulation in each county
which is adjacent or contiguous to each county in
which the facility is located. One notice may satisfy
the requirements of §39.405(f)(2) of this title and of
this subsection, if the newspaper meets the require-
ments of both rules.

(2) If the application concerns a hazardous waste
facility, the applicant shall broadcast notice of the
application on one or more local radio stations that
broadcast to an area that includes all of the county
in which the facility is located. The executive direc-
tor may require that the broadcasts be made to an
area that also includes contiguous counties.

(3) The notice shall comply with §39.411 of this
title. The deadline for public comments on industrial
solid waste applications shall be not less than 30
days after newspaper publication, and for hazard-
ous waste applications, not less than 45 days after
newspaper publication.

2

waste facility, the executive director shall hold a
public meeting in the county in which the facility is
to be located to recgive public comment concerning
the application. ¥ the applicant proposes a major
amendment of/an existing hazardous waste facility
permit, this §ubsection applies if a person affected

(1) ¥ the applicant}){r{oposes a new hazardous
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RECONSIDERATION AND CONTESTED CASE HEARINGS

§ 55.25. Public Comment Processing

executive director, the public interest counse]

the applicant copies of all doc
with the chief clerk in response
application.

(b) This subsection
i aste facilities, underground in-
exas Pollutant Discharge Elimina-
tion Syst (TPDES) permits. It applies to an

orization to manage the permitting program

“under-which-the-a

(1) Before an application is approved, the execu-
tive director shall prepare a response to all signifi-
cant public comment on the draft permit raised
during the public comment period. The response
shall specify the provisions of the draft permit that
have been changed in response to public comment
and the reasons for the changes. The executive
director shall make the response available to the
public,

(A) If the application is acted on by the commis-
sion under §50.13 of this title (relating to Action on
Application) or §55.27(a)(1) of this title (relating to
Commission Action on Hearing Request), the execu-
tive director’s response to public comment shall be
made available to the public and filed with the chief
clerk at least ten days before the commission acts on
the application. The commission shall consider all
public comment in making its decision and shall
either adopt the executive director’s response to
public comment or prepare its own response.

(B) If the application is approved by the executive
director under Chapter 50, Subchapter C of this title
(relating to Action by the ‘Executive Director), the
response to public comment should be made no
later than the time of the executive director’s action
on the application.

(2) The executive director may call and conduct
public meetings in response to public comment. A
public meeting is intended for the taking of public
comment, and is not a contested case proceeding
under the APA. The executive director shall hold a
public meeting when there is a significant degree of
public interest in a draft permit, or when required
by law. If a contested case hearing is held on the
application, the public meeting shall be conducted
as part of the preliminary hearing under §80.105 of
this title (relating to Preliminary Hearings), unless
the executive director specifies a different time and

30 TAC § 55.25

place for the public meeting. If the executive direc-
tor specifies a different time and place for the public
meeting, then public comment shall not be taken at
the preliminary hearing. This paragraph supersedes
and controls any conflict between this paragraph
and §80.105 of this title (relating to Preliminary
Hearings). The public comment period shall auto-
matically be extended to the close of any public
meeting. Public notice of the meeting shall be given
as required by commission rule. The applicant shall
attend any public meeting held by the executive
director. A tape recording or written transcript of
the public meeting shall be made available to the
public.

(3) Any person who failed to file timely public
comment, failed to file a timely hearing request,
failed to participate in the public meeting held under
this subsection, and failed to participate in the
public hearing held under Chapter 80 of this title
(relating to Contested Case Hearings) may file a
motion for rehearing under §50.19 of this title (re-
lating to Notice of Commission Action, Motion for
Rehearing) or §55.27 of this title (relating to Com-
mission Action on Hearing Request) or §80.271 of
this title (relating to Motion for Rehearing) or may
file a motion for reconsideration under §50.39 of
this title (relating to Motion for Reconsideration)
only to the extent of the changes from the draft
permit to the final permit decision.

commission may desxgnate an agency office to
cess public comment under this subsection.

(1) The designated office may evaluate 4nd re-
spond to public comment, other than timely hearing
requests, when appropriate.

(A) If the application and timely hefaring requests
are considered by the commissiox, the designated
office should prepare any resp
ment no later than ten days béfore the commission
meeting at which the compiission will evaluate the
hearing requests. The response shall be made avail-
able to the public and filed with the chief clerk.

(B) 1fthe application is approved by the executive
director under Chapter 50, Subchapter C of this
title, any respofise to public comment should be
made no later than the time of the executive direc-
tor's action on the application.

(2) Thé designated office shall hold a public meet-
ing when there is a significant degree of public
intefest or when otherwise appropriate to assure

equate public participation. A public meeting is

Zintended-for-the taking of public.comment, and is.

299
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NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

-~Source:-The-provisions-of this-§55-150-adeptedto-be-effective- § 55.154. Public Meetings

October-20,-1999,-24-TexReg-9015

§ 55.152. Public Comment Period

clerk within the time penod specxﬁed in the notice
The public comment period shall end 30 days a
the last publication of the Notice of Application a’nd
Preliminary Decision, except that the time petriod
shall end:

(1) 30 days after the last publication of N;{tice of
Receipt of Application and Intent to Obtaif Permit
under §39.418 of this title (relating t‘;}é‘oﬁce of
Receipt of Application and Intent to Obtain Permit),
or 30 days after Notice of Application and Prelimi-
nary Decision if a second notice is rgﬁuired under
§39.419 of this title (relating to Notic¢ of Application
and Preliminary Decision), for an au?apphcatxon not
otherwise specified in this sectxon/

(2) 15 days after the last publ}éatlon of Notice of
Receipt of Application and Imght to Obtain Permit
under §39.418 of this title, or 30 days after Notice of
Application and Preliminary Decision if a second
notice is required under §39.419 of this title, for a
permit renewal under Chapter 116 of this title
(relating to Control of Air Pollution by Permits for
New Construction or nyodiﬁcation) or a concrete
batch plant exemption from permitting or permit by
rule under Chapter 106 of this title (relating to
Exemptions from P?i;mitting);

(3) 45 days after}fthe last publication of the notice
of Application an,d Preliminary Decision for an ap-
plication for a /azardous waste facility permit, or to
amend, extend; or renew or to obtain a Class 3
Modification 2 such a permit, or 30 days after the
publication ‘?f Notice of Application and Preliminary
Decision for Class 3 modifications of non-hazardous
industrial $olid waste permits;

“@ 30;*éays after the mailing of the notice of draft
produ;{fon area authorization under Chapter 331 of

this title (relating to Underground Injection Con-
trol);/

(3) the time specified in commission rules for
ogﬁer specific types of applications; or

f (6) as extended by the executive director for good

(b) The public comment period shall automati-
cally be extended 1o the close of any public meeting.

Source: The provisions of this §55.152 adopted to be effective
October 20, 1999, 24 TexReg 9015

(a) A public meeting is intended for the taking of
public comment, and is not a contested case under
the APA.

(b) During technical review of the application, the
applicant, in cooperation with the executive direc-
tor, may hold a public meeting in the county in
which the facility is located or proposed to be
located in order to inform the public about the
application and obtain public input.

(c) At any time, the executive director or Office of
Public Assistance may hold public meetings. The
executive director or Office of Public Assistance
shall hold a public meeting if:

(1) the executive director determines that there is
a substantial or significant degree of public interest
in an application;

(2) a member of the legislature who represents
the general area in which the facility is located or
proposed to be located requests that a public meet-
ing be held; or

(3) when a public meeting is otherwise required
by law.

(d) The applicant shall attend any public meeting
held by the executive director or Office of Public
Assistance. A tape recording or written transcript of
the public meeting shall be made available to the
public.

{e) Public notice of the meeting shall be given as
required by §39.411(d) of this title (relating to Text of
Public Notice).

Source: The provisions of this §55.154 adopted to be effective
October 20, 1999, 24 TexReg 9015

§ 55.156. Public Comment Processing

sel, the Office of Pubhc Assistance,-#€ director of
the Alternative Dispute Resolufion Office, and the
applicant copies of all. documents filed with the chief
clerk in respons€ 1o public notice of an application.

F'comments are received, the following pro-

’ j ] ] :l . ; . .

304

(1) Before an application is approved, the execu-
tive director shall prepare a response to all timely,
relevant and material, or significant public com-
ment, whether or not withdrawn, and specify if a
comment has been withdrawn. The response shall
specify the provisions of the draft permit that have
been changed in response to public comment and
the reasons for the changes.
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cations under §§281 30 281.32 of thIS ntle (relatmé
to Applicability of Prioritization Procedure for Com-
mercial Hazardous Waste; Definitions; Prioritiza-
tion Process). /

Source: The provisions of this §281.1 adopted to be effec)f( ve May
28, 1986, 11 TexReg 2312; amended to be effective November 7,
1994, 19 TexReg 8542.

§ 281.2. Applicability /

These sections are applicable to the px}écessing of:

(1) applications for new, amended/ or renewed
water use permits, certificates of adjudication and
certified filings, and extensions of tm;fe to commence
and/or complete construction of water use facilities;

(2) applications for new, ameﬁded, or renewed
wastewater discharge permits;

(3) applications for new, a/mended, or renewed
injection well permits;

{4) applications for new, gmended, or modified or
renewed industrial solid d/or municipal hazard-
ous waste permits filed rsuant to §335.2 of this
title (relating to Permit/Required) and §335.43 of
this title (relating to Peymit Required) or for new or
amended compliance plans filed pursuant to §305.

401 of this title (relaging to Compliance Plan);

(5) applications for plan approval of reclamation
projects (levees, eit.);

(6) applicatior}é for creation of water districts;

(7) water di {nct applications and petitions re-
quiring comn}issmn approval;

8) apph?/uons for weather modification permits
and licenses;

(9) applications for new or amended certificates
of converience and necessity;

(10) applications for new, amended, or renewed
municipal solid waste permits; and

(11) applications for new, amended, or renewed
radjoactive material licenses.

Source: The provisions of this §281.2 adopted to be effective May
28, 1986, 11 TexReg 2312; amended to be effective July 14, 1987; 17
xReg 2102; amended to be effective January 7, 1993, 17 TexReg
B124; amended to be effective November 7, 1994, 19 TexReg 8542;
/ nded-to} ; » -

Initial Review

§ 281.3.
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~aIrecton:

(relating to Permit Required) or §331 7 of ‘
{relating to Permit Required) shall be re

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMM!SSION

(c) For applications involving hazardous waste
under the Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act, Texas
Health and Safety Code, Chapter 361, applicants for
existing hazardous waste management facilities shall
have 30 days from receipt of notice of deficiency in
a Part A permit application to respond to the notifi-
cation and to explain or cure the alleged deficiency
in the Part A application. Applicants shall be af-
forded this opportunity to cure the deficiencies be-
fore the executive director may pursue enforcement
action concermng deficient apphcanons

tltle (relatmg 10 Raéwacnve Substance Ruies) f})‘;
issuance or renewal of a license, or for major
amendments to a license, shall be reviewed for

receipt of the application by the executive
Applications for minor -amendments s
viewed for administrative completenesg within 30
days after receipt of the application by he executive
director.

Seurce: The provisions of this §281.3 adop ed to be effective May
28, 1986, 11 TexReg 2312; amended to be effective July 14, 1987, 12
TexReg 2102; amended to be effective Jaguary 7, 1993, 17 TexReg
9124; amended to be effective June 5, 1897, 22 TexReg 4581.

~§ 281.4. Applications fof Use of State Water

Applications for the usé of state water must in-

clude:

(1) complete applic,a!{ion form(s), signed and no-
tarized;

(2) the payment/of fees in accordance with 88295,
131-295.139 of Ahis title (relating to Water Use
Permit Fees);

(3) the v;/l;f(ﬁed legal status of the applicant;

(4) apprgpriate ownership documents (including
easements and consents);

{5 aa{ adequate map or plat;
(6)/the required engineering plans or studies; and
(7y any other information as the executive direc-

/t,efr or the commission may reasonably require.
Source: The provisions of this §281.4 adopted to be effective May

Y. PRI S o 5245
2SI B N S {79 X oS o
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CONSOLIDATED PERMITS
Section

305.127. - Conditions To Be Determined for Individual
Permits.

305.128. Signatories 10 Reports.
305.129. Variance Procedures,

SUBCHAPTER G. ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS
FOR HAZARDOUS AND INDUSTRIAL SOLID
WASTE STORAGE, PROCESSING, OR
DISPOSAL PERMITS

305.141. Applicability.

305.142. Duty To Comply.

305.143. Recordkeeping.

305.144. Certification and Inspection.

305.145. Release or Discharges of Solid Waste.

305.147. Monitoring of Commercial Hazardous Waste
. Management Facility Operations.

305.148. Impact of New Hazardous Waste Management

. Facilities on Local Land Use.

305.149. Time Limitation for Construction of Commer-
cial Hazardous Waste Management Units.
305.150. Incorporation of References.

SUBCHAPTER H. ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS
FOR INJECTION WELL PERMITS
305.151. Applicability. ;
305.152. Corrective Action.
305.154. Standards.
305.155. Production Area Authorization.
305.156. Hazardous Waste. : '
305.157. Record Retention. - '
305.158. Additional Conditions,
305.159. Additional Class 1 Conditions.

SUBCHAPTER I. HAZARDOUS WASTE
INCINERATOR PERMITS
303.171. Determining Operational Readiness.

305.172. Determining Feasibility of Compliance and Ad-
equate Operating Conditions.

305.173. Operation Prior to Final Amendment of the
Permit.

305.174. Existing Incinerators. -

305.175. Conditional Exemption for Demonstrating Com-
) - pliance with Certain Air Standards.

SUBCHAPTER J. PERMITS FOR LAND
TREATMENT DEMONSTRATIONS USING FIELD
TESTS OR LABORATORY ANALYSES

305.181. Treatment Demonstration Permit.
305.182. Two-Phase Facility Permit.

305.183. Certification. . . -

305.184. Permit Amendment or Modification.

SUBCHAPTER K. RESEARCH,
DEVELOPMENT, AND DEMONSTRATION
PERMITS
305.191. Applicability and Scope.
305.192. Waiver of Requirements.
305.193. Termination.
305.194. Renewal.

SUBCHAPTER L. GROUNDWATER
COMPLIANCE PLAN
305.401. Compliance Plan.

1661
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SUBCHAPTER M. WASTE TREATMENT
INSPECTION FEE PROGRAM
305.501. Purpose.
305.502. Definitions and Abbreviations.
305.503. Fee Assessment.
305.504. Fee Payment.
305.505. Fund.
305.506. Cancellation, Revocation, and Transfer.
305.507. Failure To Make Payment.

SUBCHAPTER N. ADOPTION OF
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BY
REFERENCE

305.521. Adoption of Memorandum of Understanding by
Reference.

SUBCHAPTER O. ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS
AND PROCEDURES FOR WASTEWATER
DISCHARGE PERMITS AND SEWAGE SLUDGE
PERMITS
305,531, Establishing and Calculating Additional Condi-

tions and Limitations for TPDES Permits.
305.532. Adoption of Appendices by Reference.
305.533." Adoption of Environmental Protection Agency
Issued Permnits and Pretreatment Programs.
305.534. New Sources and New.Dischargers.
305.535. Bypasses from TPDES Permitted Facilities; Mini-
mum Requirements for TPDES Permitted
. . Facilities. :
305.536. Recauiremems for Applications and Permits with
i © 7 Sludge Related Conditions.
305.537. Reporting Requirements for Planned Physical
Changes to a Permitted Facility.
305.538. Prohibitions for TPDES Permits.
305.539. Additional Requirements for Shrimp Aquacul-
o ture Facilities Within the Coastal Zone.

. SUBCHAPTER P EFFLUENT GUIDELINES
~ _ AND, STANDARDS FOR TPDES PERMITS

305.541. _ Effluent Guidelines and Standards for Texas

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
© Permits. L
SUBCHAPTER Q. PERMITS FOR BOILERS
AND INDUSTRIAL FURNACES BURNING

-~ HAZARDOUS WASTE

'305.571. Applicability.

305.572. Permit and Trial Burn Requirements.

-305.573. Interim Status and Trial Burn Requirements.

SUBCHAPTER A. GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 305.1. Scope and Applicability

(a) The provisions of this chapter set the stan-
dards and requirements for applications, permits,
and actions by the commission to carry out the
responsibilities for management of waste disposal
activities under the Texas Water Code, Chapters 26,
27, and 28, and the Texas Health and Safety Code,
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lutants from any point source to waters in the statez
Such permits are designated as Texas pollutant
discharge elimination system (TPDES). The te
“NPDES,” “pollutant,” "point source,” and “waters
in the state” are defined in Texas Water Code f§26
001. /

(1) The following are point sources requir,ing TP-
DES permits for discharges:

(A) concentrated animal feeding oper;étxons as
defined in Chapter 321, Subchapter B of this title
(relating to Commercial Livestock and Poultry Pro-
duction Operations);

(B) concentrated aquatic animal pAﬁoduction fa-
cilities as defined in 40 Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) §122.24;

(C) discharges into aquacultur / projects as set
forth in 40 CFR §122.25;

(D} discharges from separate storm sewers as set
forth in 40 CFR §122.26; and

(E) silvicultural point sourdes as defined in 40
CFR 8122.27.

(2) The TPDES permit p;zogram also applies to
owners or operators of any freatment works treating
domestic sewage, unless allrequirements implement-
ing the Clean Water Act QCWA), §405(d), applicable
1o the treatment works treating domestic sewage are
included in a permit iséued under the appropriate
provisions of Subtitle/C, the Federal Solid Waste
Disposal Act, the Safé Drinking Water Act, Part C,
the Marine Protectign, Research, and Sanctuaries
Act of 1972, or the Clean Air Act, or under state
permit programs approved by the regional adminis-
trator as adequate to assure compliance with the
CWA, §405.

(3) The execytive director may designate any per-
son subject to Ahe standards for sewage sludge use
and disposal as a “treatment works treating domes-
tic sewage” s defined in §305.2 of this title (relating
to Definitions), where the executive director finds
that a permit is necessary to protect public health
and the ¢nvironment from the adverse effects of
sewage gludge or to ensure compliance with the
technical standards for sludge use and disposal
developed under the CWA, 8405(d). Any person
designated as a treatrnent works treating domestic
sewgge shall submit an application for a permit
within 120 days of being notified by the executive
dh;éctor that a permit is required. The executive
ditector’s decision to designate a person as a treat-
r;&nt works treating domestic sewage shall be stated

 basis for i}

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION
of Texas, . itsfor the-disch f ool

Source: The provisions of this §305.1 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2591; amended to be effeciive October 8,
1990, 15 TexReg 5492; amended to be effective Septemnber 14,
2000, 25 TexReg 8974

8§ 305.2. Definitions

The definitions contained in the Texas Water Code,
§§26.001, 27.002, and 28.001, and the Texas Health
and Safety Code, §8361.003, 401-003;-and-401-004;
shall apply to this chapter. The following words and
terms, when used in this chapter, shall have the
following meanings, unless the context clearly indi-
cates otherwise.

(1) Application—A formal written request for com-
mission action relative to a permit, either on com-
mission forms or other approved writing, together
with all materials and documents submitted to com-
plete the application.

stream from any portion of a treatment facility.

(3) Class I sludge management facility—Any pub-
licly owned treatment works (POTW) identifried un-
der 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CER), §403.
10(a) as being required to have aw approved
pretreatment program and any other tpéatment works
treating domestic sewage classifiéd as a Class 1
sludge management facility by e regional admin-
istrator in conjunction with the executive director
because of the potential forits sludge use or disposal
practices to adversely affect public health and the
environment.

(4) Component—<Any constituent part of a unitor
any group of corstituent parts of a unit which are

/Lh?.n"s of the facility, except for infrequent shutdowns
T

maintenance, process changes, or other similar

activities

(6) Corrective action management unit
(CAMU)—An area within a facility that is designated
by the commission under 40 CFR, Part 264, Subpart
S, for the purpose of implementing corrective action
requirements under 8335.167 of this title (relating to
Corrective Action for Solid Waste Management Units)
and Texas Water Code, §7.031 (relating to Corrective
Action Relating to Hazardous Waste). A CAMU shall
only be used for the management of remediation
wastes while implementing such corrective action
requirements at the facility.

{7} CWA—Clean-Water-Act-Hormerly-referred-1o-

»a&ﬁae%éerai—&%@eﬁ%ﬂaﬁe&%&ﬁk@éﬁml—&e&eﬁ
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1972) Pubhc Law 92»500 as amended by Publ

Law 95-217, Public Law 95-576, Public Law 96~
483, and Public Law 97-117, 33 United States Cdde,
1251 et seq.

(8) Daily average concentration—The arithmetic
average of all effluent samples, composite,/or grab
as required by this permit, within a perigd of one
calendar month, consisting of at least foyr separate
representative measurements.

{(A) For domestic wastewater treat fent plants—
When four samples are not availablg in a calendar
month, the arithmetic average (weighted by flow) of
all values in the previous four cdnsecutive month
period consisting of at least four mheasurements shall
be utilized as the daily average/concentration.

(B) For all other wastewatér treatment plants—
When four samples are not available in a calendar
month, the arithmetic aversgge (weighted by flow) of
all values taken during the/month shall be utilized as
the daily average concentration.

{9) Daily average flow-—The arithmetic average of
all determinations of/the daily discharge within a
period of one calendar month. The daily average
flow determinatiory shall consist of determinations
made on at least four separate days. If instantaneous
measurements are used to determine the daily dis-
charge, the detetmination shall be the average of all
instantaneous/ measurements taken during a 24-
hour period gr during the period of daily discharge
if less than 24 hours. Daily average flow determina-
tion for intermittent discharges shall consist of a
minimurd of three flow determinations on days of
discharge. R

(10) Direct discharge—The dlscharge of a

(12) Disposal—The dlscharge deposxt injection,
dumping, spilling, leaking, or placing of any solid,
fiquid, or hazardous waste into or-on any land, or
into or adjacent to any water in the state so that such
waste or any constituent thereof may enter the
environment or be emitted into the air or discharged
into or adjacent to any waters, including
groundwaters.

(13) Disposal facility—A facility or part of a facil-
ity at which solid waste is intentionally placed into
or on any land or water, and at which waste will
remain after closure. The term disposal facility does

30 TAC § 305.2

not include a corrective action management unit
into which remedlatxon wastes are piaced

(1 6) Facxhtywincludes

(A} all contiguous land and fixtures, structures, or
appurtenances used for storing, processing, treat-
ing, or disposing of waste, or for injection activities.
A facility may consist of several storage, processing,
treatment, disposal, or injection operational units;

(B) for the purpose of implementing corrective
action under §335.167 of this title (relating to Cor-
rective Action for Solid Waste Management Units),
all contiguous property under the control of the
owner or operator seeking a permit for the storage,
processing, and/or disposal of hazardous waste. This
definition also applies to facilities implementing
corrective action under the Texas Water Code, §7.
031 {relating to Corrective Action Relating to Haz-
ardous Waste);

(17) Facility mailing list—The mailing list for a
facility maintained by the commission in accor-
dance with 40 CFR, §124.10(c){1)Xix) and 839.7 of
this title (relating to Public Notice). For Class 1
injection well underground injection control (UIC)
permits, the mailing list also includes the agencies
described in 40 CFR §124 10(0)(1)(v1n)

waste piles, surface 1mpoundments land farms and
mjectaon weﬂs

(23) New-discharger—
~Any building, structure, facility, or installa-

Dt
LIIETL
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pollutants;

(ii) that did not commence the discharge of pol-
lutants at a particular site prior to August 13,1979;

(iii) which is not a new source; and /

(iv) which has never received a finally effective
NPDES permit for discharges at that site.

{B) This definition includes an/indirect dis-
charger which commences dischayging into water
of the United States after Augusy 13, 1879. It also
includes any existing mobile point source (other
than an offshore or coastal oil and gas exploratory
drilling rig or a coastal oil/and gas developmental
drilling rig) such as a seglood processing rig, sea-
food processing vessel/ or aggregate plant, that
begins discharging ay’a site for which it does not
have a permit.

(24) New sourcé—Any building structure, facility,
or installation ffom which there is or may be =z
discharge (:ii}s@llutants, the construction of which
commence

(A) a\f:ez/ promulgation of standards of perfor
mance yhder CWA, 8306; or

{B) 4fter proposal of standards of performance in
accofdance with CWA, §306, which are applicable
to such souarce, but only if the standards are promul-
ted in accordance with §306 within 120 days of
ir-proposak

(23) Operator—The person responsible for the
overall operation of a facility.

{27) Owner—The person who owns a facility or
part of a facility.

(28) Permit—A written document issued by the
commission which, by its conditions, may authorize
the permittee to construct, install, modify, or oper-
ate, in accordance with stated limitations, a speci-
fied facility for waste discharge, for solid waste
storage, processing, or disposal, for radicactive ma-
terial disposal, or for underground injection, and
includes a wastewater discharge permit, a solid
waste permit, a radioactive material disposal li-
cense, and an injection well permit.

(29) Person—An individual, corporation, organi-
zation, government, governmental subdivision or
agency, business trust, estate, partnership, or any
other legal entity or association.

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

{relating to Adoption of Appendices by Reference).

(31) Process wastewater—Any-water which, dur-
ing manufacturing or €ssing, comes into direct
contact with mlgp from the production or use of
anx/raw/rﬁgteriai, intermediate product, finished

~product-byproduct-or-waste-product—

(32) Processing—The extraction of materials,
transfer or volume reduction, conversion to energy,
or other separation and preparation of waste for
reuse or disposal, and includes the treatment or
neutralization of hazardous waste s0 as to render
such waste nonhazardous, safer for transport, or
amenable to recovery, storage or volume reduction.
The meaning of transfer as used here, does not
include the conveyance or transport off-site of solid

Any device or system used in the treatment {(inclugd-
ing recycling and reclamation) of municipal sewgge
or industrial wastes of a liquid nature which is
owned by the state or a municipality. This deﬁ?ﬂiﬁon
includes sewers, pipes, or other conveyanceg only if
they convey wastewater to a POTW ?i‘oviding
treatment. /

(34) Radioactive material—A naturally occurring
or artificially produced solid, liquid/ or gas that
emits radiation spontaneously, /

(35) Recommencing discharger/-A source which
recommences discharge after tezfinating operations,

(36) Regional administrator~~Except when used
in conjunction with the wolx;ds “state director,” or
when referring to EPA approval of a state program,
where there is a referencé in the EPA regulations
adopted by reference in this chapter to the “regional
administrator” or to t}} “director,” the reference is
more properly made, for purposes of state law, to the
executive director the Texas Natural Resource
Conservation Cominission, or to the Texas Natural
Resource Conserliation Commission, consistent with
the organization of the agency as set forth in the
Texas Water Qéde, Chapter 5, Subchapter B. When
used in conjinction with the words “state director”
in such regulations, regional administrator means
the regional administrator for the Region VI office of
the EPA/or his or her authorized representative. A
copy of 40 CFR, Part 122, is available for inspection
at the library of the Texas Natural Resource Conser-
vatjon Commission, located on the first floor of
Building A at 12100 Park 35 Circle, Austin, Texas.

~{30)-Primaryindustry-category—Anyvindustry cat-— jj {37) Remediation waste-—Al] solid and hazardous

-egory—tisted—in—40—CFR—Part—122;-Appendix—a;
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of this title (relating to Correcfive Action Program)
or §335.167(c) of this title. '

(38) Schedule of coms?&zce—;\ schedule of re-
medial measures included in a permit, including an
enforceable sequence of interim requirements {e.g.,

actions, operations, of milestone events) leading to
compliance with CWA and regulations.

{39) Severe property damage—Substantial physi-

cal damage to property, damage to treatment facili-
ties which cayses them to become inoperable, or
substantial and permanent loss of natural resources
which can/feasonably be expected 16 occur in the
absence gl a discharge. Severe property damage
mean economic loss caused by delays in

(41) Site—The Iand or water area where any
facility or activity is physically located or conducted,
including adjacent land used in connection with the
facility or activity. :

(42) Solid waste permit—A perm;t xssued under
Texas Civil Starutes, Article 4477-7, as amended.

(43) Storage—The holding of waste for a tempo-
rary period, at the end of which the waste is pro-
cessed, recycled, disposed of or stored elsewhere.

44) . Fe nollutant disch e elimination-svstem

(TPDES)—«—The state program for issuing, arperding,
terminating, monitoring, and enforcingpermits, and
imposing and enforcing pretregtiént requirements,
under CWA, §8307, 402, 318, and 405; Texas Water
Code; and Texas Admiinistrative Code regulations.
(45) Toxic-pollutant—Any pollutant listed as toxic
under-tiie CWA, §307{a) or, in the case of sludge use
oF—dispesal-prac ,,---,,.,.,-,,-»-

30 TAC § 305.3

{46) Treatment works treating domestic sewage—/A
POTW or any other sewage sludge or wastewater
treatment devices or systems, regardless of owner-
ship (including federal-facilities), used in the /stor-
age, treatment, recycling, and reclamation of sew-
age or municipal waste, including land dedicated
for the disposal of sewage sludge. This d¢finition
does not include septic tanks or similar devices.

(47) Variance—Any mechanism or provision un-
der CWA, §301 or §316, or under Chaptey 308 of this
title (relating to Criteria and Standards for the
National Pollutant Discharge Elimindtion System)
which allows modification to or waiyer of the gen-
erally applicable effluent limitation r’eqmrements or
time deadlines of CWA or this title

(48) Wastewater discharge perfnit—A permit is-
sued under Texas Water Code, C/z:pter 26.

(49) Wetlands—Those areas that are inundated or
saturated by surface or groundwater at a frequency
and duration sufficient to support, and that under
normal circumstances do sypport, a prevalence of
vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil
conditions. Wetlands gerferally include swamps,
marshes, -bogs, and similar areas and constitute
water in the state.

Source: The provisions of /this §305.2 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2391; amended to be effective October 8,
1990, 15 TexReg 5492; amended to be effective November 23, 1993,
18 TexReg 8215; amended/to be effective February 22, 1994, 19
TexReg 941; amended togé effective December 1, 1997, 22 TexReg
11391; amended 1o be effective August 8, 1999, 24 TexReg 5879;
amended to be effecti\}é Seplember 14, 2000, 25 TexReg 8974;
amended 10 be effecti\{g November 15, 2001, 26 TexReg 9123.

§ 305.3. Ab ;'eviations

The following abbreviations, when used in this
chapter, shall/have the following meanings, unless
the context clearly indicates otherwise,

(1) CFR-#Code of Federal Regulations.

(2) CWA—Clean Water Act.

(3) DMR—Discharge monitoring report.

(4) EPA—United States Environmental Protec-
tion-Agency. ’

(5) NPDES—National pollutant discharge elimi-
natigh system.

(6) POTW—Publicly owned treatment works.

7) TPDES—Texas pollutant discharge elimina-
tjon system.

/ Seurce: The provisions of this §305.3 adopted to be effective
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SUBCHAPTER B. EMERGENCY ORDERS,

TEMPORARY ORDERS, AND EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR AUTHORIZATIONS

{30521 Emergency Ordersand femperary Or—/

ders Authorized

The commission or executive director may jssue
emergency orders, or the commission ma)/iisue
temporary orders, relating to the discharge 6f waste
or pollutants into or adjacent to any water in the
state under Texas Water Code, §5.509, 4nd Chapter
35 of this title (relating to Emergengy and Tempo-
rary Orders and Permits; Temporary Suspension or
Amendment of Permit Conditio

Source: The provisions of this §30521 adopted 10 be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2391; amentled to be effective October 8,
1950, 15 TexReg 5492; amended to Pe effective December 10, 1998,
23 TexReg 12440,

8 305.29. Emergercy Orders for Solid Waste
Activities

The commissiol or executive director may issue a
mandatory or pfohibitory emergency order regard-
ing any activity of solid waste management within
its jurisdiction under Texas Water Code, §5.512 and
Chapter 35 of this title (relating to Emergency and
Temporary Orders and Permits; Temporary Suspen-
sion of Amendment of Permit Conditions).

rce: The provisions of this §305.29 adopted to be effective
Jugie 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2591; amended to be effective February

L, 1997, 22 TexReg 1168; amended to be effective December 10,
4998,-23 TexReg-12446.-

¥

§ 305.30. Emergency Actions Concerning Haz-
ardous Waste

The commission or executive director may issue
an emergency administrative order relating to haz-
ardous waste under Texas Water Code, §5.512 and
Chapter 35 of this title {(relating to Emergency and
Temporary Orders and Permits; Temporary Suspen-
sion or Amendment of Permit Conditions).

Source: The provisions of this §305.30 adopted to be effecme
December 10, 1998, 23 TexReg 12440,

NATURAL RESGURCE CONSERVATIOE\ COMMISSION

SUBCHAPTER C. APPLICATION FOR
PERMIT

§ 305.41. Applicability

The sections of this subchapter apply to permit
applications required to be filed with the commis-
sion for authorization under Texas Water Code Chap-
ters 26, 27 and 28, and Texas Health and Safety
Code Chapters 361 -and-404-—

Source: The provisions of this §305.41 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2593; amended to be effective June 5
1997, 22 TexReg 4583.

§ 305.42. Application Required

{a) Any person who is required to obtain a permit,
or who requests an amendment, modifcation, or
renewal of a permit, shall complete, sign, and sub-
mit an application to the executive director, accord-
ing to the provisions of this chapter.

(b} For applications involving hazardous waste,
persons currently authorized to continue hazardous
waste management under interim status in compli-
ance with §335.2(c) of this title (relating to Permit
Required) and Texas Health and Safety Code, §361.
082(e) shall apply for permits when required by the
executive director. Owners or operators shall be
allowed at least six months from the date of request
to submit a Part B permit application. Owners or
operators of existing hazardous waste management
facilities may voluntarily submit Part B of the appli-
cation at any time. However, owners or operators of
existing hazardous waste management facilities must
submit Part B permit applications in accordance
with the dates specified in 40 Code of Federal
Regulations §270.73. Owners or operators of land
disposal facilities in existence on the effective date of
statutory or regulatory amendments under Texas
Health and Safety Code, Chapter 361, or the Re-
source Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as
amended, 42 United States Code, §86901 et seq.,
that render the facility subject to the requirement 1o
have a hazardous waste permit must submit a Part B
permit application in accordance with the dates
specified in 40 Code of Federal Regulations, §270.73
and certify that such a facility is in compliance with
all applicable groundwater monitoring and financial
responsibility requirements.
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ules) shall consist of one
copies. The executive director may reguést addi-
tional copies. Copies of an application for a low-
level radioactive waste dispogatlicense under Chap-
ter 336, Subchapter H-¢f this title (relating to
Licensing Requiremenis for Near-Surface Land Dis-
posal of Low-EEvel Radioactive Waste) shall be
retained by the applicant for distribution in accor-
nce”with written instructions from the executive

{d) For applications involving hazardous waste
management facilities for which the owner or op-
erator has submitted Part A of the permit applica-
tion and has not yet filed Part B, the owner or
operator is subject to the requirements for updating
the Part A application under 40 Code of Federal
Regulations §270.10(g), as amended and adopted in
the Code of Federal Regulations through June 29,
1995, (see 60 FedReg 33911),

disposal well permits shall
dance with this-ehapter for the benefit of the state
its-natural-resources.

Source: The provisions of this §305.42 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2593; amended to be effective July 14,
1987, 12 TexReg 2102; amended to be effective August 30, 1988, 13
TexReg 4071; amended to be effective October 29, 1990, 15 TexReg
6015; amended to be effective June 5, 1997, 22 TexReg 4583;
amended to be effective October 19, 1998, 23 TexReg 10653;
amended o be effective September 14, 2000, 25 TexReg 8974;
amended to be effective December 16, 2001, 26 TexReg 10102,

§ 305.43. Who Applies

Sysia ©

{(b) For solid waste and hazardous waste permit
applications, it is the duty of the owner of a facility
to submit an application for a permit, unless a
facility is owned by one person and operated by
another, in which case it is the duty of the operator
to submit an application for a permit.

Source: The provisions of this §305.43 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2393; amended to be effective July 14,
1987, 12 TexReg 2102; amended 1o be effective October 8, 1990, 15
TexReg 5492.

§ 305.44. signatories to Applications
{a) All applications shall be signed as follows.

30 TAC § 305.44

(1) For a corporation, the application shall be
signed by a responsible corporate officer. For pur-
poses of this paragraph, a responsible corporate
officer means a president, secretary, treasurer, or
vice-president of the corporation in charge of a
principal business function, or any other person
who performs similar policy or decision-making
functions for the corporation; or the manager of one
or more manufacturing, production, or operating
facilities employing more than 250 persons or hav-
ing gross annual sales or expenditures exceeding
825 million (in second-quarter 1980 dollars), if au-
thority to sign documents has been assigned or
delegated to the manager in accordance with corpo-
rate procedures. Corporate procedures governing
authority to sign permit applications may provide
for assignment or delegation to applicable corporate
positions rather than to specific individuals.

(2) For a partnership or sole proprietorship, the
application shall be signed by a general partner or
the proprietor, respectively.

(3) For a municipality, state, federal, or other
public agency, the application shall be signed by
either a principal executive officer or a ranking
elected official. For purposes of this paragraph, a
principal executive officer of a federal agency in-
cludes the chief executive officer of the agency, or a
senjor executive officer having responsibility for the
overall operations of a principal geographic unit of
the agency (e.g., regional administrator of the United
States Environmental Protection Agency).

{(b) A person signing an application shall make the
following certification: “I certify under penalty of
law that this decument and all attachments were
prepared under my direction or supervision in ac-
cordance with a system designed to assure that
qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the
information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the
person or persons who manage the system, or those
persons directly responsible for gathering the infor-
mation, the information submitted is, to the best of
my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and
complete. 1 am aware there are significant penalties
for submitting false information, including the pos-
sibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations,”

(¢) For hazardous solid waste permit applica-
tions, the owner and operator of a facility must sign
the application.
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. 1 lication.
Source: The provisions of this §305.44 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2591; amended to be effective July 14,
1987, 12 TexReg 2102; amended to be effective October 8, 1990, 15

TexReg 5492; amended o0 be effective June 5, 1997, 22 TexReg
4583,

§ 305.45. Contents of Application for Permit

(a) Forms for permit applications will be made
available by the executive director. Each application
for permit shall include the following:

(1) the name, mailing address, and location of the
facility for which the application is submitted;

(2) the ownership status as federal, state, private,
public, or other entity;

{3) the applicant’s name, mailing address, and
telephone number;

{4) a brief description of the nature of the busi-
ness;

(5) the activities conducted by the applicant which
require a permit;

{6) a topographic map, ownership map, county
highway map, or a map prepared by a regisiered
professional engineer or a registered surveyor which
shows the facility and each of its intake and dis-
charge structures and any other structure or loca-
tion regarding the regulated facility and associated
activities. Maps must be of material suitable for a
permanent record, and shall be on sheets 8-1/2
inches by 14 inches or folded to that size, and shall
be on a scale of not less than one inch equals one
mile. The map shall depict the approximate bound-
aries of the tract of land owned or to be used by the
applicant and shall extend at least one mile beyond
the tract boundaries sufficient to show the following:

(A) each well, spring, and surface water body or
other water in the state within the map area;

(B) the general character of the areas adjacent to
the facility, including public roads, towns and the
nature of development of adjacent lands such as
residential, commercial, agricultural, recreational,
undeveloped, and so forth;

{C) the location of any waste disposal activities
conducted on the tract not included in the applica-
tion;

{D) the ownership of tracts of land adjacent to the
facility and within a reasonable distance from the
proposed point or points of discharge, deposit, in-
jection, or other place of disposal or activity;

(E) such other information that reasonably may
be requested by the executive director;

(7} alisting of all permits or construction approv-
als received or applied for under any of the follow-
ing programs:

NATURAL RESQOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

(A) Hazardous Waste Management program un-
der the Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act;

(B) Underground Injection Control (UIC) Pro-
gram under the Texas Injection Well Act;

{C) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination Sys-
tem (NPDES) Program under the Federal Clean
Water Act (CWA) and Waste Discharge Program
under the Texas Water Code, Chapter 26;

(D) Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD)
Program under the Federal Clean Air Act;

(E) Nonattainment Program under the Federal
Clean Air Act;

(F) national emission standards for hazardous
pollutants (NESHAPS) preconstruction approval un-
der the Clear Air Act;

(G) ocean dumping permits under the Marine
Protection Research and Sanctuaries Act;

{H) dredge or fill permits under of the Federal
Clean Water Act;

B . a5 Radiation_C L
Act-and—

{J) other environmental permits;

(8) Supplementary technical report. A supplemen-
tary technical report shall be submitted in connec-
tion with an application. The report shall be pre-
pared either by a Texas registered professional
engineer, or by a qualified person who is competent
and experienced in the field to which the application
relates and thoroughly familiar with the operation
or project for which the application is made. The
report shall include the following:

(A) a general description of the facilities and
systems used for or in connection with the collec-
tion, transportation, treatment, and disposal of waste,
or used in connection with an injection activity;

(B) for each outfall, injection well, place of de-
posit, or place of disposal:

(i) the volume and rate of disposal of the defined
waste or of fluid injection, including appropriate
averages, the maximum rates of disposal or injec-
tion over representative periods of time, and de-
tailed information regarding patterns of disposal or
injection; and

(i) the physical, chemical, and radiological prop-
erties of the defined waste or the injection fluids; the
characteristics of the waste or the injection fluid; the
chemical, physical, thermal, organic, bacteriologi-
cal, or radiological properties or characteristics, as
applicable, described in enough detail to allow evalu-
ation of the water and environmental quality con-
siderations involved;
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(C) such other information as reasonably may be
required by the executive director for an adequate
understanding of the project or operation, and which
is necessary to provide the commission an adequate
opportunity to make the considerations required by
§331.121 of this title (relating to Class 1 Wells),
§331.122 of this title {relating to Class 111 Wells),
§305.50 of this title (relating to Additional Require-
ments for an Application for a Hazardous or Indus-
trial Solid Waste Permit), §305.48 of this title (relat-
ing to Additional Contents of Apphcatlons for Waste
Discharge Permits),
Additional Reqmrements for Radioactive Mate

Sites), §336 705 of this title (relating to
ent i s),-and Chapter 330, Subchap-
ter E of thxs utie (relatmg to Municipal Solid Waste
Permit Procedures).

(b) Omnly one application needs to be filed for each
geographical location in which waste is or will be
disposed of or discharged from, even though there
may be more than one outfall, place of deposit, or
other place of disposal covered in the application.

Source: The provisions of this §305.45 adopied to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TéxReg 2593; amended to be effective June 13,
1996, 21 TexReg 4999; amended to be effective June 5, 1997, 22
TexReg 4583; amended to be effective September 14, 2000, 25
TexReg 8974

§ 305.47. Retention of Application Data

A permittee shall keep records, throughout the
term of the permit, of data used to complete the final
application and any supplemental information.

Source: The provisions of this §305.47 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2593.

(a) The following shall be included in a
tion for a wastewater discharge permit-

30 TAC 8 305.48

a map, or in a separate sheet attached 10 a map, 1h§
names and addresses of the owners of such tracts 6f
land as can be determined from the current county
tax rolls or other reliable sources. The application
shall state the source of the information. ThlS;/ sub-
section does not apply to:

(A) an application to renew a permit; ancj/

(B) an application for a new Texas Pollufant Dis-
charge Elimination System (TPDES) peymit for a
discharge authorized by existing state peymit issued
before September 14, 1998 for which the applica-
tion does not propose any term or condition that
would constitute a major amendment to the state
permit under §305.62 of this tlt}é {relating to
Amendment).

(3) The applicant shall submit afiy other informa-
tion reasonably required by the executive director to
asceriain whether the facility will be constructed
and operated in compliance with all pertinent state
and federal siatutes, 1ncludm but not limited to,
the following: . s v

(A) the operator’s name,
number;

{B) whether the faml:tygs located on Indian lands;

(C) up to four stand/érd industrial codes (SIC)
which best reflect the principal products or services
provided by the facility.

(b) The following régulatxons contained in 40 Code
of Federal Regulandns Part 122; which are in effect
as of the date of TPDES program authorization, as
amended, are adopted by reference.

(1) Subpart B—Permit Applications and Special
NPDES Program Requirements, §122.21(g), provid-
ing application requirements for existing manufac-
turing, comfnercial, mining, and silvicultural
dischargers.

{(2) Subpart B—Permit Applications and Special
NPDES P{ogram Requirements, §122.21(h), provid-
ing application requirements for manufacturing,
commercial, mining, and silvicultural facilities which
discha /;‘ge only nonprocess wastewater, except 40
Coci:/iof Federal Regulations §122.21(h)(4)(ii), the

;address, and telephone

requirements of which are addressed in §305.126{e)
of this title (relating to Additional Standards Permit
Co{:xdmons for Waste Discharge Permits).

(3) Subpart B—Permit Applications and Special
NPDES Program Requirements, §8122.21(3), provid-
ing application requirements for new and existing
concentrated animal feeding operations and aquatic
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e it ¢ sfors —reg v/
8305.45 of this title {relating to Content of Appiice;g
tion for Permit), an application by an individual f6r
a waste discharge permit shall contain:
(1} the individual's full legal name and date of

birth;
(2) the street address of the individual's place of
residence; /

(3) the identifying number from the individual's
driver’s license or personal identification gertificate
issued by the state or country in which ih? individual
resides; /

(4) the individual's sex; and

{5) any assumed business or professional name of
the individual filed under Business And Commerce
Code, Chapter 36.

Source: The provisions of this §3035.48 éop!ed o be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2593; amended t}gS be effective October &,
1990, 15 TexReg 5492; amended to be eifettive Januvary 7, 1994, 18

TexReg 9936; amended to be effective Jine 17, 1999, 24 TexReg
4441

§ 203.49. Additional CO)Ztents of Application
for an Injettion Well Permit

{(a) The foliowing shall b/é included in an applica-
tion for an injection well permit:

(1} for Ciass 1 wells, ad defined in Chapter 331 of
this title (relating to Underground Injection Con-
trol), the information lsted in §331.121 of this title
(relating to Class 1 Wélls);

(2) for Class 111 \a/ells, as defined in Chapter 331
of this title (relating to Underground Injection Con-
wrol), the information listed in §331.122 of this tide
(relating to Class/IIT wells);

{3} the mannér in which compliance with the
financial assurance requirements of Chapter 37 of
this title (relating to Financial Assurance) will be
attained; f

(4) the wyannper in which compliance with the
plugging and abandonment requirements of §331.46
of this title (relating to Plugging and Abandonment
Standards) will be attained;

(5) the manner in which compliance with the
correcﬁve action requiremenis of §331.44 of this
title {(velating to Corrective Action Standards) will be
attained;

(¢) the manner in which compliance with the
pgét-ciosure requirements of §331.68 of this e
(F’elazing to Post-Closure Care} will be attained;

/ (7) a letter from the Railroad Commission of
Texas stating that the drilling of a disposal well and

theimiesti 3k PRI TO WA NUOT PR
AT RESYASLVI S AVES WA NN LU A4 B0 W ¥ L L V.8 I e - L e e T
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1 1

any oil or gas formation;
{8) for Class 111 wells, a description of all liggid
and solid nonradioactive wastes resulting from Mmin-
ing activities;
{9) a complete delineation of any aquifey or por-
tion of an aquiler for which exempt status/s sought;
and

(10} any other information reason
by the executive director t¢ evalua
injection well or project, includin
to, the information set forth in th
827.051(a).

(b) An application for prodgction area authoriza-
tion shall be submitted with &nd contain the follow-
ing for each production 753:

ly reguired
the proposed
but not limited
exas Water Code,

(1} mine plan;

{2) a restoration table;

(3) a baseline watgr quality table;
(4) comtrol paragheter upper limits;
{5) monitor w il locations; and

(6) other infprmation reasonably required by the
executive dirgttor to evaluate the application.

(¢) Ana
with the

lication under this section shall comply
quirements of §305.50(4)}B) of this title

9, 1986, 11 TexReg 2393; amended to be effective January 5,
, 12 TexReg 4860; amended to be effective July 5, 1989, 14
TeAReg 3046; amended 1o be effective November 7, 1991, 16
exReg 6051; amended to be effective March 21, 2000, 25 TexReg

o
20Y

§ 305.50. Additional Requirements for an Ap-
plication for a Hazardous or In-
dustrial Solid Waste Permit

‘Unless otherwise stated, an application for a per-
mit to store, process, or dispose of solid waste shall
meet the following requirements.

{1) One original and three copies of the permit
application shall be submitted on forms provided by
or approved by the executive director and shall be
accompanied by a like number of originals and
copies of all required exhibits,

{2} Plans and specifications for the construction
and operation of the facility and the staffing pattern
for the facility shall be submitted, including the
qualifications of all kev operating personnel. Also to
be submitted is the closing plan {or the solid waste
siorage, processing, or disposal facilitv. The infor-
mation provided shall be sufficiently detailed and
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complete to allow the executive director to ascertain
whether the facility will be constructed and oper-
ated in compliance with all pertinent state and local
air, water, public health and solid waste statutes.

operated, or controlled by the applicant in ,
of Texas. For purposes of this section,~the terms

......

(3) Any other information as the executive direc-
tor may deem necessary to determine whether the
facility and the operation thereof will comply with
the requirements of the Texas Solid Waste Disposal
Act and Chapter 335 of this title (relating to Indus-
trial Solid Waste and Municipal Hazardous Waste),
shall be included, including, but not limited to, the
information set forth in the Texas Solid Waste Dis-
posal Act, 84(e)(13).

(4) An application for a permit, permit amend-
ment, or permit modification to store, process, or
dispose of hazardous waste shall be subject to the
following requirements, as applicable.

(A) In the case of an application for a permit to
store, process, or dispose of hazardous waste, the
application shall also contain any additional infor-
mation required by 40 Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) 88270.13-270.27, except that closure cost
estimates shall be prepared in accordance with 40

CFR §264.142(a)(1), (3), and (4), as well as §37.131

of this title (relating to Annual Inflation Adjustments
to Closure Cost Estimates), §37.141 of this title
(relating to Increase in Current Cost Estimate), and
§335.178 of this title (relating to Cost Estimate for
Closure).-

cility properly. Financial information
to satisfy this subparagraph shall meet the

30 TAC 8 305.50

governing body approving or agreeing to approv;

the issuance of bonds for the purpose of satisfying
the financial assurance requirements of subpara-
graph (B) of this paragraph, submission oiZ{he
following information will be an adequate desnon-
stration: /

{i) a statement signed by an authorized si ’ixamry
in accordance with §305.44(a) of this title ;elating
to Signatories to Applications) explaining/in detail
how the applicant demonstrates sufficien / financial
resources to construct, safely operate, progerly close,
and provide adequate Hability coverage for the facility.
This statement shall also address how the applicant
intends to comply with the ﬁnanmal assurance re-
quirements for closure, post closure/ corrective ac-
tion, and liability coverage in acct)rdél ce with Chap-
ter 37, Subchapter P of this title (r;létin £ to Financial
Assurance for Hazardous and Noyghazardous Indus-
trial Solid Waste Facilities); ;’

(i) a certified copy of the resolution; and

(iii) certification by the gove ing body of passage
of the resolution.

(D) For all applicants nq{ meeting the require-
ments of subparagraph (C) of this paragraph, finan-
cial information submitted to satisfy the require-
ments of subparagraph (B) of this paragraph shall
include the applicable Atems listed under clauses
(i)~(vii} of this subparagraph. Financial statements
required under clauses (ii) and (iii) of this subpara-
graph shall be prepafed in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles and include a
balance sheet, income. statement; cash flow state-
ment, notes to the financial statements, and accoun-
tant's opinion letfer:

(i) a statement signed by an authorized signatory
in accordance with §305.44(a) of this title explaining
in detail how !Lhe applicant demonstrates sufficient
financial resouirces to construct, safely operate, prop-
erly close, Zii provide adequate liability coverage
for the facility. This statement shall also address how
the appli m intends to.comply with the financial
assurance requirements for-closure, post closure,
corrective action, and liability coverage in accor-
dance )a’:fith Chapter 37, Subchapter P of this title;

(i) /f‘or applicants for which audited financial state-
ments have been prepared the previous two or more
vears, the following Anancial statements;

) audited financial statements for the previous

o vears; and

JAtEY the most current quarterly financial state-

/ment prepared accerdmg to generally accepted ac-

Lecounting-principles;——
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0 appleants—for-which-audited--hnancia
statements have not been prepared the previous tw
or more years, the following copies of tax returps

and financial staternents: /

(1) copies of tax returns for the previous Awo
years, each certified by original signature df an
authorized signatory as being a “true and correct
copy of the return filed with the Internal Révenue
Service”;

(1) financial statements for the previous fvo years;
and

(1I) additionally, an audited hnancial statement
for the most recent fiscal year; *

(v} for publicly traded companies,/copies of Se-
curities and Exchange Commission Form 10-K for
the previous two years and the most current Form
10-Q;

{v) for privately-held companigs, written disclo-
sure of the information that would normally be
found in Securities and Exchange Commission Form
10-K including, but not limited to, the following:

(I} descriptions of the business and its operations;

(I1) identification of any atfiliated relationships;

(I11) credit agreements and terms;

(IV) any legal proceec}ijings involving the appli-
cant; / '

(V) contingent Iiabiii;zes; and

(VD) significant accobinting policies;

(i) for application;/ encompassing facility expan-
sion, capacity expansion, or new construction, esti-
mates of capital cosys for expansion and/or construc-
tion;

(vi}) if an applicant cannot or chooses not to
demonstrate suthcient financial resources through
submittal of the/financial documentation specified in
clauses (1)~(v) ¢f this subparagraph and who must or
chooses to obtain additional financing through a
new stock offering or new debt issuance for facility
expansion, ¢apacity expansion, or new construction;
and for safg operation, proper closure, and adequate
liability coverage, the following information:

(1) -2 Hnancial plan sufficiently detailed to clearly
demongtrate that the applicant will be in a position
to readily secure financing for construction, opera-
tion, and closure if the permit is issued. The submit-
ted financial plan must be accompanied by original
lettérs of opinion from two financial experts, not
otherwise employed by the applicant, who have the
démonstrated ability to either finance the facility or
lace the required financing. The opinion letters

AR o 2 aRCIE. 18- 0DLAINd AL . ;
of final administrative and judicial disposition of th¢

permit application; and include the time schedule

contingent upon permit finality for securing the

financing. Only one opinion letter from a finapcial

expert, not otherwise employed by the applicant, is

required if the letter renders a firm commitefént to

provide all the necessary financing; and  /

(1I) written detail of the annual oper:i;i){g costs of
the facility and a projected cash flow statement
including the period of construction gnd first two
years of operation. The cash flow s;Ztement must
demonstrate the financial resources fo meet operat-
ing costs, debt service, and financjal assurance for
closure, post-closure care, and ;fiabﬂity coverage
requirements. A list of the assiimptions made to
forecast cash flow shall also b fprovided.

(E) If any of the informatign required to be dis-
closed under subparagraply (D) of this paragraph
would be considered confidential under applicable
law, the information shal/be protected accordingly.
During hearings on conttested applications, disclo-
sure of confidential ifformation may be allowed
only under an appropfiate protective order.

(¥) An applicatiod for a modification or amend-
ment of a permit which includes a capacity expan-
sion of an - existig hazardous waste management
facility shall aisg}:ontain information delineating all
faults within 3,000 feet of the facility, together with
a demonstratién, unless previously demonstrated to
the commis;:n or the EPA, that:

(i) the fdult has not experienced displacement
within Holocene time, or if faults have experienced
displacefment within Holocene time, that no such
faults pass within 200 feet of the portion of the
surface facility where treatment, storage, or disposal
of hazardous wastes will be conducted; and

(1) the fault will not result in structural instability
of/ the surface facility or provide for groundwater

govemem to the extent that there is endangerment

(G) At any time after the effective date of the
requirements contained in Chapter 335, Subchapter
F of this title (relating to Permitting Standards for
Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Storage,
Processing, or Disposal Facilities), the executive
director may require the owner or operator of an
existing hazardous waste management facility to
submit that portion of his application containing the
information specified in 40 CFR §8270.14-270.27.
Any owner or operator shall be allowed a reasonable
period of time from the date of the request to submit
the information. An application for a new hazardous
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waste management facility must be submitted at
least 180 days before physical construction of the
facility is expected to commence.

(5} An application for a new hazardous waste
landfill which is filed after January 1, 1986, must
include an engineering report which evaluates the
benefits, if any, associated with the construction of
the landfill above existing grade at the proposed site,
the costs associated with the above-grade construc-
tion, and the potential adverse effects, if any, which
would be associated with the above-grade
consiruction.

(6) An application for a new hazardous waste
landfll, land treatment facility, or surface impound-
ment which is filed after January 1, 1986, whichisto
be located in the apparent recharge zone of a
regional aquifer must include a hydrogeologic re-
port documenting the potential effects, if any, on the
regional aquifer in the event of a release from the
waste containment systemn.

(7) Engineering plans and specifications submit-
ted as part of the permit application shall be pre-
pared and sealed by a registered professional engi-
neer who is currently registered as required by the
Texas Engineering Practice Act.

(8) After August 8, 1985, any Part B permit appli-
cation submitted by an owner or operator of a
facility that stores, processes, or disposes of hazard-
ous waste in a surface impoundment: or a landfill
must be accompanied by information, reasonably
ascertainable by the owner or operator, on the
potential for the public to be exposed to hazardous
wastes or hazardous constituents through releases
related to the unit. By August 8, 1985, owners and
operators of a landfill or a surface impoundment
who have already submiued a Part B application
must submit the exposure information required by
this paragraph. At a minimum, such information
must address:

(A) reasonably foreseeable potential releases from
both normal operations and accidents at the unit,

including releases associated with transportation to
or from the unit;

{B) the potential pathways of human exposure to
hazardous wastes or constituents resulting from
documented releases; and

(C) the potential magnitude and nature of the
human exposure resuhing from such releases.

30 TAC Q 3{)5 50

for capacxty expansnon the apphca‘uon shali al
identify the nature of any known specific and p{m 7
tial sources, types, and volumes of waste to !l;(
stored, processed, or disposed of by the facility gmc
shall identify any other related information thé ex
ecutive director may require.

{10) In the case of an application for a permit to
store, process, or dispose of hazardous waste at a
new hazardous waste imanagement faciliy? the ap-
plication shall also contain the followingy

{A) copies of any relevant land use plans, adopted
in accordance with the Texas Local Government
Code, Chapter 211 (Vernon's Supplgment 1991),
which were in existence before publication of the
notice of intent to file a solid waste permit applica-
tion or, if no notice of intent is filed, at the time the
permit application is filed;

(B) idemtification of the namet and locations of
industrial and other waste-genergting facilities within
172 mile of the facility in the cgse of an application
for a permit for a new on-gite hazardous waste
management facility, and within one mile of the
facility in the case of an application for a permit for
a new commercial hazardous waste management
facility;

(O) the approximate guantity of hazardous waste
generated or received Annually at those facilities
described under subparagraph (B) of this para
graph;
(D) descriptions g/ the major routes of travel in
the vicinity of the facility to be used for the trans-
portation of hazardous waste to and from the {acil-
ity, together with/a map showing the land-use pat-
terns, covering dt least a five-mile radius from the
boundaries of the facility; and

(E) the infoymation and demonstrations concern-
ing faults degcribed under paragraph (4)(F) of this
section. /l

(i) In t}}’ie case of an application for a permit to
store, profess, or dispose of hazardous waste, the
applicatign shall also contain information sufficient
to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the commission
that a J/rloposed hazardous waste landfll, arcal ex-
pansion of such landfill, or new commercial hazard-
ous waste land disposal unit is not subject to inun-
datién as a result of a 100-year flood eveni. An
applicant or any other party may not rely solely on
flgodplain maps prepared by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency or a successor agency to deter-

fmne whether a hazardous waste iandi il, areal
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mundanon.

(12) In the case of an application for'a permit &
store, process, or dispose of hazardous waste ay a
new commercial hazardous management facility,
the application shall also contain the followin

(A) information sufficient to demonstrate whether
a burden will be imposed on public roadways by
vehicles traveling to and from the facility, indluding,
at a minimum:

(i) the average gross weight of the varibus types
and sizes of such vehicles to be used for ansporia-
tion of hazardous waste;

(ii) the average number of such vehicles which
would travel the public roadways; a

(iil) identification of the roads fo be used by
vehicles traveling to and from the facility within a
minimum radius of 2 1/2 miles from the facility.
Such identification must mcludé the major high-
ways nearest the facility, even Af they are located
outside the 2 1/2 mile radius;

(B) in addition to the requirements of subpara-
graph (A) of this paragraph, An applicant may sub-
mit a letter from the relevdnt agency of the state,
county, or municipality which has the authority to
i s which states unequivo-
cally that the roads to And from the facility are
adequate for the loads I be placed on them by the
proposed facility. Such letter will serve as prima
facie evidence that the additional loads placed on
the roadways caused/by the operation of the facility
would not constitutg a burden and thus would not
require that improvements be made to such
roadways. Such letter does not, however, obviate the
need to submit the information required under sub-
paragraph (A) 9{ this paragraph;

(C) evidence/sufficient to demonstrate that:

(i) emergerfcy response capabilities are available
or will be available before the facility first receives
area in which the facility is located or
proposed 10 be located, that has the ability to man-
age a re Sonable worst-case emergency condition
associated with the operation of the facility; such
evidencgé may include, but is not limited to, the
followihg:

N ;i[n addition to the contingency plan required
under 40 CFR 8270.14(b)(7), provisions specifying
protedures and timing of practice facility evacua-
tioh drills, where there is a possibility thai evacua-
tipn of the facility could be necessary;

(H) comracts w1th any pnvate corporatlon mu-

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

M;WW&M%@M
emergency response;

(1V) a definition of worst-case emergencies, e. é
fires, explosions, the Texas Design Hurricane, or the
Standard Project Hurricane;

(V) atraining program for personne) for response
to such emergencies;

(V1) identification of first-responders;

(VID) identihcation of local or regional emergency
medical services and hospitals which have had haz-
ardous materials training; /

(VIIT} a pre-disaster plan, including drills;

(IX) amechanism for notifying all applicable gov-
ernment agencies when an incidenf occurs (ie.,
Texas Natural Resource Conservatioh Commission,
Texas Parks and Wildlife, General Land Office, Texas
Department of Health, and Texas Railroad Commis-
sion);

(X) ashowing of coordination /4&}1 the local emer-
gency planning committee angi any local compre-
hensive emergency managemént plan; and

(XI) any medical response/ capability which may
be available on the facility property; or

(i) the applicant has s¢cured bonding of suffi-
cient financial assurar:;z to fund the emergency

response personnel and equipment determined to be
necessary by the execytive director to manage a
reasonable worst-case femergency condition associ-
ated with the facility; such financial assurance may
be demonstrated by/providing information which
may include, but is hot limited to, the following:

(I) long-term spudies using an environmental
model which provide the amount of damages for
which the facilitfj is responsible; and

(I1) costs ylved in supplying any of the infor-

mation includéd in or satisfying any of the require-
ments of clause (IXI)}-(XI) of this subparagraph;

(D) if an Applicant does not elect to provide its
own facilitiés or secure bonding to ensure sufficient
emergency response capabilities in accordance with
§335.183/0of this title (relating to Emergency Re-
sponse Capabilities Required for New Commercial
Hazardous Waste Management Facilities), the appli-
cant nifust provide prior to the time the facility first
receiyes waste:

(iy documentation showing agreements with the
county and/or municipality in which the facility is
lo¢ated, or documentation showing agreements with
% adjoining county, municipality, mutual aid asso-
iation, or other appropriate entity such as profes-
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area-of /

¥

(ii) demonstration that a financial assur

personnel and equipment and mad
for the benefit of the county g

igned by an authorized
ith £305.44(a) of this title
explaining how the
emergency responsefinancial assurance to meet the
requirements of-

hazardous waste management technology proposed
for the/application location, and, for any applicant
withdut experience in the particular hazardous waste
nagement technology, a conspicuous statement

(13) An application for a boiler or industrial fur-
nace burning hazardous waste at a facility at which
the owner or operator: uses direct transfer opera-
tions to feed hazardous waste from transport ve-
hicles (containers, as defined in 40 CFR 8§266.111)
directly to the boiler or industrial furnace shall
submit information supporting conformance with
the standards for direct transfer provided by 40 CFR
8266.111 and §335.225 of this title (relating to
Additional Standards for Direct Transfer).

{14) The executive director may require a permit-
tee or an applicant to submit information in order to
establish permit conditions under §305.127(4)(A)
and (1)B)(iii) of this title (relating to Conditions to
be Determined for Individual Permits).

Source: The provisions of this §305.50 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2593; amended to be effective July 14,
1987, 12 TexReg 2102; amended to be effective January 5, 1988, 12
TexReg 4861; amended to be effective August 4, 1989, 14 TexReg
3531; amended to be effective October 8, 1990, 15 TexReg 5492;
amended to be effective November 7, 1991, 16 TexReg 6051;
amended to be effective July 29, 1992, 17 TexReg 5016; amended to
be effective November 23, 1993, 18 TexReg 8215; amended to be
effective May 11, 1994, 19 TexReg 3250; amended to be effective
November20,1996, 21TexReg 10982; amended to be effective May
20, 1999, 24 TexReg 3725; amended to be effective March 21, 2000,
25 TexReg 2368; amended to be effective November 18, 2001, 26
TexReg 9130.

§ 305.51. Revision of Applications for Hazard-
ous Waste Permits

(a) Owners or operators of hazardous waste man-
agement facilities, who qualify for interim status

30 TAC 8§ 305.51
pursuant to 40 Code of Federal Regulation Part 270,
Subpart G, who have continuing authority to store,
process, and/or dispose of hazardous waste pursu-
ant to Chapter 335 of this title (relating to Industrial
Solid Waste and Municipal Hazardous Waste), and
who filed a Part A permit application pursuant to 40
Code of Federal Regulations §270.10 shall file a
revised Part A application with the executive direc-
tor for any of the following changes during interim
status:
{1) new hazardous wastes not identified in the
original application are stored, processed or dis-
posed of at the facility;

(2) increases in the design capacity of processes
used at the facility occur;

{3) changes in the processes for management of
the waste occur or additional processes are added;

(4) changes in the ownership or operational con-
trol of a facility are made; or .

(5) newly regulated units for the storage, process-
ing,-or disposal of hazardous waste are added.

{b) The purpose of this section is to delineate
requirements for filing a revised application, not to
authorize any changes in facility operation. Changes
in facility operations will be reviewed and approved
by the executive director. In deciding whether to
approve the proposed change, the executive director
may consider the requirements set forth in 40 Code
of Federal Regulations §270.72. For changes in the
ownership or operational control of a facility, the
new owner or operator shall submit a revised Part A
permit application no later than 90 days prior to the
scheduled change and shall also comply with the
requirements set forth in 40 Code of Federal Regu-
lations §270.72(d). A permit will be required for the
operation of an above-grade landfill not described in
a Part A application filed pursuant to §335.43 of this
title {relating to Permit Required) prior to the effec-
tive date of this section.

{c) Except as specifically allowed under this sub-
section, changes listed under subsection (a) of this
section may not be made if they amount to recon-
struction of the hazardous waste management facility.
Reconstruction occurs when the capital investment
in the changes to the facility exceeds 50% of the
capital cost of a comparable entirely new bazardous
waste management facility. If all other requirements
are met, the following changes may be made even if
they amount to a reconstruction:

(1) changes made solely for the purposes of com-
plying with the requirements of 40 Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) §265.193 for tanks and ancillary
equipment;
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(2) if necessary to comply with federal, state, or
local requirements, changes to an existing unit,
changes solely involving tanks or containers, or
addition of replacement surface impoundments that
satisfy the standards of §3004(0) of the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended;

{3) changes that are necessary to allow owners or
operators to continue handling newly listed or iden-
tified hazardous wastes that have been stored, pro-
cessed, or disposed of at the facility prior to the
effective date of the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) regulation establishing the
new listing or identification;

(4) changes during closure of a facility or of a unit
within a facility made in accordance with an ap-
proved closure plan;

(5) changes necessary to comply with an interim
status correciive action order issued by the EPA
under §3008(h) of the RCRA, as amended, or other
federal authority, by an authorized State under com-
parable state authority, or by a court in a judicial
proceeding brought by the EPA or an authorized
State, provided that such changes are limited to the
storage, processing, or disposal of solid waste from
releases that originate within the boundary of the
facility;

(6) changes to store or process, in tanks, contain-
ers, or containment buildings, hazardous wastes
subject to land disposal restrictions imposed by 40
CFR, Part 268 or by §3004 of the RCRA, provided
that such changes are made solely for the purpose of
complying with 40 CFR, Part 268 or §3004 of the
RCRA, as amended;

(7) addition of newly regulated units under sub-
section {a)(5) of this section; and

(8) changes necessary to comply with standards
under 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart EEE—National
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
From Hazardous Waste Combustors.

Source: The provisions of this §305.51 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2593; amended to be effective July 14,
1987, 12 TexReg 2102; amended to be effective October 29, 1990,
15 TexReg 6015; amended to be effective July 29, 1992, 17 TexReg

5016; amended 1o be effective February 26, 1996, 21 TexReg 1137;
amended 1o be effective December 5, 1999, 24 TexReg 10561

P}

rials
An application which involves the
waste containing radioacti
companied by a lett

disposal of a
efnaterials shall be ac-
ot other instrument in writing

posal by the applicant, has a license from the co:gf

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

mission, the Texas Department of Health, or an
other appropriate authority governing waste ¢
taining radioactive materials; or that the applzc,ém
or the person served by the applicant:does not . leed
such a license. This section does not apply to gppli-
cations under Chapter 336 of this title (rela}ang to
Radioactive Substance Rules).

Source: The provisions of this §305.52 adopted to be effective
Jupe 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2593; amended to be effec :ve June 5,
1997, 22 TexRep 4583, /

§ 305.53. Application Fee

{a) Except for radioactive material licenses or as
specifically provided hereunder, an applicant shall
include with each application a fee of $100.

(1) The permit application fee for each disposal
well which will not be authorized tp receive hazard-
ous waste is $100. The fee for ‘?ach disposal well
which will be authorized to receife hazardous waste
is $2,000.

(2) The permit application f¢e for each solid waste
management facility to be fised for the storage,
processing, or disposal of hazardous waste, the Part
B application for which wag filed after September 1,
1985, shall be not less than $2,000 and not more
than $50,000 as calculatgd in accordance with the
following: /

(A) site evaluamon»wﬁl()() per acre of solid waste
facility up to 300 acreg; no additional fee thereafter;

(B) process analysfs~$ 1,000;

(C) facility unit{sy analysis—-$500 per unit;

(D) managemeny/facility analysis—$500.

(3) For purposé;s of paragraph (2}(C) of this sub-
section, each lagdfill, surface impoundment, incin-
erator, waste pile, tank, and container storage area
shall be considered a facility unit subject to the $500
per unit fee; except that multiple storage tanks or
container stgrage area identical in type and use will
be subject t,g a single $500 unit fee.

(4) The permit application fee for water use per-
mits shall be submitted in accordance with §8295.
131-295.140 of this title (related to Water Use Per-
mit Fees).

(5) The permit application fee for mine shaft
permits shall be submitted in accordance with 8329.9
of this title (related to Procedures for Applications).

(6) The permit application fees for wastewater
disposal permits shall not be less than $100 and not

ore than $2,000 as follows.

{A) Agricultural permit applications fees are as

follows:
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amended, renewed, or revoked.
{f) Applicants for licenses, other than renewals,

the environment, faeilitate eventua} decommlssion—

Sources~The provisions of this §305.54 adopted to be effective

June 51997, 22 TexReg 4583; amended to be effective September
3,4998, 23 TexReg 8837; amended to be effective September 14,
P 3

SUBCHAPTER D. AMENDMENTS,
RENEWALS, TRANSFERS, CORRECTIONS,
REVOCATION, AND SUSPENSION OF
PERMITS

§ 305.61. Applicability

The provisions of this subchapter set forth the
standards and requirements for applications and
actions concerning amendments, modifications, re-
newals, transfers, corrections, revocations, and sus-
pensions of permits.

Source: The provisions of this §305.61 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2594; amended w be effective October 29,
1990, 15 TexReg 6015.

§ 305.62. Amendment

(2) Amendments generally. A change in a term,
condition, or provision of a permit requires an

amendmem except underé%@&l@—ef—%h%—«m&e—(pe«

Hens} under §30:> 69 of thxs title (reIatmg 1o Sohd
Waste Permit Modification at the Request of the
Permittee), under §305.66 of this title (relating to
Corrections of Permits), and under §305.64 of this
title (relating to Transfer of Permits). The permitiee
or an affected person may request an amendment, If
the permittee requests an amendment, the applica-
tion shall be processed under Chapter 281 of this
title (rvelating to Applications Processing). If the
permiftee requests a modification of a solid waste
permit, the application shall be processed under

§305.69 of this mle Mem«pemn&eemfeqaes%&«a

» -1 e o

%%J%M&mle Ifan affecied perscm requests an
amendment, the request shall be submitted to the
executive director for review. If the executive direc-
tor determines the request is not justified, the execu-

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

tal of the request, stating the reasons for thai
determination. The person requesting an amend-
ment may petition the commission for a review ol
the request and the executive director’s recom-
mendation. If the executive director determines that
an amendment is justified, the amendment will be
processed under subsections (d) and (f) of this section.

(b) Application for amendment. An application
for amendment shall include all requested changes
to the permit. Information sufficient to review the
application shall be submitted in the form and

"manner and under the procedures specified in Sub-

chapter C of this chapter (relating to Application for
Permit). The application shall include a statement
describing the reason for the requested changes.

(e)-Tvpes-ol-amendments
iVJ na

(1) A major amendment is an amendment th

license issued under Chapter 336, Subchapt
this title (relating to Licensing Requirem

tive Waste), a major amendment is one

(A) authorizes a change in the type
tion limits of wastes to be received;

T concentra-

(B) authorizes receipt of wastes ffom other states
not authorized in the existing licesise;

(C) authorizes a change in
facility;

e operator of the

(D) authorizes closure and the final closure plan
for the disposal site;

(E) transfers the licen
or

1o the custodial agency;

(F) authorizes a chdnge which has a significant
effect on the human ¢nvironment and for which the
executive director Has prepared a written environ-
mental analysis of has determined that an environ-
mental analysis is required.

{2) A minoy amendment is an amendment to
improve or maintain the permitted guality or method
of disposal 6f waste, or injection of fluid if there is
neither a significant increase of the quantity of waste
or fluid to be discharged or injected nor a material
change’ in the pattern or place of discharge of
injectfon. A minor amendment includes any other
chapige to a permit issued under this chapter that
will not cause or relax a standard or criterion which

ay result in a potential deterioration of guality of

ater in the state. A minor amendment may also

tive director will respond within 60 days of submit- “-ineluderbut-isnot-limited-tor—
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tion System (TPDES) permits, changing an interi
compliance date in a schedule of compliance, pro-
vided the new date is not more than 120 days ag:r
the date specified in the existing permit and does not
interfere with attainment of the final compliance
date; and

/
(B) except for TPDES permits, requiring more

frequent monitoring or reporting by the permittee.

{3) Minor modifications for TPDES perfnits. The
executive director may modify a TPDES/ permit to
make corrections or allowances for changes in the
permitted activity listed in this subsection (see also
850.45 of this title (relating to Cérrections to
Permits)). Notice requirements for a/minor modifi-
cation are in 8§39.151 of this title (réelating to Appli-
cation for Wastewater Discharge Permit, including
Application for the Disposal of Sewage Sludge or
Water Treatment Sludge). Minof modifications to
TPDES permits may only:

(A) correct typographical er}/ors;

(B) require more frequent /nonitoring or report-
ing by the permittee; /

(C) change an interim compliance date in a sched-
ule of compliance, provided the new date is not
more than 120 days aftef the date specified in the
existing permit and does not interfere with attain-
ment of the final compliance date;

“{D) change the conétruction schedule for a dis-
charger which is a fiew source. No such change
shall affect a discharger’s obligation to have all
pollution control equipment installed and in opera-
tion before dischdrge under §305.534 of this title
(relating to New Sources and New Dischargers);

(E) delete a point source outfall when the dis-
t outfall is terminated and does not
result in discharge of pollutants from other outfalls
except withiy permit limits;

(F) when/the permit becomes final and effective
on or after/March 9, 1982, add or change provisions
to confo with §8305.125, 305.126, 305.531(1),
305.535(c)(1)(B), and 305.537 of this title (relating
to Standard Permit Conditions; Additional Standard
Permit/ Conditions for Waste Discharge Permits;
Establishing and Calculating Additional Conditions
and Limitations for TPDES Permits; Bypasses from
TPDES Permitted Facilities; Minimum Require-
SZMS for TPDES Permitted Facilities; and Report-

ing Requirements for Planned Physical Changestoa
Permitted Facility); or
/(G

) incorporate enforceable conditions of a pub-

OWREGirea VO or a progra

30 TAC 8§ 305.62
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{d) Good cause for amendments. If good cause
exists, the executive director may initiate and the
commission may order a major amendment, minor
amendment, modification, or minor modification to
a permit and the executive director may request an
updated application if necessary. Good cause in-
cludes, but is not limited to:

(1) there are material and substantial changes to
the permitted facility or activity which justify permit
conditions that are different or absent in the existing
permit;

(2) information, not available at the time of per-
mit issuance, is received by the executive director,
justifying amendment of existing permit conditions;

(3) the standards or regulations on which the
permit or a permit condition was based have been
changed by statute, through promulgation of new or
amended standards or regulations, or by judicial
decision after the permit was issued; .

{4) an act of God, strike, flood, material shortage,
or other event over which the permittee has no
control and for which there is no reasonably avail-
able alternative may be determined to constitute
good cause for amendment of a compliance sched-
ule;

(5) for underground injection wells, a determina-
tion that the waste being injected is a hazardous
waste as defined under §335.1 of this title (relating
to Definitions) either because the definition has been
revised, or because a previous determination has
been changed; and

j i 3 <

22. "Eg - 51 }‘EEﬁ;
the-environment-are-unacceptable:

(e) Amendment of land disposal facility permit.
When a permit for a land disposal facility used to
manage hazardous waste is reviewed by the com-
mission under §305.127(1)(B)iii) of this title (relat-
ing to Conditions to be Determined for Individual
Permits), the commissicn shall modify the permit as
necessary to assure that the facility continues to
comply with currently applicable requirements of
this chapter and Chaprer 335 of this title (relating to
Industrial Solid Waste and Municipal Hazardous
‘Waste).

(f) Amendment initiated by the executive director.
If the executive divector determines to file a petition
to amend a permit, notice of the determination
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stating the grounds therefor and a copy of a pro-
posed amendment draft shall be personally served
on or mailed to the permitiee at the last address of
record with the commission. This notice should be
given at least 15 davs before a petition is filed with
the commission. However, such notice period shall
not be jurisdictional.

(g) Amendment initiated permit expiration. The
existing permit will remain effective and will not
expire until commission action on the application
for amendment is final. The commission may extend
the term of a permit when taking action on an
application for amendment.

(h) Amendment application considered a request
for renewal. For applications filed under the Texas
‘Water Code, Chapter 26, an application for a major
amendment to a permit may also be considered as
an application for a renewal of the permit if so
requested by the applicant,

Source: The provisions of this §303.62 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 25%94; amended to be effective July 14,
1987, 12 TexReg 2102; amended to be effective July 27, 1988, 13
TexReg 3513; amended 1o be effective July 5, 1989, 14 TexReg 3046;
amended to be effective October 8, 1990, 15 TexReg 5492; amended
to be effective October 29, 1990, 15 TexReg 6015; amended 1o be
effective June 13, 1996, 21 TexReg 4999; amended to be effective
February 11, 1997, 22 TexReg 1169; amended to be effective June 5,
1997, 22 TexReg 4583; amended to be effective June 17, 1999, 24

TexReg 4441; amended to be effective September 14, 2000, 25
TexReg 8974

§ 305.63. Renewal
(a) Any-permit-renewal -application-that-is-de-

clared administratively. complete before September
~$-1999-is-subjeet-to-this-section. The permittee or
the executive director may file an application for
renewal of a permit. The application shall be filed
with the executive direcior before the permit expi-
ration date. Any permittee with an effective permit
shall submit a new application at least 180 days
before the expiration date of the effective permit,
unless permission for a later date has been granted
by the executive director. The executive director
shall not grant permission for applications to be
submitted later than the expiration date of the exist-
ing permit.

(1) An application for renewal may be in the same
form as that required for the original permit
application.

(2) An application for renewal shall request con-
tinuation of the same requirements and conditions
of the expiring permit.

(3) If an application for renewal in fact requests a
modification of requirements and conditions of the
existing permit, an application for amendment or

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

modzﬁcatxon shall also be filed before further action

(4) 1f renewal procedures have been initiated be-
fore the permit expiration date, the existing permit
will remain in full force and effect and will no:
expire until commission action on the application
for renewal is final.

(5) The commission may deny an application for
renewal for the grounds set forth in 8 305.66 of this
title {relating to Revocation and Suspension).

(6) During the renewal process, the executive
director may make any changes or additions 1o
permits authorized by § 305.65 of this title (relating
to Corrections of Permits), or § 305.62(d) of this title
{relating 1o Amendment) provided the requirements
of § 305.62(f) of this title (relating to Amendment)
and § 305.96 of this title (relating to Action on
Application for Amendment) are satished.

to submit the information required by 40 Code of
Federal Regulations § 122.2Mr the permit
expiration date.

(b) This section-des not apply to applications for

renewal of radioactive material licenses under Chap-
of this title (relating to Radioactive Sub-

Source: The provisions of this §305.63 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2594; amended 1o be effective July 14,
1987, 12 TexReg 2102; amended 1o be effective October 8, 1990, 15
TexReg 5492; amended to be effective October 29, 1990, 15 TexReg
6015; amended to be effective June 5, 1997, 22 TexReg 4583;
amended to be effective September 23, 1999, 24 TexReg 8309

§ 305.64. Transfer of Permits

(a) A permit is issued in personam and may be
transferred only upon approval of the commission.
No transfer is required for a corporate name change,
as long as the secretary of state can verify that a
change in name alone has occurred. An attempted
transfer is not effective for any purpose until actu-
ally approved by the commission.

(b) Except as provided otherwise in subsection (g}
ol this section, either the transferee or the permittee
shall submit to the executive director an application
for transfer at least 30 days before the proposed
wransfer date. The application shall contain the fol-
lowing:

(1) the name and address of the transferee;
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{(2) date of proposed transfer;

(3) if the permit requires financial responsibility,
the method by which the proposed transferee in-
tends to assume or provide financial responsibility,
including proof of such financial responsibility to

become effective when the transfer becomes effec-
tive;

(6) any other information the executive director
may reasonably require.

{¢) If no agreement regarding transfer of permit
responsibility and liability is provided, responsibility
for compliance with the terms and conditions of the
permit and Hability for any violation associated
therewith is assumed by the transferee, effective on
the date of the approved transfer. This section is not
intended to relieve a transfer or of any iiability.

proof of any required financi sponsxblhty is
sufficient before transiitting an application for trans-

{e) If a person attempting to acquire a permit
causes or allows operation of the facility before
approval is given, such person shall be considered to
be operating without a permit or other authorization.

fer where conditions of a judicial decree, co
ance agreement, or other enforcement orde
not been entirely met. The commission shall also
consider the prior compliance record ofthe trans-
feree, if any.

{g) For permits involving hazardelis waste under
the Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act, Texas Health
and Safety Code Annotated, Chépter 361 changes in
the ownership or operatim/‘ﬂbiontroi of a facility
may be made as Class I/modifications with prior
written approval of the/éxecutive director in accor-
dance with §305.69.4f this title (relating to Solid

prior to theg'scheduled change. A written agreement
containixng a specific date for iransfer of permit
responsibility between the current and new permit-

teegmust also be submitted to the executive director.
en a transfer of ownership or operational control

30 'I'AC § 305. 64

thls tltie (relatmg 1o Fmanczal Assuranat for Haz/
ardous and Nonhazardous Industrial Solid Was i
Facilities), until the new owner or operator hz;s
demonstrated compliance with the requirementg of
Chapter 37, Subchapter P of this title. The /new
owner or operator must demonstrate complance
with the requirements of Chapter 37, Subchapter P
of this title within six months of the date of the
change of ownership or operational contrél of the
facility. Upon demonstration to the executive direc-
tor by the new owner or operator of compliance
with Chapter 37, Subchapter P of this title, the
executive director shall notify the old owner or
operator that he no longer needs to/comply with
Chapter 37, Subchapter P of this uﬂ as of the date
of demonsiration.

-(h) The commission may transfér permits 1o an
interim permittee pending an ultirhate decision on a
permit transfer if it finds one or fhore of the follow-
ing:

(1) the permittee no longer/owns the permitted
facilities;

(2} the permittee is about to abandon or cease
operation of the facilities; /

(3) the permittee has abandoned or ceased oper-
ating the facilities; and /

(4) there exists a nee ’ffor the continued operation
of the facility and the proposed interim permittee is
capable of assuming responsibility for compliance
with the permit. |

(i) The commissi/én may transfer.a permit invol-
untarily after noticg and an opportunity for hearing,
for any of the folibwing reasons:

(1) the permapfee no longer owns or controls the
permitted facilifies;

(2) if the facilities have not been built, and the
permittee nodonger has sufficient property rights in
the site of the proposed facilities;

(3) the pérmittee has failed or is failing to comply
with the térms and conditions of the permit;

(4) the permitted facilities have been or are about
to be abandoned;

(5) the permittee has violated commission rules
or orders;

(6) the permittee has been or is operating the
p:zi:itted facilities in a manner which creates an
imminent and substantial endangerment to the pub-
lic health or the environment;

/ {7) foreclosure, insolvency, bankruptcy, or similar
. :
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(8) transfer of the permit would maintain tf;e
quality of water in the state consistent with the
public health and enjoyment, the propagatio(;léand

protection of terrestrial and aquatic life, the opera-
tion of existing industries, and the economic /devel-
opment of the state and/or would minin}fze the
damage to the environment; and

(9) the transferee has demonstrated the willing-
ness and ability to comply with the pex}f)it and all
other applicable requirements. /

(j) The commission may initiate proceedings in
accordance with the Texas Water Codg, Chapter 13,
for the appointment of a receiver gi)nsistent with
this section. g

Source; The provisions of this §305.64 adopted 10 be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2594; amended fo be effective July 14,
1987, 12 TexReg 2102; amended 1o be e%ﬁve July 19, 1989, 14

TexReg 3297; amended to be effective Ocigber 29, 1990, 15 TexReg
6015; amended to be effective March 21/2000, 25 TexReg 2368

§ 305.65. Renewal /

Any permit renewal app]z/ation that is declared
administratively complete on or after September 1,
1999 is subject to this section. The permittee or the
executive director may file an application for re-
newal of a permit. The agélication shall be filed with
the executive director before the permit expiration
date. Any permittee with an effective permit shall
submit a new application at least 180 days before the
expiration date of ﬂ}goeffective permit, unless per-
mission for a later/date has been granted by the
executive director. /I’ he executive director shall not
grant permission for applications to be submitted
later than the exp{ration date of the existing permit.

(1) An app]ic?'iion for renewal may be in the same
form as that /required for the original permit
application.

(2) An application for renewal shall request con-
tinuation of/the same requirements and conditions
of the expiﬁng permit.

(3) If adl application for renewal in fact requests a
modiﬁcazon of requirements and conditions of the
existin%fpermit, an application for amendment or
modifi¢ation shall also be filed before further action
is taken. For applications filed under the Texas Water
Code, Chapter 26, if an application for renewal in
fact/ requests a modification of requirements and
copditions of the existing permit, an application for
amendment shall be filed in place of an application
for renewal. :

/ {4) If renewal procedures have been initiated be-

¥ =

expire until commission action on the app}icatiozjj
for renewal is final. ;

(5) The commission may deny an application for
renewal for the grounds set forth in §305.66 off’fthis
title (relating to Revocation and Suspension). /

(6) During the renewal process, the exécutive
director may make any changes or additions to
permits authorized by §50.145 of this title/(relating
1o Corrections of Permits), or §305.62(d) of this title
(relating to Amendment) provided the requirements
of §305.62(f) of this title and §305.9¢ of this title
{relating 1o Action on Application fo/ Amendment)
are satisfied. /

(7) The executive director may grant permission
for permittees of non-publicly owned treatment works
to submit the information requifed by 40 Code of
Federal Regulations, 8122.21{gX10) after the permit
expiration date.

(8) Afier complying with all applicable rules in
Chapters 39, 50 and 55 of this title, the commission,
without providing an opportunity for a contested
case hearing, may act ox}/an application to renew a
permit for: /

(A) storage of hazardéus waste in containers, tanks,
or other closed vessels if the waste:

(i) was generatedjon-site; and

(ii) does not inc/l/{lde waste generated from other

waste transporied to the site; or

(B) processinyz«/of hazardous waste if:

(i) the waste/was generated on-site;

(ii) the wagte does not include waste generated
from other waste transported to the site; and

(iii) the fi)rocessing does not include thermal
processing.

(9) If the commission determines that an appli-
cant’s fompliance history for the preceding five
years raises an issue regarding the applicant’s abil-
ity to/comply with a material term of its permit, the
cozZnission shall provide an opportunity to request
a gontested case hearing.

ource: The provisions of this §305.65 adopted to be effective
eptember 23, 1999, 24 TexReg 8309; amended to be effective

s )

§ 305.66. Permit Denial, Suspension, and Re-
vocation

{a) A permit or other order of the commission
does not become a vested right and may be sus-
pended or revoked for good cause at any time by
order of the commission after opportunity for a
public hearing is given. Good cause includes, but is
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not limited to, the following:

(1) the permitiee has failed or is failing to comply
with the conditions of the permit or a commission
order, including failure to construct, during the life
of the permit, facilities necessary to conform with

~ the terms and conditions of the permit;

(2) the permit or the operations thereunder have
been abandoned;

(3) the permit or other order is no longer needed
by the permittee;

(4) the permittee’s failure in the application or
hearing process to disclose fully all relevant facts, or

the permittee’s mlsrepresentatwn of relevant facts
at any time;

(5) a determination that the permitted activity
endangers human health or safety or the environ-
ment to such an extent that permit termination is
necessary to prevent further harm;

(6) the facility is being operated by a transferee
before commission appreval of the transfer;

tion that the waste bemg m;ected isa haza us
waste as defined under §335.1 of this title (relating

been changed;

/
(8) for Class III injection w s, failure to achieve
satisfactory restoration progress;

(9) for radioactive mdterial licenses, any violation

itions are revealed by an application,
statement of fact, report, record, inspection, or

othepfmeans, which would have warranted the com-
ssion's refusal to issue a license on an original
5 .

(10) such other cause sufficient to warrant termi-
nation or suspension of the authorization.
cent to the water in the state under a wast
charge permit is subject to cancellation
sion under the Texas Water Code, §2

sion), any permit it issues or has authority to issue
for a solid waste storage processing, or dxsposai

30 TAC § 305.66

(d) When the executive director determines revo-
cation or suspension proceedings are warranted, a
petition requesting appropriate action may be filed
by the executive director with the commission. A
person affected by the issuance of a permit or other
order of the commission may initiate proceedings
for revocation or suspension by forwarding a peti-
tion to the executive director to be filed with the
comumission.

~tey-1-the-executive-director-or-an-affected-persony

intends to file a petition to revoke or suspend ,g
permit, notice of the intention and a copy of the
petition to be filed shall be personally served of or
sent by registered or certified mail to the permiittee
at the last address of record with the commission.
This notice shall be given at least 15 days before a
petition for revocation or suspension is su
the executive director or filed with the cgmmission
for further proceedings. Failure to pyovide such
notice shall not be jurisdictional. For radioactive
material licenses issued under Chapfer 336 of this
title (relating to Radioactive Substayice Rules), only
the executive director may file a petition to revoke or
suspend a license.

() The commission may degy, suspend for not
more than 90 days, or revoke ah original or renewal
permit if the commission finds after notice and
hearing, that: ’ '

(1) the permit holder h?‘! arecord of environmen-
tal violations in the préceding five years at the
permitted site;

(2) the applicant hgs a record of enyirohmental
violations in the préceding five years at any site
owned, operated, ojx" controlled by the applicant;

(3) the permit holder or applicant made a false or
misleading stateghent in connection with an original
or renewal application, either in the formal applica-
tion or in any other written instrument relating to
the applicatjon submitted to the commission, its
officers, or its employees;

(4) the jper‘mit holder or applicant is indebted to
the state’ for fees, payment of penalties, or taxes
1mposeé by Title 5, Sanitation and Environmental
Qualigy, of the Texas Health and Safety Code (Vernon
1991) or by a rule of the commission;

) the permit holder or applicant is unable to
epsure that the management of the hazardous waste
anagement facility conforms or will conform to
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>

2 ;
permit under this section, the commission mist

find: /

(1) that a violation or violations are signi{ﬁcant
and that the permit helder or applicant hgs not

made a substantial attempt to correct the vi7ations;
or

{2) that the permit holder or applicant ig'indebted
to the state for fees, payment of penalties, or taxes
imposed by Title 5, Sanitation and Emy{ronmemal
Quality, of the Texas Health and Safety (/}6de {Vernon
1991) or by rule of the commission. /

{(h) The commission may not suspend a new com-
mercial hazardous waste managerjient permit on
the basis of a failure of a county or 4 municipality to
accept the funds and make the roadway improve-
ments pursuant to §335.182 of this title (relating to
Burden on Public Roadways by /Zi New Commercial
Hazardous Waste Management/Facility).

(i) For applications for new hazardous waste man-
agement facility permits, the tommission may deny
such an application if it detgrmines that the facility
is not compatible with local land use pursuant to
§335.180 of this title (relating to Impact of New
Hazardous Waste Management Facilities on Local
Land Use). /

() For applications for new commercial hazard-
ous waste management facility permits, the commis-
sion may not deny such an application on the basis
of a failure of a county or 2 municipality to accept
the funds and make the roadway improvements
pursuant to §335.182 of this title (relating to Burden
on Public Roadwa/ys by a New Commercial Hazard-
ous Waste Management Facility).

(k) For app!iéiations for any new commercial haz-
ardous waste Thanagement facility permits, the com-
mission shall/not grant such an application if the
applicant i% without experience in the particular
hazardous Wwaste management technology and has
not conspicuously stated that lack of experience in
the applicfiticn,:and the commission shall not grant
such an application unless the applicant provides a
summary of its experience, pursuant to 8305.
SO(}Z)fD) of this title {relating to Additional Require-
menty for an Application for a Solid Waste Permit).
Th‘i;)mmission may not deny an application for a
new commercial hazardous waste management fa-
cility permit solely on the basis of lack of experience
of/the applicant.

/ N . “ :
/ (1) For purposes of this section, the terms “permit
older” and "applicant” include each member of a

" D
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partner or owner controls at Jeast 20% o

of a majority of the corporate stock, provid

facility.

Source: The provisions of this §305.66 adopted 10 be effective
June 19, 198611 TexReg 2594; amended to be effective July 5,
1989, 14 TexReg 3046; amended to be effective November 7, 1991,

ex 51; amended to be effective June 5, 1997, 22 TexReg

§ 305.67. Revocation and Suspension u‘pon Re-
quest or Consent

{(a) If a permittee no longer desires to continue a
waste disposal activity or to dispose of waste under
a permit, or is agreeable to a suspension of authori-
zation to do so for a specified period of time, the
permittee should file with the executive director a
written request, or a written consent and waiver not
later than 10 days following receipt of notice of the
intention to file a petition under §305.66 of this title
(relating to Revocation and Suspension).

(b) If a permittee requests or consents to the
revocation or suspension of the permit, the executive
director may revoke or suspend the permit without
the necessity of a public hearing or commission
action. The executive director shall notify the com-
mission of each such revocation or suspension.

atata SOue O 36 nodican o oxo

2 aPpP & 5 kl

director may terminate a radicactive material

has complied with the applicable decommissioning
requirements under Chapter 336 of this tigle (relat-
ing to Radioactive Substance Rules).

Source: The provisions of this §305.67 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2594; amended to be ¢ffective September
14, 2000, 25 TexReg 8974

§ 305.68. Action and Notide on Petition for
Revocation gr Suspension

(a) In the absence of a request filed by the permit-
tee or of sufficient consept and waiver, the commis-
sion shall conduct a public hearing on a petition to
revoke or suspend g’permit or other order of the
commission, notic€ of which shall be given to the
permittee not les§ than 30 days prior to the hearing
by certified il, return receipt requested, of the
time and place of the hearing, For permits or orders
involving hazardous waste under the Texas Solid

2-305.104 of this title (rela

At

ngto Notice by
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permn modxﬁcauon for the activity cov ered int
temporary authorization, and: ?é

(A) the reissued temporary authorization cor/sti—
tutes the commission’s decision on a Class 2 p
modification in accordance with subsection {c) 6)(})}
or {7}D) of this section; or ;’

(B) the commission determines that the ﬁemsued
temporary authorization involving a Class 3 permit
modification request is warranted to allow the au-
thorized activities to continue while the modifica-
tion procedures of subsection (d) of thigf section are
conducted.

{g) Public notice and appeals of pe mit modifica-
tion decisions.

(1) The commission shall notify 2l persons listed
in §39.13 of this title (relating t¢ Mailed Notice)
within ten working days of any decision under this
section to grant or deny a Clgss 2 or 3 permit
meodification request. The commission shall also
notify such persons within ten working days after an
automatic authorization for g Class 2 modification
goes into effect under subsection (¢)(8) or (11) of this
section. /

/

(2) The executive direcgér’s or the commission’s
decision to grant or den} '/ a Class 3 permit modifica-
tion request under this/section may be appealed
under the appropriate /procedures set forth in the
commission’s rules and in the Administrative Proce-
dure Act, the Government Code, Chapter 2002.

(h) Newly regulagéd wastes and units.

{1) The permitte{e is authorized to continue to
manage wastes listed or identihed as hazardous
under 40 CFR, Part 261, or to continue to manage
hazardous wast¢ in units newly regulated as hazard-
ous waste management units if:

(A) the uni;/(»as in existence as a hazardous waste
facility unit /with respect to the newly listed or
characteristic waste or newly regulated waste man-
agement unit on the effective date of the final rule
listing or/;dentifying the waste or regulating the
unit;  /

(B) the permittee submits a Class 1 modification
request on or before the date on which the waste or
unit becomes subject to the new requirements;

(Qj the permitiee is in substantial compliance
with the applicable standards of Chapter 335, Sub-
pter E of this title (relating to Interim Standards
for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Stor-
dge, Processing, or Disposal Facilities), Chapter 335,

Subchapter H, Divisions 1 through 4 (reiatmg to

1650
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effective date of the final rule listing or idéntifying
the waste or subjecting the unit to RCRA Subtitle C
management standards; and

(E) in the case of land disposal uits, the permit-
tee certifies that each such unit'is in compliance
with all applicable 40 CFR, Part 265 groundwater
monitoring requirements a}x{a with Chapter 37 of

this title {relating to Findncial Assurance) on the
date 12 months after tHe effective date of the final
rule identifying or listing the waste as hazardous, or
regulating the unit'as a hazardous waste manage-
ment unit. If the owner or operator fails to certify
compliance with these requirements, the owner or
operator shall lose authority to operate under this
section.

(2) New wastes or units added to a facility’s
perriit under this subsection do not constitute ex-
nsions for the purpose of the 25% capacity expan-

(i) Combustion facility changes to meet Title 40
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 63 Maxi-
mum Achievable Control Technology (MACT)
standards. The following procedures apply to haz-
atdous waste corbustion facility permit modifica-
tions requested under L.9. of Appendix I of this
subchapter.

(1) Facility owners or operators must comply with
the Notification of Intent to Comply (NIC) require-
ments of 40 CFR §63.1210(b) and (c), as amended
through July 10, 2000 (65 FR 42292), before a
permit modification can be requested under this
section.

(2) If the executive director does not approve or
deny the request within 90 days of receiving it, the
request shall be deemed approved. The executive
director may, at his or her discretion, extend this 90-
day deadline one time for up to 30 days by notifying
the facility owner or operator.

(i) Military hazardous waste munitions storage,
processing, and disposal. The permittee is autho-
rized to continue to accept waste military munitions
notwithstanding any permit conditions barring the
permittee from accepting off-site wastes, if:

(1) the facility is in existence as a hazardous waste
facility, and the facility is already permitted to handle
waste military munitions, on the date when waste
military munitions become subject to hazardous
waste regulatory requirements;
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(2) on or before the date when waste military
munitions become subject to hazardous waste regu-
latory requirements, the permittee submits a Class 1
modification request to remove or revise the permit
provision restricting the receipt of off-site waste
munitions; and

(3) the permittee submits a Class 2 modification
request within 180 days of the date when the waste

30 TAC § 305.69

military munitions become subject to hazardous
waste regulatory requirements.

(k) Appendix 1. The following appendix will be
used for the purposes of this subchapier which
relates to industrial and hazardous solid waste per
mit modification at the request of the permitice.

1691
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Figure: 30 TAC §305.69(k)

Modificetions Class
A, Gengral Perd Provisions

4.  Administrative and infor mation sl chenges k]

2. Correction of typographical errors A

3. Eguipment replecement or upgrading with funclionally equivalent
comporents (2.0., PiPes, Yalves, PUMRS, CONYEYOTS, COMMIOIS) -..vw.u, acrmscosmmermasresisnionis 4

4, Changes in the frequency of or procechares 1o monitoring, repnting,
sampling, or melntenance activities by the permites:

s To prcmde tor more frequent monitoring, reporting, sampling, or

5. Schedule of complance

a.  Changes ininterim compimnce detes, with prior spproval of the
executive director .......... 1
b, Extension of finel compliance date 3

8. Changes in expiration date o permit 1o allow sarlier permit expration, with
prior approvsl of the executive director 1"

7. Chenges in ownership or operational cortrol of o faciity, provided the
procedures of §305 84(g) of this tRie (relating 10 Transter of Permits) sre

followed . 1
.Q. S MHap Ay oo oiihe. bt s mhd)imaw !

to commercsai hazerdous waste managemerd unks in Wdancewlh

§305.149()X(2) or (4) of this titie (relating fo Time Limitation for

of Commercial Harardous Waste Mar t Unis) 2
8. Grester then six-month exiension of the cf { hazardous vaste

agemem uﬂcmstmcﬁimpw e limk in accordance with

11. Changes to s'emnve permit tondxtims mat are no hmgaf appﬂcatﬂe ( e T
because the standards upon which they are based are no longer
appicable fo the fatility)

B, General Facilly Standards

1. Changes to waste sampling or analysis methods:

2. To conform with agency guidance or 1RGUIAHDNS ... 1
b. Toincorporate changes associated with FO39 gmulti-source

leachate) sampling or anaiysis methods 1t
¢. Tointorporale changes associated with underlving harardous

constituents in ighitable or corrosive wastes 1t
d. Otherch 2

2. Changes lo snalytical quality assurancefcontrol plan;

a.  To conform with agency guidance oF regUHONS .. e 4
B, Other thanges 2

3. Changes in procadures for maintaining the operting record .,

4. Changes infrequency or content of inspestion schedul 2

1692
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CONSOLIDATED PERMITS A0 TAC § 305.69

5. Changes in the training pian:

a. Thataffect the type or decrsase the amount of training given
10 emplovees prevnenanareseons 2
b. Otherchanges P,

§. Contingency plan;

a. Changes In ememgency procedures {i.e., splll or release

response protedures} 2
k. Replacement with functionally equivaient equipment, upgrade,

or relocate emergency equipment listed 1
¢ Remaoval of equipment from ememency equipment Hst... ... 2
d.  Changes in name, address, or phone number of coomdinators

or other persons of agencies identified inthe plan....cooececeinennnd 3

7. Construction guality assurance {CQA) plan;

a. Changes thatthe CQA ofiicer ceriifies in the operaling record
will provide equivaient or befler cerainty that the unity
components meel the design spedfications

b, Cther Changes 2

-

Nole; When a peymil modification {(such as infroduction of a new unif) requires a
change in Tacility plang or olhver general faclily standards, that change shall be
reviewed under the same procedures as the pennit modification.

C. Groundwater Protection
1. Changes to wells:

a. Changes in the humber, iocation, depth, of design of

upgradient or downgradient wells of pemnitted groundwater

monitoring system 2
b. Replacemert of an exisling wel that has been damaged or

rendered inoperabie, without change lo location, design, or

depth of the well 1

2. Changes in groundwater samping or analysis prosedures o
maonitoring schedule, with prior approvai of the executive director..........ocvee 1t

3. Changes insististical procedum for determining whether a stalistically
significani change in groundwater guaity between upgradient and
downgradient wals has occurred, with prior approval of ihe executive
director 1t

4. Changes in point of compliance 2

5. Changes in indicator parameters, hazardous constituents, or
contentration limils ncluding altemate concenlration imils (ACLs)Y

a. As spedfied in the groundwater protection Standan........cvcecccrrns 3
b. As specified in the defeclion monitoring program 2

6. Changes to a detection manitoring program as required by
§335.184(10) of this title {relating to Detection Menitoring Program),
unless olhemwise specified in this appendix. 2

7. Compliance monllorng program:

a. Addition of compliance monitering program pursuant to
$335.184(7)(D) of this tifle, and §335.165 of this title {relating
to Compliance Monitoring Program) 3

b.  Changes o a compliance monitoring program as requived by
$335.165(11) of this litle, unless othemwise specified nthis
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30 TAC 8§ 305.69 NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

€. Cotractive action program;

a.  Addition of 3 corrective action program pursuantto

§335.165(9)(B) of this litle and §335.166 of this title {rslating

o Corrective Action Program) 3
b. Changes o a corrective action program as required by

§335.166(8) of this title, unless otherwise specified inthis

appendix 2

D. Closure
1. Changes to the closure plan:

a. Changes in estimate of maximum extent of operations or

maximum inventory of waste on-sits at any ime during the

active iife of the facility, with prior approval of the executive

director 1t
b. Changes in the ciosure schedule for any unit, changes inthe

final closure scheduls for the facliity, or extansion of the

ciosure period, with prior approval of the executive directol ..o, 4t
¢. Changes in the expected year of final closure, whers other

pamit conditions are not changed, with prior approvai ofthe

exscutive director i
d. Changes in procedures for decontamination of faciiity

egquipment or structures, with prior approval of the executive

director 1"
e Changes in spproved closure plan resulting fom unexpecied

evanis occurring during partial or final closure, unless

otherwise specified in this appendix 2
. Exiension of the closure period io sliow a landfib, surface

impoundment or land treatment unit to receive nonhazardous

wastes after final receipt of hazardous wastes under 40 Code

of Federal Reguiations (CFR), 264.113(0) and {8)...covceoeccovrermnecerennnne s 2

2. Credhion of a new iandf@ unit as pant of closure 3

3. Addlien of the following new units 1o be used temporarily for closure
ities:

Surtate mpoundmerts
Incinersators "

Waste plies that do not comply with 40 CFR 2684.250(C) . corceeerivvcrocnsmimsirvensiarrnses
Waste piles that comply with 40 CFR 264.280(¢)
Tanks or cortainers (oiher than specified below)
Tanks used for neudralizetion, dewalering, phase separetion, or

oW

roanTe

compenent separation, with prior spproval of the execulive director ... 1
Q. Staging Pie 2

E. Post-Closwe

Changes in name , address, of phone number of contact in post-closure plon, ... 1
" Extension of post.closure care period 2

Reduction in the post-closure care period 3

Changes to the expected vear of firml closurs, whers other permit conditions

G N0 CNANGEU .....o.oereere e esi s abe s iE s toeb 5 s v s Ts as ns aebirs s s asot bt srsmror e ner 4

Chenges in post.closure plan necessiated by events occurring during the

sctive ife of the faciity, inchuding partial and finad closure 2

B

o

F. Corteirers
1. Modificetion or sddiion of container units:

a.  Resuking in grester then 26% increase in the faciity’s cortainer
siorege capachy, sxcept as provided in F{1)(c) and F{aXa) of this

appendix 3
b, Resulting in up to 25% increase in the faciity’s corteiner storage
cepacty, excent as provided in F(1Xc) and F(4)X®) of this appendi ..........eeeeens 2
1694
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CONSOLIDATED PERMITS 30 TAC § 305.69

. O restment processes necessary 1o tresd westes thet ere
restricied fom land disposal to meet some or ol of the appiceble
treatmert standerds or 1o reat wasies to sefisty (in whole or in part)
the standerd of "use of practically aveiable technology thet yields
the grestest environmenial beneft” cortained in 40 CFR
268.8(8)(2)(H), with pricr approval 01 the executive director. This
modificetion may edso rrvolve agdition of new waste codes or
narralive descriptions of westes. I is not sipplicable to dioxin-
cordaining westes (FG20, 021,022,023, 026,027, and 028). ..o 1)

2. Mogificalion of cortainer units, as folows:

4. Modification of & container unit without incressing the capacity of
the untt
b, Addition of & roof 1o a container unit without alteration of the
cortainment system - !

3. Storage of ditferert westes in corteiners, except 85 provided in F{3) of this
appendix

e, Thet require adicitional or ditferent management prectices from
. those authorized inthe permit.... ..o et eeee e e 3
. Thet do not require adotional or tterert menagemem practices
from those authorized in the permit 2

MNote: See §305.83({g) of this tile (relating 1o Solid Waste Fermit Modification at the Request of
the Permitiee]} for modification procedhres to be used tor the management of newly fisted or

idertified wastes.
4. Storage or reedment ot differert wastes in containers:

&. Thet require addition of unlls or change in fregtment process o
managemert standards, provided that the westes are restricied
trom lend disposel and gre to be treated 1o meet some of all 0f the
appdicable trestment stendeards, or that sre 10 be trevted (o satisty
(inwhole or in part) the standerd of “use of practically avadable
technology that vields the greéstest environmert el benefit” cortained
in 40 CFR 268.8(a)(2)(H), with prior approvel of the execudive
director. This modificetion is not epplicable to dinxin-cortaining
wastes (FO20, 021, 022, 023, 026, 027, and 028) 1

b, Thet tdo not requirs the addition of unis or a change in the
reatment process or management standards, and provided thed the
units heve previously received wastes of the same type (e.q.,
incinerstor scrubber weter), This modification is not applicable to

dioxin-containing westes (FO20, 021,022, 823, 026, 027, entd 028) ...l
5. Other changes in comtainer mensgement bpractk:ves {e.g., visle space, types
ot cortainers, segregation) 2
G, Tanks

1. Modificetion or addiion of jank unis or irestmerd processes, as follows:

&. Modificetion or addition of tank units resulting in greeter than 25%

incresse inthe facilty's tank capacity, except as provided in G(1)(c),

G{1Xd), end G{1)(e) of this eppensix 3
b, Modification or ackition of tenk units resuting in upio 25% norease

inthe facity’s tard capacly, except as provided in G{1Xd} end

G{1)(e) of this appencix 2
©.  Agcition of & nev tank (no capacay fimitedlon) thet will operete for

more than 90 deys using any ot the Tolitswing physical or chemical

treatmert iechrwiogies: neutraization, dewstering, phase

separation, or component separation 2
d. Adter prior approval of the executive director, sddition of a new tank

{0 copacty imtation) thet will opersie for upio 80 days using sny

of the following physical or chemicsl reatmert technologies:

neulrslization, dewsdering, phase separation, or component

separation 1
g, Modificstion or eddiion of tank units or trestmen! processes

necessary i treat wastes that are restricted from fend dizposalto

meet some o all of the sppliceble reatment stonderds ortoireat

wastes to satisty (inwholg or in part) the standerd of *use of

practically evailatie technology thet vields the greatest

environmental heneft® conteined in 40 CFR 268 8(a)(2)(1), wih

prior appraval of the exendive direcior. This modificstion may also

invoive addtion of new wasle codes. &z nut sppliceble to diodn.

conmaining wastes (FO20, 021,022,023, 026,027, antf 028 cevcrnnee v AN
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Modificetion of 8 tenk uni or secondery conteinment sysiem without
increasing the cepacity of the uni 2

Repiacemert of atank with 8 tank that mests the same design stenderds
end has a cagecly within +410% 0f the replaced tenk provided ...

a. The cepecty ditterence is no more than 1,500 gellons,
b. The feclly's permited tank capacily is not increased and
¢. The replacament tank meets the same condtions inthe permit.

Modification of e fank mer rt practice b}

Management of ditterent wastes intarnks:

& Thet require scditionel or different managemend praclices, tank

design, different fire protection specificadions, or significantly

different tank trestmerd process from that euthorized inthe permd,

except as provided in G{SXC) of this appendix 3
b, That do nad require additional or differert menagement prattices,

tank design, ditferent fire protection specifications, or significantly

ditferent tank restmend process from thet authorized inthe perma,

excegt as provided in G(5Xd) ot this appendix. 2
¢. Thet require addition of units or change in frestment processes or

management standards, provided that the westes are restricted

from tand disposal and ere 1o be irested to ment some or sl of the

appicable treatment standards or that are {o be treated to satisty (n

whale or in part) the stenderd of “use of practicelly avaliable

technclogy that vields the greddest environmental beneft” cordained

in 40 CFR 268.8(a)(1 X7}, with prior spprovel of the execulive

director, The modificadion is nat applicsbie te dioxin-cortsining

wastes (FO20, (121, 022, 023, 026, 027 ,ard 028) 1
d. That do not require the addition of undts or e change in the

treatment process of menegemert standards, and provided that the

units have previously received westes of the same type (89,

incinerator scrubber water). This modificetion is not sppiicable to

dinxin-cordaining westes (F020, 021, 022,023,028, 027, 9nd 028) oo 1

Note: See §305.69(g) of this {Rie for modification procedures 1o be used for the menagement of
rewdy fisted or idertified wastes.

B, Surfece impoundmerts

1.

Modification or addition of surfece impoundment uns thet resut in
increasing the tacily's surface impoundment storsge or reaiment cepaciy

Replacement of a surface impoundment unit 3

Modificetion of 8 surface npoundmernt unit withoat incressing the facidy's
surtace mnpoundment storage or restmernt capaciy and wm modhtying
the uni's finer, leak detection system, or leachete collects 2

Modificetion of a surtace impoundment mar rd practice 2

Treatment, stovage, or disposal ot ditferent westes in surface inpountmentsc

a. Thel require additonal or differert managemert practices or

difterent design of the ings or leak dedection system than euthorized

inthe permi 3
B, Thet do not require sdditional or differerd mmugeum practices or

cifferert design of the Ener or leak detection ystem than authorized

inthe permit 2
c. Thal are wastesresiricled from land disposal that meet the

sppicable trestment standards or that sre fregied to satiefy the

stanciard of “use of practicslly aveiabie techowiogy thet vields the

grestest environmental benefd” contained in 40 CFR 2568 8(a)(2X(H),

and provided thet the unit meets the minimum technological

requirements stated in 40 CFR 288 5(h)(2). This modification is not

spphicable o dioxin-cortaining ywastes (FO20, 021, 022, 823, 028,

027, end 0128) 1
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CONSOLIDATED PERMITS 30 TAC § 305.69

4. That ere resih from v ¥ of incineration,
provided thet dispossl ocowrs in s unt thet meets the minimum
technological requirements stated in 40 CFR 268 5h)(2), sl
provides further thed the surface impoundmen hes previously
received wastes of the same type (1or example, incinerstor scrubber
weter). This modification is net appiicable to dioxin-containing
westes (FO20, 021,022,023, 026, 027, and 028) . |

8. wModifications of unconstructed urits to comply with §8264 2214¢), 2860222,
264 223, and 269.228(c) OF IS HE ... ..ot resa st 1’

7. Changes in response action garn

&. increase In action leakage rale 3
b. Chengein a specific response reducing ks frequency or

etiectiveness 3
¢.  Other Changes 2

Nete: See §2385 68(g) of this title for moditication procedures 10 be used for the management of
newly isted or identified wastes,

. Enclosed Waste Plles. For 8l weste ples except those complying with 40 CFR
264.250(c), modifications are trested the seme es Tor alandfit.

The following modificstions ars appticable only to waste piles complying with 40 CFR
264.250(¢).
1. Modification or addition of waste pie units:

a. Resuting in greater than 25% inCresse in the fecility's waste piie

storage or tresiment capacity 3

k. Resulting in up to 25% increase i the taclity's waste pile storage or
reaiment capacity 2
2. Modificationot wasts pie und withoul increasing the capacity of the Wi 2

3. Replacement of & waste pile unt with another waste piie uni of the same
design ad capacity and meeting ol waste piis conditions inthe permi ...

4. Modification o1 a waste pie gement practice 2

4. Storage or trestment of ditferent wastes in wasie piles:

& That require additional or differerd menagemert practices or

chitterert design of the unit 3
k. That do not require addtione! of different managemert practices or
ditterert design of the unit, 2
hNote: See §305.69(g) of this itle for modification procedures to be used for the managemert of
newly isted or idemttified wasies,
6. Caonversion of an enclosed waste pié to a containment bulilding UNE oo

4, Lendtiis and Unenclosed Waste Plies

1.  Medification or sddition of landf units thel resut in increasing the fecilty’s

disposal capacly 5
2. Replacement of a landfil 3
3. Addiion or modification or 8 liner, leachate colection system, leachate

detection system, run-off condrol, o final cover system . 3

4, Modificetion of alandfil unit without changing a finer, leachate collection
system, leachate detection system, run-off contrd, or finel caver system..

5. Modification of a landfil i practics 2

B. Lendf#l differsnt wastes:

a. Thel require odditional or ditferent management practices, differert

design ot the liner, ieachate collection system, or leachste detection

system 3
b,  That do not require acititional or ditferent menagemert practices,

ditterert design of the finer, ieachele collection system, or leachate

detection syst 2
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¢. Thet ere wastes restricted trom land disposal thet meet the
applicable trestmerd stendards or thet are treated 1o satisty the
stangard of “use of practically avaliabie technology that vields the
grestest environmental benefd” cordained in 40 CFR 258 B(a)(2)(H),
and provided that tre ferddfil uni meets the minimum technological
requirements stated in 40 CFR 288.5(hX(2). This modification is not
applicable t0 dioxin-cortsining wastes (FO20, 021, 022, 823,028,

d.  That ere residues from wastewster trestment or incines on
provided thet disposel ocours in alandfil unit thet mests the
mirimum technological requirements stated in 40 CFR 268 &n)(2),
and provided further thal the landfll has previously received westes
of the same type (for example, incinerstor ash). This modification is
not applicable {0 dioxin-containing wastes (FO20, 021, 022, 023,

026,027, and 028) ......... 4

Note: See §305.68(q) of this titie for modification procedures o be used for the manegement of
newly listed or idertitied wastes.

7. Modificafions of unconstructed units to comply with §§264.251(c), 264 252,
264.253, 264 254(c), 264 301 (c}, 264302, 264.303(c), and 264.304 ot this
titie .. . 1

§. Changes in response action plarc

&, incressen action leak ree ... . 3
b. Change in a specific response reducing 85 frequency of

affecliveness 3
e, Cther changes., 2

K. Land Treatmert

1. Leteral sxpansion of or other modification of & fend restment unit {o ncresse

areal exterd... 3
2. Modification of run-on control syst 2
3. Modify run-off cortrol system ., 3

4, Cther modifications of lend treatment unit componert specifications or
stendards required inihe permit 2

5. Msnagemer? of differert wastes in lend trestmert unite

a. That require a change in permit operating conditions or un design

SPBLICBHONES ... ooeecrtiiecietereviorreensrssarses e e e asa e oe s st aebrs i ot seb s eaet s resese et ot 3
b, Thet do not require & change in parmi onerating condtions or unt
design specifications 2.

Nete: See §305.69(g) of this itle for modification procedures o be used for the managemert of
newly ksted or iderdified wastes,

B, Modification of a jend tresimert management praclice to:

a. increase rate or change method of waste appl Y 3
b. Decrease rate of weste appicetion

a

7. Wodification of 8 land treatment unt management practice 1o change
measures of pH or moisture cortert, or fo enhance microbial or chemical

reactions 2

8. Modlficalion of & land trest ment uni mansgement practice to grow food chain
crops, or add 10 or replace existing permited crops with differert food chein
orops, or to modity aperating plans for distribution of animal feeds resuliing
from such crops 3

9. Modificetion of operating practice due to deteclion of releases from the land
trestment unit pursuant to 40 CFR 264 278(gX2)... 3

10. Chenges in the unsatursted zone monilaring system, resulling in a chenge to
the locetion, depth, or number of samplng poirds, or that replece unsatureted
zone montoring devices or components thereot with devices or componerts
thet have specificetions different from permi requirements ... 3
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18.

. Changes inthe unssturated zone moniioring system that do not resultina

change to the locetion, depth, or number of sampling poirts, or that replace
unsaturated zone monkoring devices or components thereo! with devices or

components having specifications nat ditterent from permit require Merts ...
. Changes in background values 1or hazardous constiuents in solf and soi.

pore Hoaukd

30 TAC § 305.69

. Changes in sampling, analysis, or StetisHCal BrOCRAUNS .....vee e rermienesessiasssnnnens

. Changes inland treatmert demonstration program prior to or during the

demonstration

. Changes in any condition specitied in the permi for & jand trestment unt o

reflect resulls of the lond treatment demonsiration , provided performance
standards are med, and the executive director's prior appraval has been
received

. Changes io aflow a second land treatmert demonstration to ke conducted

wehien the resulls of the first demonstration have not shown the condtions
under which the wastes can be ireated completely, provided the conditions
1or the second demonsiration are substartialy the same a3 the conditions for
the frest demonstration end have raceived the prior epproval of the axecutive
director :

. Changes 1o alow & second land treastment demonstration to be comdiucted

when the resuls of the first demonstredion have nat shown the condiions

under which the waste can be treated complstely, where the condtions for
the second demonstration are not substertially ihe same as the corditions
tor the tirst demonsiration

Changx in vegetatlve cover requirements for closwre

Incinsrators, Bollers and Industrial Furnaces

1.

Changes to incréass by more than 25% any of the following limits authorixed
inthe permit A thermal feed rale imit; a tesdsiream feed rete imit @
chiorine feed rate imit, 8 metal feed rate Emi or an ash feed rate fimd. The
execiutive director will require o new irial burn o substartiste compliance with
the regulatory performance siendards uniess this demonstration can be
made through other means

Changes to increase by up 1o 25% any of the following imits authorized in
the permit: A thermel feed rete limt, a feedsiream feedrate limit;
chiorine/chicrice feed rate Himi, 2 metal feed rate limit, or an ash fead rate
Emit. The executive director will require a new triel burn to substartiate
complience with the regulstary pertormance standards uniess this
demonstration can be made through other means

Modificetion of an incinerstor, boler, or industrial furnace undt by changing
the internal size of geometry of the prmary or secondary combustion unis,
by adding a primary or secondary combustion uni, by substantially changing
the design of any component used 10 remove HCICH, metals or particuiste
from the combustion gases, or by changing other festures of the incinerstor,

boiler, or industrisl furnace that could aftect s capabiity 1o meet the
regutatory performance stendards. The execulive director wil require a new
trial burn o substantiate piishce wihthe fetory pertormance

standards uriess this demonsirstion cen be made through other means

4.  Modification of an incinerator, boier, or industrisl furnace N2 In & manner

thet wouid tot lively atfect the capabiity of the unt fo meet the reguistory
performance standerds bt which would change the operating conditions or
monioring requireiments specified In the permit. The execidive tirecior may
reguire a new trial burn to demonstrate compliance with the reguistory
performance standards.
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5. Operaling requirements:

a.  Modification of the Himits spacifiad in the permit for minimum or
meximum combustion gas temperature, minmum combustion gas
residenice time, oxygen concentration in the secondary combustion
chember, fue gas carbon monoxide and hydrocarbon
concerdration, maximum lemperatrs & the inled to the particuiste
metter emission corkrol system , or operating paremetars for the air
poludion control system. The axecutive drector wil requilre a new
iriol rn to substantiete compliance with iha regulsiory
pertormance sisndards uniess this demonstration can be made
thwough other means 3

b. Modification of eny steck pas emission Emis specified in the permé,
ot modificalion of any conditions in the permit concerning
emergency shaldown or sutomstic weste feed culotf procadures o

cortrols b
¢, Modification of any cther operaling condilion or eny inspection or
recordkeeping requirement specified in the permit 2

6. Burning ditferert wastes:

a. ifthe waste contains & principal orgenic hazerdous constiuent

(POHC) that is more ditficult to bum than suthorized by the permt

of if buroing of the waste raguires compiance whih differert

regulatory performence standards than specified inthe perm. The

executive dirtior wil require e new trigl bum to subsisitiale

compliance with the reguisiory performance standards unless this

demonstration can be made theough othey mesns 3
b, Hihe weste does not cortein a POHC that is more gifficul to burn

than ssthorized by the permit and it burning of the weste does not

reuire compliance with difierent reguistory performance standards

than specified in the permi 2

Mote: Ses §305.63(g) of this Rle for modificetion procedurss 16 be used for the management of
newly reguisted wastes and units,

7. Shakedown and trist burry

a.  Modification of the triel buen plan oy any of the permt condiions

applicabiz turing the shek period for ining cperational
readiness after construction, the trisl burn period, or the period
Immediately tollowing the trial buen 2

P, Authorization of up to an addiiona 720 hours of weste taarming

during the shakedown period tor determining operstions! readiness

afler construction, with the prior spprovel of the executive drsctor ..o’
. Chenges inthe operating requirements set In the permit for

conducting atrial burn, provided the change is minor and has

received the prior approval of the give director At
d.  Changes inihe renges of the opersting requirements set inthe

permit {o refiec! the resulls of the iried buen, provided the chenge is

minor end has received the prior approvel of the executive drector ... 1’

8. Substihiion of an etemate type of nonhazardous waste fuel thad is not
specified in the permg 1

8. Technology thanges reedad to meet standards under Tile 40 CFR Pert 63
{Subpart EEE - National Emission Standerds for Hazardous Ak Polutanis
trom Hazardous Waste Combustars), provided the procedures ot §305.58()
of this titie are followed 1t

M. Corrective Action

1. Approval of & corective action management unit pursuant to 40 Code of
Federal Reguistions §264 552 3

2. Approval of 3 temporary urit or $ime exdension 101 a lemporsry unt prsuare
to 40 Coce of Faderal Regulstions §264.553 2

3. Approvel of & steging ple or staging pie operdm term extension pursuant io
40 Code of Faderal Regulations §264.554 2

N, Corteinment Buildings
1. Modificetion or addition of contanmert buliding unis:

a.  Resuling In gredter than 25% increase inthe feclity's cordanment
uliding storape or trestment capacly o 3
b.  Resuting n up to 25% increase in the teciity's containment buiking

PO

storage o i ¢ capacty
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2. Modification of » cortainmert bullding unt or secondery contsiwnent system

withod increasing the capacty of the und

W

3. Replacement of a containment buliding with 8 cordairnmert buikding thet

mests the same design stendards providec:

a. Theunk capacly is el increased

k. The replecemsrt cortainment hullding meets the same condiions

inthe permit

4. Modification of a conteinment building managererd practice ..., 2

5. Sorage or restment of ditferent wastes in containmer bulidings:

a. Thet meouke additions! or ditterert meragemert

pravtices.

b That do not require edditional or different

mansgement practices

Source: The provisions of this §305.69 adopted to be effective
October 29, 1990, 15 TexReg 6015; amended to be effective July 29,
1992, 17 TexReg 5090; amended to be effective June 7, 1993, 18
TekReg 3290; amended 1o be effective November 23, 1993, 18
TexReg 8215; amended 10 be effective February 22, 1994, 19 TexReg
941; amended to be effective November 7, 1994, 19 TexReg 8543;
amended to be effective April 17, 1995, 20 TexReg 2392; amended
10 be effective February 26, 1996, 21 TexReg 1137; amended to be
effective August 8, 1999, 24TexReg5879;amended to be effective
March 21, 2000, 25 TexReg 2368; amended to be effective April 12,
2001, 26 TexReg 2739; amended to be effective November 15, 2001,
26 TexReg 9123.

Y s 2
. v

Registration Modifications /

(a) This section applies only to modificatio
municipal solid waste (MSW) permits and registra-
tions related to regulated MSW activities. Mgdifica-
tions to industrial and hazardous solid waste per-
mits are covered in §305.69 of this title (felating to
Solid Waste Permit Modification at the' Request of
the Permittee). Changes to condition$ in an MSW
permit or registration which were/specifically or-
dered by the commission followrﬁg the contested
hearing process or included by the executive direc-
tor as a result of negotiations between the applicant
and interested persons duting the permitting/
registration process are noyeligible for modification
under this section. The effective date of the repeal of
existing §305.70 of ;2 title (relating to Municipal

Solid Waste Class I Moédifications) and replacement
with this new §305/70 of this title (relating toc Mu-
nicipal Solid Wasté Permit and Registration Modifi-
cations} is June 3, 2002. Applications for modifica-
tions filed beque this new section becomes effective,
will be subjg«ét to the section as it existed prior io
June 3, 2002.

(b) Reférences to the term “permit” in this section
include/the permit document and all of the attach-
ments/ thereto as further defined in 30 TAC Chapter
330/ Subchapter E, §§330.50-330.64 of this title
(@atmg to Permit Procedures). References to the

th}s tltle
(c) Except as provided in subsection (k) of

permltted or regxstered daily maximum lmit of

requirements of §305.62{c)(1) of this title (felating to
Amendment) in the case of a permitted fdcility, or to
the requirements of a new registration ji the case of
a registered facility.

{d) Permit and registration modifi¢ations apply to
minor changes to an MSW facility/or its operation
that do not substantially alter the germit or registra-
tion conditions and do not reduée the capability of
the facility to protect human health and the
environment.

(e) A permittee or registfant may implement a
modification to an MSW p¢rmit or registration pro-
vided that the permittee or registrant has received
prior written authorizatién for the modification from
the executive director/ In order to receive prior
written authorizatioy, the permittee or registrant
must submit a modification application to the execu-
tive director which includes, at a minimum, the
following information:

(1) a description of the proposed change;

(2) an explahation detailing why the change is
necessary; : ‘

(3) appropriate revisions to all applicable narra-
tive pages ,ng drawings of Attachment A of a permit
or a regi /ﬁirauon (i.e., a site development plan, site
operatigg plan, engineering report, or any other
approyed plan attached to a permit or a registration
docusnent). These revisions shall be marked and
inclide revision dates and notes as necessary in
acfordance with §330.51(e)(4) of this title (relating
td Permit Application for Municipal Solid Waste
/?acdlt}es} and §330. 64(b} and (c) of this mle (relat—
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or a&er September 1, 1995, shaii be due at least 189
days before the expiration date of the effective
permit, The executive director may grant permissjon
for a later date; however, applications must/ be
submitted prior to the expiration date of the pefmit.

{d) The executive director may require sybmis-
sion of a renewal application sooner than thé dates
set out in subsections (b) and (c) of this section upon
a determination that a particular waste/disposal
activity necessitates a more frequent evalpation.

(e) Permits generally will be issued to;;naintain a
five-year cycle of the expiration date schedule in
subsection (b) of this section. The comimission may
issue a permit for less than a five-year term if it
determines that a shorter term is nefessary,

Source: The provisions of this §305.71 a 5 pted 10 be effective

January 17, 1995, 20 TexReg 19; amended 19 be effective June 17,
1999, 24 TexReg 4441 /

§ 305.72. Underground Injection Control (UIC)
Permit Modifications at the Re-
quest of the ermittee

(a) This section applies mﬂy to Underground In-
jection Control permits. jf

(b} With the permittees consent, the executive
director may modify administratively a permit to
make the corrections or/yiglowancés for changes in
the permitted activity listed in this section, without
following the procedures and notice requirements of
this chapter. Any charige to the permit not processed
as a minor modification under this section must be
made for cause and/in compliance with appropriate
public notice reghirements. Minor modifications
may only: / '

(1) Correct tz‘éographical errors;

(2) Require more frequent monitoring or report-
ing by the perinittee;

(3) Changg an interim compliance date in a sched-
ule of compliance, provided the new date is not
more than/120 days after the date specified in the
existing permit and does not interfere with attain-
ment of the final compliance date requirement;

(4) Change quantities or types of fluids injected
which/are within the capacity of the facility as
permijtied and in the judgement of the executive
diredtor, would not interfere with the operation of
the facility or its ability to meet conditions described
in ;jthe permit and would not change its classifica-
tion
/ (S) Change consmxctxon requxrements provided

/thatthe. ;

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Ingectzon Control) or )
(6) Amend a plugging and abandonment plan

SUBCHAPTER F.  PERMIT
CHARACTERISTICS AND CONDITIONS

§ 305.121. Applicability

The provisions of this subchapter establish the
characteristics and standards for permits issued for
injection wells, waste discharge, radioactive-mate--
sial-dispesal; and solid waste management, includ-
ing sewage sludge.

Source: The provisions of this §305.121 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597; amended to be effective October 8,
1990, 15 TexReg 5492; amended to be effective September 14,
2000, 25 TexReg 8974

8§ 305.122. Characteristics of Permits

{a) Compliance with a RCRA permit during its
term constitutes compliance, for purposes of enforce-
ment, with subtitle C of RCRA except for those
requirements not included in the permit which:

(1) become effective by statute;

{2) are promulgated under 40 Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 268, restricting the place-
ment of hazardous wastes in or on the land;

(3) are promulgated under 40 CFR Part 264,
regarding leak detection systems for new and re-
placement surface impoundment, waste pile, and
landfill units, and lateral expansions of surface im-
poundment, waste pile, and landfill units. The leak
detection system requirements include double lin-
ers, construction quality assurance programs, moni-
toring, action leakage rates, and response action
plans, and will be implemented through the Class 1
permit modifications procedures of §305.69 of this
title {relating to Solid Waste Permit Modification at
the Request of the Permittee); or

' {4) are promulgated under 40 CFR Part 265,
Subparts AA, BB, or CC limiting air emissions, as
adopted by reference under §335.112 of this title
(relating to Standards).

(b} A permit issued within the scope of this sub-
chapter does not convey any property rights of any
sort, nor any exclusive privilege, and does not be-
come 2a vested right in the permittee.

{c) The issuance of a permit does not authorize
any injury to persons or property or an invasion of

1708
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other property rights, or any infringement of state or 7
local law or regulations ~otherfacility-

(2) The permitiee must apply for an amendmen
or renewal before the expiration of the cxisting
permit in order to continue a permitted activity after
the expiration date of the permit. Authorization 1o
continue such activity terminates upon the effective
denial of said application.

~3rh-i
enforcement action that it wo gen neces-
Uice the permitted activity to

(4) The permittee shall take all reasonable steps o
minimize or prevent any discharge or sludge use or
disposal or -other permit violation which has a

Source: The provisions of this §305 122 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597; amended to be effective October 8, - .
1990, 15 TexReg 5492; amended 1o be effective November 23, 1993, reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human
18 TexReg 8215; amended to be effective February 26, 1996, 21 health or the environment.

TexReg 1137; amended to be effective November 15, 2001, 26

TexReg 9123. (3) The permittee shall at all times properly oper-
ate and maintain all facilities and systems of treat-

v s ton-i b ment and control (and related appurtenances) in-

Every permit is subject to further orders Tules  stalled or used by the permittee to achieve compliance

of the commission. In accordance with-the proce- with the permit conditions. For-Underground-Injec—
dures for amendments and orders, the commission  tion Control permits, proper operation and maj
may incorporate into permits alfeady granted any ~— Dance includes effective performance, adequ

condition, restriction, limjtation, or provision rea- ! :
sonably necessary for-the administration and en- adequate 1aboratf>ry and process conrols, mc?udmg
forcement of Texas Water Code, Chapters 26, 27, and apprcpriatg quality assurance procedures. This pro-
28, and the Texds Health and Safety Code, Chapters ~ Vision requires the operation
361 and . only when necessary to

So & The provisions of this §305.123 adopted to be effective achieve comphance the permit conditions.
Jﬁ 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597; amended to be effective September (6) The permitt€e shall furnish to the executive
§ 305.124. Acceptance of Permit, Effect any info tion to determine whether cause exists

_ Acceptance ‘?f the permit by the person to whomit  thefermit, and copies of records required to be kept
is issued constitutes an acknowledgment and agree- ;

ment that such person will comply with all the terms
and conditions embodied in the permit, and the
rules and other orders of the commission.

Source: The provisions of this 8305.124 adopted to be effective
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(7) The permittee shall give notice to the execu-
tive director before physical alterations or additions
to the permitted facility if such alterations or addi-

June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597, tions wc?uld require a permit amendment or result in
a violation of permit requirements.
§ 305.125. Standard Permit Conditions (8) Authorization from the commission is re-

Conditions applicable to all permits issued under ~ guir ed before beginning any change in the permitted
this chapter, and which shall be incorporated into  facility or activity that Wmﬂfl result in noncompli-
each permit expressly or by reference to this chapter ~ ance with other permit requirements.
are as follows. {9) The permittee shall report any noncompliance

; ; to the executive director which may endanger hu-
man health or safety, or the environment.

{A) Such information shall be provided orally
within 24 hours from the time the permittee be-
comes aware of the noncompliance. A written sub-
mission shall also be provided within five days of the
1709
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time the permittee becomes aware of the
noncompliance. The written submission shall con-
tain a description of the noncompliance and its
cause; the potential danger to human health or
safety, or the environment; the period of noncompli-
ance, including exact dates and times; if the non-
compliance has not been corrected, the time it is
expected to continue; and steps taken or planned o
reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrence of the
noncompliance, and to mitigate its adverse effects.

(B) The following must be reported within 24
hours under this paragraph.

(i) any unanticipated bypass which exceeds any
effluent limitation in a TPDES permit.

(ii) violation of a maximum daily discharge limi-
tation for any pollutants listed in a TPDES permit to
be reponed within 24 hours.

(10) Inspection and entry shall be allowed under
Texas Water Code, Chapters 26 - 28, Texas Health
and Safety Code, §8361.032-361.033, 361.037, and
401.063, and 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR),
§122.41(). The statement in Texas Water Code, §26.
014 that commission entry of a facility shall occur in
accordance with an establishment’s rules and regu-
lations concerning safety, internal security, and fire
protection is not grounds for denial or restriction of
entry to any part of the facility, but merely describes
the commission’s duty to observe appropriate rules
and regulations during an inspection.

(11) Monitoring and reporting requirements are
as follows.

{A) Monitoring samples and measurements shall
be taken at times and in a manner so as to be
representative of the monitored activity.

{B) Except as-otherwise required-by Chapter-336-
ofthis-title or for records of monitering information
required by a2 permit related to the permittee’s
sewage sludge use and disposal activities, which
shall be retained for a period of at least five years {or
longer as required by 40 CFR Part 503), monitoring
and reporting records, including strip charts and
records of calibration and maintenance, copies of all
records required by the permit, records of all data
used to complete the application for this permit, and
the certification required by 40 CFR §264.73(b)(9)

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

shall be retained at the facility site for a period of
three years from the date of the record or sample,
measurement, report, application, ar certification.
This period shall be extended at the request of the
executive director.

{C) Records of monitoring activities shall include:

(i) date, time and place of sample or measure-
ment;

(i) identity of individual who collected the sample
or made the measurement;

(iii) date of analysis;

(iv) identity of the individual and laboratory who
performed the analysis;

{v) the technique or method of analysis; and

(vi) the results of the analysis or measurement.

(12) Any noncompliance other than that specified
in this section, or any required information not
submitted or submitted incorrectly shall be reported
to the executive director as promptly as possible.

{13) A permit may be transferred only according
to the provisions of §305.64 of this title (relating to
Transfer of Permits) and §305.97 of this title (relat-
ing to Action on Application for Transfer).

(14) All reports and other information requested
by the executive director shall be signed by the
persen and in the manner required by §305.128 of
this title (relating to Signatories to Reports).

(15) A permit may be amended, suspended and
reissued, or revoked for cause. The filing of a request
by the permittee for a permit amendment, suspen-
sion and reissuance, or termination, or a notification
of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance,
does not stay any permit condition.

(16) A permit does not convey any property rights
of any sort, or any exclusive privilege.

(17) Monitoring results shall be provided at the
intervals specified in the permit.

(18) Reports of compliance or noncompliance
with, or any progress reports on, interim and final
requirements contained in any compliance schedule
of the permit shall be submitted no later than 14
days following each schedule date.

(19) Where the permittee becomes aware that it
failed to submit any relevant facts in a permit
application, or submitted incorrect information in
an application, or in any report to the executive
director, it shall promptly submit such facis or
information.

~ewﬁ»-anéﬁeﬁfmna}~peaalaes~a&appheable~»uade¥
~Texas-Water-Coder 8826136, 26:212;-end 26213 for
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olalion 1 ging.b no miteg.fothe 1oliow

{(A) negligently or knowingly violating CWA, &8
302, 306, 307, 308, 318, or 405, or any condilion or
limitation implementing any sections jr

CWA, §402(a)(3) or (b){8);

(B) falsifying, tampering with, or knowingly ren-
dering inaccurate am/{nonitoring device or method
required to be mgifitained under a permit; or

er a permit, including monitoring reports or

(21) For hazardous waste management f{acility
permits, the executive director may require the
perTnittee to establish and maintain an information
repository at any time, based on the factors set forth
in 40 CFR, §124.33(b), as amended through Decem-
ber 11, 1995, at 60 FedReg 63417. The information
repository will be governed by the provisions in 40
CFR §124.33(c)-(D), as amended through December
11, 1995, at 60 FedReg 63417.

{323 Nierks £l it
L& T IO U U O ER Y uysu}.

{A) Each permittee shall notify the executive di-
rector, in writing, immediately following the filing of
a voluntary or involuntary petition for bagkruptcy
under any chapter of Title 11 (Bankruptey) of the

(i) the permittee;

e
(ii) an entity (as that term js’defined in 11 USC,
§101(14)) controlling the pérmittee or listing the

(B) This not;ﬁ’éation must indicate:
(i) the nay{eof the permittee;

Source: The provisions of this §305.125 adopied to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597; amended to be effective July 14,
1987, 12 TexReg 2102; amended to be effective July 27, 1988, 13
TexReg 3513; amended 1o be effective Ociober 8, 1990, 15 TexReg
5492; amended 1o be effective February 11, 1997, 22 TexReg 1169;
amended to be effective Angust 8, 1999, 24 TexReg 5879 amended
to be effective September 14, 2000, 25 TexReg 3974
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30 TAC 8 305.126
i _ 1t5onal-Standard Permit Condiv
7
tions for Waste Discharge Pey-
mits

(a) Whenever flow measurements for any sewage
treatment plant facility in the state reaches 75% of
the permitted average daily or annual average flow
for three consecutive months, the permitteg must
initiate engineering and financial planning/for ex-
pansion and/or upgrading of the wastewater treat-
ment and/or collection facilities. Whenever the av-
erage daily or annual average flow reaclies 90% of
the permitted average daily flow for thrée consecu-
tive months, the permittee shall obtajn necessary
authorization from the commission /1(3 comimence
construction of the necessary additignal treatment
and/or collection facilities. In the cage of a wastewa-
ter treatment f{acility which reaches 75% of the
permitted average flow for three ¢
and the planned population to/be served or the
quantity of waste produced is not expected to exceed
the design limitations of the tfeatmemnt facility, the
permittee will submit an engingering report support-
ing this claim to the execufive director. If in the
judgment of the executive dyﬁecter the population to
be served will not cause/permit noncompliance,
then the requirements of this section may be waived.
To be effective, any waiver must be in writing and
signed by the director of/the enforcement division of
the commission, and stich waiver of these require-
ments will be reviewedl upon expiration of the exist-
ing permit; however/ any such waiver shall not be
interpreted as condbning or excusing any violation

of any permit parameter.

(b} The perm:'?ee shall give notice to the execu-

tive director as /soon as possible of any planned
physical alterations or additions to the permitted
facility. In addition to the requirements of §305.
125(7) of thif title (relating to Standard Permit
Conditions), fotice shall also be required under this
subsection when:

(1) the glteration or addition to a permitted facil-
ity may rheet one of the criteria for determining
whether a facility is a new source in §305.534 of this
title (refating to New Sources and New Discharg-
ers); (z/

(2) Ahe alteration or addition could significantly
cha?ée the nature or increase the quantity of pollut-
anty discharged. This notification applies to pollui-
anfs which are subject neither to effluent limitations

ir/ the permit, nor to potification requirements un-
gfer 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) §122.
/42(a)(1) as adopted by §305.531 of this title (relating
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7

(3) the alteration or addition results in a Siﬁ%
1

cant change in the permittee’s sludge use or dis
practices, and such alteration, addition, or

are different from or absent in the existing permit
including notification of additional
sites not reported during the p
process or not reporied pursu
land application plan.

(c) If the permittee is g'new discharger, it must
provide quantitative dat# described in 40 CFR §122.
21h)(EXT) and (i) later than two years after
commencement ofdischarge; however, the permit-
tee need not copfuct tests which the permittee has
already p:ﬁ)ﬁned and reported under the dis-
charge mopitoring requirements of its TPDES permit.

Source: The provisions of this §305.126 adopted to be effective
June 19,1986, 11 TexReg 2597; amended to be effective June 25,
1990,45 TexReg 3416; amended to be effective October 8, 1990, 13
TexReg 5492; amended to be effective April 24, 1995, 20 TexReg
08 amended to be effective December 27, 1998, 23 TexReg

t to an approved

;;

§ 305.127. Conditions To Be Determined for
Individual Permits
Conditions to be determined on a case-by-case
basis according to the criteria set forth herein, and
when applicable, incorporated into the permit ex-
pressly or by reference, are:

£-Puration
tion-

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

(1) Permits which authorize a direct discharge of

term not to exceed five years.

(11} Confined animal feeding operation permits
may be for the life of the proje

“or mined shaft permits. Drilled or
permits which authorize operation of a
or mined shaft shall be for a term not to

A4
CACeCaeh-yoars:

(E) Term of permit. The term of a permit shall not
be extended by amendment beyond the maximum
duration specified in this section.

(F) Duration of permit. The executive director
may recommend that a permit be issued and the
commission may issue any permit, for a duration
less than the full allowable term under this section.
—£G)-Radieactive-material licenses-

(D) Licenses issued under Chapter 336, Sﬁ@p-
ter H of this title (relating to L nsmg Require-
ments for Near-Surface LandDisposal of Low-Level

Radioactive Waste be for a fixed term not to
exceed 20 yea

(A) Injection well permits

> (2) Momtormg, recordmg, and reportmg
. ]_\/ (A) Requirements concerning the proper use,
(1) Permits for Class I and Class V wells'shall be maintenance, and installation of monitoring equip-

for a fixed term not to exceed ten ye

(if) Permits for Class 11] wells-or projects may be
for the life of the well or-project, and shall be
reviewed at least once every five years.

term not-to exceed ten years.
ig Other solid waste permits may be for the life of

(iii) Each permit for a land disposal facility used
to manage hazardous waste shall be reviewed by the
executive director five years from the date of permit
issuance or reissuance and shall be modified as
necessary by the commission, as provided in §305.
62(e) of this title (relating to Amendment).

4
(i) Texas pollu ischarge elimination system

(TPD fmits, including sludge permits, shall be
~for-a-term-not-to-exceed-five-years—

ment or methods shall be specified by the commis-
sion as appropriate.

{B) The type, intervals, and frequency of monitor-
ing shall be set to yield data representative of the
monitored activity, at a minimum as specified in
commission rules for monitoring and reporting.

(C) Other requirements for monitoring and report-
ing shall be set at a minimum as specified in com-
mission rules for monitoring and reporting.

(3) Schedule of compliance.

{A) A schedule of compliance prescribing a time-
table for achieving compliance with the permit
conditions, the appropriate law, and regulations
may be incorporated into a permit. The schedule
shall require compliance as soon as possible and
may set interim dates of comphance»—FeP—mjeejg@—
welis compliance shall be required_not-tater than
three years after the eff ate of the permit. For

TPDWchedule of cornphance shall
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cnductmg regulated actavmes (by pluggmg an

CONSOLIPATED PERMITS

Chapter-307-of -this-title {relating to-Texas-Surface
—Water-Quality-Standards).

{B) For schedules of compliance exceeding one
year, interim dates of compliance not exceeding one
year shall be set, except that in the case of a schedule
for compliance with standards for sewage sludge
use and disposal, the time between interim dates
shall not exceed six months.

{C) Reporting requirements for each schedule of
compliance shall be specified by the commission as
appropriate. Reports of progress and completion
shall be submitted to the executive director no later
than 14 days after each schedule date

condmons apply /

(i) The first TPDES permit issued to a new source
or a new discharger shall contain a schedul¢ of
compliance only when necessary to allow a regson-
able opportunity to attain compliance with require-
ments issued or revised after commenceient of
construction but less than three years beﬁore com-
mencement of the relevant discharge.

(ii) For recommencing dischargers, a/schedule of
compliance shall be available only when necessary
to allow a reasonable opportunity to/attain compli-
ance with requirements issued or révised less than
three years before recommencement of discharge.

(iii) I a permit establishes a s¢hedule of compli-
ance which exceeds one year from the date of permit
issuance, the permit schedule ghall set forth interim
requirements and the dates for their achievement.

(E) For UIC permits, the time for compliance
shall require compliance s soon as possible, and in
no case later than three years after the effective date
of the permit. Except a8 provided in clause () (I)(-
b-) of this subparagraph, if a permit establishes a
schedule of complidnce which exceeds one year
from the date of permit issuance, the schedule shall
set forth interim /requirements and the dates for
their achievemert

(i) The time between interim dates shall not ex-
ceed one y

Gi) if the/time necessary for completion of any
interim reguirement is more than one year and is
not readily divisible into stages for completion, the
permit shall specify interim dates for the submission
of reports of progress toward completion of the
interim requirements and indicate a projected

letion date.

il) A permit applicant or permittee may cease

30 1AL § sUb.127

(I) If the permittee decides to cease conducting
regulated activities at a given time within the terfn of
a permit which has already been issued:

(-a-) The permit may be modified to comainA new
or additional schedule leading to timely cess?’uon of
activities; or /

(-b-) The permittee shall cease conductix}é permit-
ted activities before noncompliance with any in-
terim or final compliance schedule réquirement
already specified in the permit.

(II) If the decision to cease ccnduct;f)/ag regulated
activities is made before issuance of a/permit whose
term will include the cessation date, the permit shall
contain a schedule leading to cessation of activities
which will ensure timely compli/é.nce with appli-
cable requirements.

(1) If the permittee is undécided whether to
cease conducting regulated acsivities, the executive
director may issue or modify a permit to contain two
schedules as follows:

{-a-) Both schedules shall contain an identical
interim deadline requiring a decision on whether
to cease conducting reguylated activities no later
than a date which ensures sufficient time to comply
with applicable requirerients in a timely manner if
the decision is to confinue conducting regulated
activities;

(-b-) One schedul‘ié\zﬂ lead to timely compliance
with applicable requirements;

(-¢-) The second schedule shall lead to cessation
of regulated actic‘z'éses by a date which will ensure
timely compliance with applicable requirements;

(-d-) Bach pe#’mit containing two schedules shall
include a requirement that after the permittee has
made a final decision under item (-a-) of this sub-
clause, it shajl follow the schedule leading 1o com-
pliance if the decision is to continue conducting
regulated agtivities, and folow the schedule leading
to cessatign if the decision is to cease conducting
regulated/activities.

{1V) The applicant’s or permittee’s decision to
cease conducting regulated activities shall be evi-
denced by a firm public commitment satisfactory to
the v ecutive director, such as a resolution of the
boTi of directors of a corporation.

)} Requirements for individual programs.
;(A) Requirements to provide for and assure com-
pliance with standards set by the rules of the com-
!fmssmn and the 1aws of Texas shali be determmed

2z - & 3% 3 oy Y-Cas DAsIS10
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Each permxt shaﬁ contain terms and condxt;o .

the commission determines necessary to protect
human health and safety, and the enyifonment.

Reference is made to Chapter 330 0of this tide
(relating to Municipal Solid Waste) for municipal
solid waste facility standards, to'Chapter 331 of this
title (relating to Underground Injection Control) for
injection well standards, 10 Chapter 335 of this title
(relating to Industrial”Sclid Waste and Municipal
Hazardous Waste)for solid waste facility standards,
1o Chapter 336-0f this title (relating to Radioactive
Substance Riules) for radioactive material disposal
, to Chapter 309 of this title (relating to
t Standards} for waste discharge standards,

yaﬂ to Chapter 329 of this title (relating to Drilled or
“Mired-Shafts)-for-drilled-or-mined-shaft-standards..

(B) Any applicable statutory or regulatory require-
ments which take effect prior to final administrative
disposition of an application for a permit or prior to
the amendment, modification, or suspension and
reissuance of a permit shall be included in the
permit.

shall i reqmrements >
tained in Chapter 331 of this title for injecti
standards, Chapter 335 of this title for s

shaft standards.
(5) Wastes authorized.
(A) Injection well'permits. Each category of waste

to be disposed ¢t by injection well shall be autho-
rized in the permit.

(B) Drilled or mined shaft permits. Each category
of waste to be handled, stored, processed, or dis-
pesed of in a dnlled or mined shaft or in assomated

(C) Unauthorized wastes. Wastes not authonzed
by permit are prohibited from being transported to,
stored, and processed or disposed of in a permitted
facility.

be incorporated either expressly or eference. If

incorporated by reference,aspecific citation to the
applicable or requirements must be given in
?ﬂmit

Source: The provisions of this §305.127 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597; amended to be effective October 8,
1990, 15 TexReg 5492; amended to be effective October 29, 1990,
15 TexReg 6015; amended to be effective June 13, 1996, 21 TexReg

NALURAL RESUURUE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

4999; amended to be effective February 11, 1997, 22 TexReg 1169;
amended to be effective September 14, 2000, 25 TexReg 8974

§ 305.128. Signatories to Reports

(a) All reports requested by permits and other
information requested by the executive director shall
be signed by a person described in §305.44(a) of this
title (relating to Signatories to Applications) or by a
duly authorized representative of that person. A
person is a duly authorized representative only if:

(1) the authorization is made in writing by a
person described in §305.44(a) of this title (relating
to Signatories to Applications);

(2) the authorization specifies either an individual
or a position having responsibility for the overall
operation of the regulated facility or activity or for
environmental matters for the applicant, such as the
position of plant manager, operator of a well or well
field, environmental manager, or a position of equiva-
lent responsibility. (A duly authorized representative
may thus be ecither a named individual or any
individual occupying a named position}; and

(3) the written authorization is submitted to the
executive director.

(b) If an authorization under this section is no
longer accurate because of a change in individuals
or position, a new authorization satisfving the re-
quirements of this section must be submitted to the
executive director prior to or together with any
reports, information, or applications to be signed by
an authorized representative.

(c) Any person signing a report required by a
permit shall make the certification set forth in §305.
44(b) of this title (relating to Signatories to
Applications).

Source: The provisions of this §305.128 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597; amended 1o be effective July 14,

1987, 12 TexReg 2102; amended to be effective October 8, 1990, 15
TexReg 5492.

O v

(TPDES) program authorization, as’ '
adopted by reference:

(1) Part 122, Subpart B<"Permit Applications and
Special National Poll

1714
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licly owned treatment works (POTWs);
(3) Part 122, Subpart C—Permit Appliedtions and
Special NPDES Program Require ts,8122.21{0),

providing requirements for expédited variance pro-
cedures and time extensions;

<inaking procedures for variances.
aurce: The provisions of this §305.129 adopted to be effective

\ A

SUBCHAPTER G. ADDITIONAL
CONDITIONS FOR HAZARDOUS AND
INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE STORAGE,
PROCESSING, OR DISPOSAL PERMITS

§ 305.141. Applicability

(a) Unless otherwise stated, the conditions con-
tained in this subchapter apply to all hazardous and
industrial solid waste storage, processing, or dis-
posal permits. These conditions are in addition to
those set forth in §305.66 of this title (relating 10
Revocation and Suspension).

(b) In addition to the conditions established un-
der §305.127(4) of this title (relating to Conditions to
be Determined for Individual Permits), each permit
for a facility used for the storage, processing, and
disposal of hazardous waste shall include:

(1) each of the applicable requirements specified
in Chapter 335, Subchapter F of this title (relating to
Permitting Standards for Owners and Operators of
Hazardous Waste Storage, Processing, or Disposal
Facilities); and

(2) a list of the wastes or classes of wastes which
will be processed, stored, or disposed of at the
facility, and a description of the processes to be used
for the processing, storage, or disposal of such
hazardous wastes at the facility, including the design
capacity of each storage, processing, and disposal
unit. Except in the case of containers, the descrip-
tion must identify the particular wastes or classes of
wastes which will be processed, stored, or disposed
of in particular equipment or locations (e.g., halo-
genated organics may be stored in Tank A and metal
hydroxide sludges may be disposed of in landfll
cells B, C, and D).

Source: The provisions of this §305.141 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597; amended 1o be effective June 13,
1996, 21 TexReg 4999.

§ 305.142. Duty To Comply

The permitiee need not comply with the condi-
tions of the permit to the extent and for the duration

30 TAC 8 305.145
such noncompliance is authorized in an emergency
order issued by the commission.

Source: The provisions of this §305.142 adopted 10 be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597.

§ 305.143. Recordkeeping

For those permits containing a groundwater moni-
toring requirement, the permittee shall maintain
records from all groundwater monitoring wells and
associated groundwater surface elevations for the
active life of the facility and for disposal facilities for
the post-closure care period as well,

Source: The provisions of this §305.143 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597.

§ 305.144. Certification and Inspection

For a new facility, the permitiee may not com-
mernce storage, processing, or disposal of solid waste;
and for a facility being modified, the permittee may
not process, store, or dispose of solid waste in the
modified portion of the facility, except as provided in
§305.69 of this title (relating to Solid Waste Permit
Modification at the Request of the Permitiee) until:

(1) the permitiee has submitted to the executive
director by certified mail or hand delivery a letter
signed by the permittee and a Texas registered
professional engineer stating that the facility has
been constructed or madified in compliance with
the permit; and

{(2) the executive director has inspected the modi-
fied or newly constructed facility and finds it is in
compliance with the conditions of the permig; or if
within 15 days of submission of the letter required
by paragraph (1) of this section, the permittee has
not received notice from the executive director of an
intent to inspect, prior inspection is waived, and the
permittee may comimence processing, storage, or
disposal of solid waste,

Source: The provisions of this §305.144 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597; amended to be effective October 29,
1990, 15 TexReg 6015.

8§ 305.145. Release or Discharges of Solid Waste

{a) The following shall be included as information
which must be reported orally within 24 hours
pursuant to §305.125(9) of this title (relating to
Standard Permit Conditions):

(1) information concerning release of any solid
waste that may cause an endangerment to public
drinking water supplies;

(2) any information of a release or discharge of
solid waste, or of a fire or explosion from a facility,
which could threaten the environment or human
health or safety outside the facility. The description

1715



-
<
L
=
-
O
o
(@
L
>
—
- -
o
o
<
<
o
L
2
=

30 1AL 8 3U5.145
of the occurrence and its cause shall include:

{A) name, address, and telephone number of the
owner or operator;

(B) name, address, and telephone number of the
facility;

{C) date, time, and type of incident;

(D) name and quantity of material(s) involved;

(E) the extent of injuries, if any;

(F) an assessment of actual or potential hazards
to the environment and human health or safety
outside the facility, where this is applicable; and

(G) estimated quantity and disposition of recov-
ered material that resulted from the incident.

(b} The executive director may waive the five-day
written notice requirement under 8305.125(9) of
this title (relating to Standard Permit Conditions) in
favor of a written report pursuant to this section
within 15 days.

Source: The provisions of this §305.145 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2597; amended 1o be effective April 8,
1987, 12 TexReg 998,

tended, or renewed commercial hazardoud waste
management facility permit shall include thie follow-
ing requirements.

(1) Within the first year after commission action
on the permit the facility owner or/operator shall
provide notice to affected persons 6f intent to have
an independent annual environiental audit of the
facility performed. The notice/shall be issued in
accordance with the following procedure.

(A) The notice shall stat¢ the names of at least
three independent inspectors nominated by the fa-
cility owner or operator to perform the environmen-
tal audit and shall be plblished in the newspaper of
the largest general circulation that is published in
the county in which the facility is located and all
adjacent counties/0r, if no newspaper is published in
the county, in afiewspaper of general circulation in
facility owner or operator shall not
inspector who is employed or who has
been empldyed by the facility.

(B) Tgxé notice shall announce a meeting time and
place, 16 be located near the facility location, be held
w;/ti?‘ﬁ 15 days of the published notice in order for

the Aacility to receive comments from and allow for
pAtticipation by interested affected persons in the

—patod-niio BL-TyE onRs-Fmav-aitha Oree.-o-one o
&8 3 2 ¥

NATURAL RESUURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

nominated independent inspectors or nominate othe
independent inspectors if they do not approve of t}
nominee list. The selection of the independemgﬁn—
spector shall be agreed to by the facility ownef or
operator and the interested affected persons nodater
than 30 days from the date of the meeting. The/name
of the selected independent inspector shall be sub-
mitted to the commission no later than 15 days from
the date of selection for the commission’s dpproval.
The commission shall approve the indep¢ndent in-
spector after it has determined that the iidependent
inspector has the necessary expertise to perform the
audit and does not have a conflict of interest with
any of the parties involved in the inspeCtor selection.

{C) The published notice may note)ae smaller than
96.8 square centimeters or 15 squarg inches with the
shortest dimension at least 7.6 centimeters or three
inches and shall contain, at 2 minimum, the follow-
ing information: /-

(i) the facility owner’s or opérator’s name;

(ii) the location of the facility;

{iii) the facility permit n;xfber;

(iv) the time and date of the scheduled annual
environmental audit;

(v) the names of at leas{ three nominated indepen-
dent inspectors;

(vi) the date and time/ and location of the selection
meeting; and

(vii) the name an?f;teiephone number of a facility
contact person.

(D) The facility ygwner or operator shall provide a
copy of the published notice to local jurisdictions
where the facilisy is located.

{E) The facil}ty owner or operator shall provide
the commissi?ﬁ with an affidavit including a news-
paper tear sl}eet of the published notice and sworn
statement of/ the editor or publisher certifying that
the notice ﬁvas given as required by this section.
Acceptancé of the affidavit creates a rebuttable pre-
sumption/that the applicant has complied with this
section. /

2) ig the facility owner or operator and interested
affected persons cannot agree on the selection of an
indepZtrjldent inspector within the time frame speci-
fied in paragraph (1)(B) of this section, the commis-
sion shall select an independent inspector. The com-
mission’s selection, however, shall not be limited to
efther the facility owner or operator’s nominee list
¢r the interested affected persons’ nominee list. The

LOMINISSION -S4 13 KE- S1EPE- e ssary-10-38sure-1hat-



-
<
L
=
-
O
o
(@
L
>
—
- -
o
o
<
<
o
L
2
=

han

sition of the modification request.

{A) Extension requests made under this para-
zraph shall be submitted during the periods ditbo»
cized under paragraph (1) or (2) of this sub: &ction.
Construction of the unit is authorized unizzr this

subsection until the commission takes final action
on the modification request. 7]

(B) The commission shall not consid;éir requests
made under this paragraph which aré submitted
after the expiration of the time periods authorized
under paragraph (1) or (2) of this subsection.

; (4) Under circumstances which rq{guire a delayed
or staged unit construction schedule longer than
that specified under paragraph (}) of this subsec-
tion, justification for the proposed extended sched-
ule shall be submitted with the permit application.
The submitted schedule shall become part of the
permit only upon the approvil of the commission.
Requests for changes to the approved schedule sub-
mitted during the period cgvered by the approved
schedule shall comply with Class 2 or Class 3 permit
modification rules, pursuaft to §305.69. The class of
the modification shall be determined by the length of
the extension requested/An extension reguest of six
months or less shall be 4 Class 2 modification and an
extension request of gréater than six months shall be
a Class 3 modification request. All requests and
subsequent procedures must comply with applicable
provisions of §305/69 and must comply with any
applicable statmf;z/ry or regulatory requirements
which take effect prior to final administrative dispo-
sition of the modification request.

- {c) Authorization status. Unit construction or man-
agement of hazardous waste in a unit is not autho-
rized under any of the following conditions:

(1) the pérmittee has not constructed the unit
within the /time period specified under subsection
(b)(1) of tiis section and:

(A) the permittee does not submit a modification
request as specified in subsection (b)(2) or (3} of this
section) or

(B)/the commission has denied a request for an
exterfsion under subsection (b}2) or (3) of this
section and the construction period time limit speci-
fied in subsection (b)X1) or (2) of this section has
ex ired;

j (2) the unit has not been constructed within the
[time period specified in the permit as per subsection

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

request as specified in subsection (b)

1) er ee-aoes-mot-suby odifrcation

section; or

Soufce: The provisions of this §305.149 adopted to be effective
G4 £ exReg-Rub:

s Novernbe

§ 305.150. Incorporation of References

When used in this chapter (relating to Consoli-
dated Permits), the references contained in 40 Code
of Federal Regulations §260.11 are incorporated by
reference as amended through May 14, 1999 (64 FR
26315).

Source: The provisions of this §305.150 adopted to be effective
November 20, 1996, 21 TexReg 10982; amended to be effective
November 15, 2001, 26 TexReg 9123,

CONDITIONS FOR INJECTION WELL /
PERMITS

§ 305.151. Applicability

Unless stated otherwise, the following conditions
apply to all Class 1, Class 111, and Class V irfjection
well permits and shall be incorporated/into the
permit expressly or by reference. These/conditions
are in addition to those set forth in §8305.121-3053.
128 of this title (relating to Permitf aracteristics

and Conditions).
Source: The provisions of this §305.151 adopted to be effective

June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2598; amende be effective February
11, 1997, 22 TexReg 1169. /

owner or/operator’s best efforts, he is unable to
obtain t}(e necessary permission to undertake such

njection well

LS & OIIiil=
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CONSOLIDATED PERMITS

Y

Li} A bigu bhan bc yuatbd at-Hhe ‘v‘v’\,ii site-whie
shall show the name of the company, company v
number and commission permit number. Thé
and identification shall be in the English
clearly legible, and shall be in number$and letters at
least one inch high.

(2) An all-weather road-¢h
maintained to allow ag
related facilities.

(3) The wellhfad and associated facilities shall be
painted, jf-appropriate, and maintained in good
working order without leaks.

all be installed and
€ss to the injection well and

Source: The provisions of this §305.159 adopted to be effective

Ny

SUBCHAPTER 1. HAZARDOUS WASTE
INCINERATOR PERMITS

§ 305.171. Determining Operational Readi-
ness

For the purposes of determining operational readi-
ness following completion of physical construction
of a hazardous waste incinerator, the commission
shall establish permit conditions including, but not
limited to, specification of allowable waste feeds and
operating conditions, in a permit for a new hazard-
ous waste incinerator. These permit conditions will
be effective for a minimum required time, not to
exceed 720 hours operating time for treatment of
hazardous waste, to bring the incinerator to a point
of operational readiness sufficient to conduct a trial
burn. The commission may extend the duration of
this operational period once, for up to 720 addi-
tional hours, at the request of the applicant when
good cause is shown. The permit may be modified to
reflect the extension pursuant to §305.69 of this title
(relating to Solid Waste Permit Modification at the
Request of the Permittee).

(1) Applicant must submit a statement, with Part
B of the permit application, which suggests the
conditions necessary to operate in compliance with
the performance standards of 40 Code of Federal
Regulations §284.343 during this period. This state-
ment should include, at a minimum, restrictions on
waste constituents, waste feed rates, and the oper-
ating parameters identified in 40 Code of Federal
Regulations §264.345.

(2) The executive director shall review this state-
ment and any other relevant information submitted
with Part B of the permit application and shall
specify requirements for this period sufficient to
meet the performance standards of 40 Code of
Federal Regulations §264.343, based on the execu-

30 TAC § 305.172

tive director’s engineering judgment.

Source: The provisions of this §365.171 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2600; amended to be effective October 29,
1990, 15 TexReg 6015, :

§ 305.172. Determining Feasibility of Compli-
ance and Adequate Operating
Conditions

For the purposes of determining feasibility of
compliance with the performance standards of 40
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) §264.343 and of
determining adequate operating conditions under
40 CFR §264.345, the commission shall establish
conditions in the permit for a new hazardous waste
incinerator, to be effective during the trial burn.

(1) Applicant shall propose a trial burn plan,
prepared under paragraph (2) of this section, with
Part B of the permit application.

(2) The trial burn plan shall include the following
information:

(A) an analysis of each waste or mixture of wastes
to be burned which includes:

(i) heat value of the waste in the form and com-
position in which it will be burned;

(ii) viscosity (if applicable), or description of physi-
cal form of the waste;

(i) an identification- of any hazardous organic
constituents listed in 40 CFR Part 261, Appendix
VIII, which are present in the waste to be burned,
except that the applicant need not analyze for con-
stituents listed in Part 261, Appendix VIII, which
reasonably would not be expected to be found in the
waste. The constituents excluded from analysis must
be identified, and the basis for their exclusion
established. The waste analysis must rely on analyti-
cal techniques specified in “Test Methods for Evalu-
ating Solid Waste, Physical/Chemical Methods,” EPA
Publication SW-846, as incorporated by reference in
40 CFR §260.11 and in §305.150 of this title (relat-
ing to Incorporation of References), or their equiva-
lent; and

(iv) an approximate quantification of the hazard-
ous constituents identified in the waste, within the
precision produced by the analytical methods speci-
fied in “Test Methods for Evaluating Solid Waste,
Physical/Chemical Methods,” EPA Publication SW-
846, as incorporated by reference in 40 CFR §260.11
and in §305.150 of this title (relating to Incorpora-
tion of References), or their equivalent;

(B) a detailed engineering description of the in-
cinerator for which the permit is sought, including:

(i) manufacturer’s name and model number of
incinerator (if available);
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30 TAC § 305.172
(i1} type of incinerator;
(iti) linear dimensions of the incinerator unit,

including the cross-sectional area of combustion

chamber;

{(iv} description of the auxiliary fuel system {type/
feed);

(v) capacity of prime mover;

{(vi) description of automatic waste feed cut-off
system(s);

(vii) stack gas monitoring and pollution control
equipment;

(viii) nozzle and burner design;

(ix}) construction materials; and

(x) location and description of temperature, pres-
sure, and flow indicating and control devices;

(C) a detailed description of sampling and moni-
toring procedures, including sampling and monitor-
ing locations in the system, the equipment to be
used, sampling and monitoring frequency, and
planned analytical procedures for sample analysis;

{D) a detailed test schedule for each waste for
which the trial burn is planned including date(s),
duration, quantity of waste to be burned, and other
factors relevant to the decision under paragraph (5)
of this section;

(E} a detailed test protocol, including, for each
waste identified, the ranges of temperature, waste
feed rate, combustion gas velocity, use of auxiliary
fuel, and any other relevant parameters that will be
varied to affect the destruction and removal effi-
ciency of the incinerator;

(F) a description of, and planned operating con-
ditions for, any emission control equipment which
will be used;

{G) procedures for rapidly stopping the waste
feed, shutting down the incinerator, and conwolling
emissions in the event of an equipment malfunction;
and

(H) such other information as the executive direc-
tor reasonably finds necessary to determine whether
to approve the trial burn plan in light of the pur-
poses of this paragraph and the criteria in para-
graph (5) of this section.

(3} The executive director, in reviewing the trial
burn plan, shall evaluate the sufficiency of the infor-
mation provided and may require the applicant to
supplement this information, if necessary, to achieve
the purposes of this section.

{4) Based on the waste analysis data in the trial
burn plan, the commission shall specify as trial
principal organic hazardous constituents {POHCs),

17
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those constituents for which destruction and re-
moval efficiencies must be calculated during the
trial burn. These trial POHCs will be specified by the
commission based on an estimate of the difficulty of
incineration of the constituents identified in the
waste analysis, their concentration or mass in the
waste feed, and for wastes listed in 40 CFR Part 261,
Subpart D, the hazardous waste organic constituent
or constituents identified in Appendix VII of that
part as the basis for listing.

(5) The commission shall approve a trial burn
plan if it finds that:

(A) the trial burn is likely to determine whether
the incinerator performance standard required by
40 CFR §264.343 can be met;

{B) the trial burn itself will not present an immi-
nent hazard to human health or safety or the envi-
ronment;

(C) the trial burn will help the commission to
determine the operating requirements to be speci-
fied {(in the permit) according to 40 CFR §264.345;
and

(D] the information sought in subparagraphs (A)
and (C) of this paragraph cannot reasonably be
developed through other means.

(6) The chief clerk shall send notice to the state
senator and representative who represent the area
in which the facility is or will be located, and to the
persons listed in §39.13 of this title (relating to
Mailed Notice) announcing the scheduled commence-
ment and completion dates for the trial burn. The
notice shall meet the requirements of 40 Code of
Federal Regulations §270.62(b){6)(i)-(ii), as amended
through December 11, 1995, at 60 FedReg 63417.
The applicant may not commence the trial burn
until after the chief clerk has issued such notice. This
paragraph applies to initial trial burns and all other
trial burns except those that are to be conducted
within 180 days afier permit modification covering
the trial burn.

(7) During each approved trial burn (or as scon
after the burn as practicable), the applicant must
make the following determinations:

(A} a quantitative analysis of the trial POHCs in
the waste feed to the incinerator;

(B) a quantitative analysis of the exhaust gas for
the concentration and mass emissions of the trial
POHCs, oxygen (0,) and hydrogen chloride (HC);

(C) a guantitative analysis of the scrubber water
(if any), ash residues, and other residues, for the
purpose of estimating the fate of the trial POHCs;

2
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(D) a computation of destruction and removal
efficiency (DRE), in accordance with the DRE for-
mula specified in 40 CFR §264.343(a),

(E) if the HCl emission rate exceeds 1.8 kilograms
of HCl per hour (four pounds per hour), a compu-
tation of HCl removal efficiency in accordance with
40 CFR §264.343(b);

(F) a computation of particulate emissions, in
accordance with 40 CFR §264.343(c);

{G) an identification of sources of fugitive emis-
sions and their means of control;

(H) a measurement of average, maximum, and
minimum temperatures and combustion gas veloc-
ity;

{I) a continuous measurement of carbon monox-
ide (CO) in the exhaust gas; and

(J) such other information as the executive direc-
tor may specify as necessary to ensure that the trial
burn will determine the compliance with the perfor-
mance standards in 40 CFR §264.343 and to estab-
lish the operating conditions required by 40 CFR

8§264.345 as necessary to meet those performance
standards.

(8) The applicant must submit to the executive
director a certification that the trial burn has been
carried out in accordance with the approved trial
burn plan, and shall submit the results of all the
determinations required in paragraph (7) of this
section. This submission shall be made within 90
days of completion of the trial burn, or later with the
prior approval of the executive director.

(9) All data collected during any trial burn shall
be submitted to the executive director immediately
following the completion of the trial burn.

(10) All submissions required by this section shall
be certified on behalf of the applicant by the signa-
ture of a person authorized to sign a permit appli-
cation or a report under §305.44 of this title (relating
to Signatories to Applications) and §305.128 of this
title (relating to Signatories to Reports).

{11) Based on the results of the trial burn, the
commission or the executive director, as appropri-
ate, subject to §50.33 of this title (relating to Execu-
tive Director Action on Application}, shall set the
operating requirements in the final permit accord-
ing to 40 CFR §264.345. The permit amendment or
modification shall proceed according to §305.62 of
this title {relating to Amendment) or §305.69(c) of
this title (relating to Solid Waste Permit Modification
at the Request of the Permittee). .

Source: The provisions of this §305.172 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2600; amended to be effective October 29,

30 TAC % 305.174

1990, 15 TexKeg 6015; amended (b elective November 20, 19%0,
21 feaReg 109820 amended 1o be elfeciive Angust 8, 1999, 24
TexReg S879

§ 305.173. Operatlon Prior to Finsl Amend-
ment of the Permit

For the purposes of allowing operation of 3 new
hazardous waste incinerator following completion
of the trial burn and prior to final amendment of the
permit conditions to reflect the trial burn results, the
commission may establish permit conditions, includ
ing, but not limited to, allowable waste leeds and
operating conditions sufficient 1o meet the require-
ments of 40 Code of Federal Regulations §264.345,
in the permit for a new hazardous waste incinerator.
These permit conditions will be effective for the
minimum time required to complete sample analy-
sis, data computation, and submission of the trial
burn results by the applicant, and amendment of the
facility permit by the commission.

(1) Applicants shall submit a statement with Part
B of the permit application which identifies the
conditions necessary to operate in compliance with
the performance standards of 40 Code of Federal
Regulations §264.343, during the trial burn period.
This statement shall include, at a minimum, restric-
tions on waste constituents, waste feed rates, and
the operating parameters identified in 40 Code of
Federal Regulations §264.345.

(2) The executive director shall review this state-
ment and any other relevant information submitted
with Part B of the permit application, und shall
specify those requirements for this period most
likely to meet the performance standards of 40 Code
of Federal Regulations §264.343, based on the ex-
ecutive director’s engineering judgment.

Source: The provisions of this §305.173 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2600.

§ 305.174. Existing Incinerators

For the purposes of determining feasibility of
compliance with the performance standards of 40
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) §264.343 and of
determining adequate operating conditions under
40 CFR §264.345, the applicant for a permit for an
existing hazardous waste incinerator must prepare
and submit a trial burn plan and perform a trial
burn in accordance with 40 CFR §270.19(b) and
§305.172(2)-(5) and (7)-(10) of this title (relating 1o
Determining Feasibility of Compliance and Ad-
equate Operating Conditions) or, instend, submit
other information as specified in 40 CFR 8§270.19(c).
The chief clerk shall provide notice of the executive
director’s intention to approve the trial burn, in
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30 TAC § 305.174

accordance with the timing and distribution require-
ments of §305.172(6) of this title {relating to Deter-
mining Feasibility of Compliance and Adequate Op-
erating Conditions). The contents of the notice must
include: the name and telephone number of a con-
tact person at the facility; the name and telephone
number of a contact office at the permitting agency;
the location where the trial burn plan and any
supporting documents can be reviewed and copied;
and a schedule of the activities that are required
prior to permit issuance, including the anticipated
time schedule for approval of the plan and the time
period during which the trial burn would be
conducted. Applicants submitting information speci-
fied in 40 CFR §270.19(a) are exempt from compli-
ance with 40 CFR 8§264.343 and 264.345 and,
therefore, are exempt from the requirement to con-
duct a trial burn. Applicants who submit trial burn
plans and receive approval before submission of a
permit application shall complete the trial burn and
submit the results, specified in §305.172 of this title
{relating to Determining Feasibility of Compliance
and Adequate Operating Conditions) with Part B of
the permit application. If completion of this process
conflicts with the date set for submission of the Part
B application, the applicant shall contact the execu-
tive director to establish a later date for submission
of the Part B application or the trial burn resulis.
Trial burn results must be submitted prior to issu-
ance of the permit. When the applicant submits a
trial burn plan with Part B of the permit application,
the executive director will specify a time period
prior to permit issuance in which the trial burn must
be conducted and the results submitted.

Source: The provisions of this §305.174 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2600; amended to be effective October 29,
1990, 15 TexReg 6015; amended to be effective August 8, 1999, 24
TexReg 5879
§ 305.175. Conditional Exemption for Demon-

_strating Compliance with Cer-

tain Air Standards
‘When an owner or operator demonstrates compli-

ance with the air emission standards and limitations
in 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63, Subpart
EEE by conducting a comprehensive performance
test and submitting a Notification of Compliance, the
requirements of this subchapter do not apply, except
that the executive director may apply the provisions
of this subchapter, on a case-by-case basis, and re-
quire a permittee or an applicant to submit informa-
tion in order to establish permit conditions under
8305.127(1)(B)(ii) or (4)}A) of this title (relating to
Conditions To Be Determined for Individual Permits).

Source: The provisions of this §305.175 adopted to be effective
November 15, 2001, 26 TexReg 9123.

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

SUBCHAPTER J. PERMITS FOR LAND
TREATMENT DEMONSTRATIONS USING
FIELD TESTS OR LABORATORY
ANALYSES

8§ 305.181. Treatment Demonstration Permit

For the purpose of allowing an owner or operator
to meet the treatment demonstration requirements
of 40 Code of Federal Regulations §264.272, the
commission may issue a treatment demonstration
permit. The permit shall contain only those require-
ments necessary to meet the standards in 40 Code of
Federal Regulations §264.272(c). The permit may be
issued either as a treatment or disposal permit
covering only the field test or laboratory analyses, or
as a two phase {acility permit covering the field tests
or laboratory analyses, and the design, construction,
operation, and maintenance of the land treatment
unit.

(1) The commission may issue a two-phase facil-
ity permit if it finds that, based on information
submitied in Part B of the application, substantial
information, although incomplete or inconclusive,
already exists upon which to base the issnance of a
facility permit.

(2) If the commission finds that insufficient infor-
mation exists upon which to establish permit condi-
tions to attempt to provide for compliance with all of
the requirements relating to land treatment, the
commission may issue a treatment demonstration
permit covering only the field test or laboratory
analyses.

Source: The proﬁsions of this §305.181 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2600.

§ 305.182. Two-Phase Facility Permit

1f the comunission finds that a phased permit may
be issued, the commission shall establish, as require-
ments in the first phase of the facility permit, con-
ditions for conducting the field tests or laboratory
analyses. These permit conditions shall include de-
sign and operating parameters {including the dura-
tion of the tests or analyses and, in the case of field
tests, the horizontal and vertical dimensions of the
treatment zone), monitoring procedures, post-
demonstration clean-up activities, and any other
conditions which the commission finds may be nec-
essary under 40 Code of Federal Regulations §264.
272(c). The commission shall include conditions in
the second phase of the facility permit to attempt to
meet all requirements pertaining to unit design,
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construction, operation, and maintenance of land
treatment facilities, The commission shall establish
these conditions in the second phase of the permit
based upon the substantial but incomplete or incon-
clusive information contained in the Part B
application.

(1) The first phase of the permit shall be effective
as provided in Texas Civil Statutes, Article 6252-13,
and the rules of the commission.

{2) The second phase of the permit shall be effec-
tive as provided in §305.184 of this title (relating to
Permit Amendment).

Source: The provisions of this §305.182 adopted 1o be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2600

8§ .305.183. Certification

When the owner or operator who has been issued
a two-phase permit has completed the treatment
demonstration, he shall submit to the executive
director a certification, signed by a person autho-
rized to sign a permit application or report under
§305.44 of this title (relating to Signatories to Appli-
cations) and §305.128 of this title (relating to Signa-
tories to Reports), that the field tests or laboratory
analyses have been carried out in accordance with
the conditions specified in phase one of the permit
for conducting such tests or analyses. The owner or
operator shall also submit all data collected during
the field tests or laboratory analyses within 90 days
of completion of those tests or analyses unless the
executive director approves a later date.

Source: The provisions of this §305.183 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2600.

§ 305.184. Permit Amendment or Modification

If the commission determines that the results of
the field tests or laboratory analyses meet the re-
quirements of 40 Code of Federal Regulations §264.
272, it shall amend the second phase of the permit to
incorporate any requirements necessary for opera-
tion of the facility in compliance with requirements
applicable to land treatment, based upon the results
of the field tests or laboratory analyses.

(1) This permit amendment may proceed under
§305.62 of this title (relating to Amendment) or
§305.69 of this title (relating 10 Solid Waste Permit
Modification at the Request of the Permittee), pro-
vided any such change is minor, or otherwise will
proceed as an amendment under §305.62(d) of this
title (relating to Amendment), If such modifications
or amendments are necessary, the second phase of
the permit will become effective only after those
modifications or amendments have been made.

30 TAC 8 305.192

(2) If not amendments of the second phase of the
permit are not necessary, the commission shall give
notice in accordance with §305.96(b) of this title
(relating to Action on Application for Amendment or
Modification). The second phase of the permit then
will become effective as specified in Texas Civil
Statutes, Article 6252-13, and the rules of the
commission.

Source: The provisions of this §305.184 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2600; amended 1o be effective October 29,
1990, 15 TexReg 6013,

SUBCHAPTER K. RESEARCH,

DEVELOPMENT, AND DEMONSTRATION

PERMITS

§ 305.191. Applicability and Scope

The commission may issue a research, develop-
ment, and demonstration permit for any hazardous
waste treatment facility which proposes to utilize an
innovative and experimental hazardous waste treat-
ment technology or process for which permit stan-
dards for such experimental activity have not been
promulgated under 40 Code of Federal Regulations
Parts 264 or 266, Any such permit shall include such
terms and conditions as will assure protection of
human health or safety and the environment. Such
permits:

(1) shall provide for the construction of such
facilities as necessary, and for operation of the
facility for not longer than one year unless renewed
as provided in §305.194 of this title (relating to
Renewal);

(2) shall provide for the receipt and treaument by
the facility of only those types and gquantities of
hazardous waste which the commission deems nec-
essary for purposes of determining the efficacy and
performance capabilities of the technology or pro-
cess and the effects of such technology or process on
human health and safety and the environment; and

(3) shall include such requirements as the com-
mission deems necessary to protect human health
and safety and the environment, including, but not
limited to, requirements regarding monitoring, op-
eration, financial responsibility closure, and reme-
dial action, and such other requirements as the
commission deems necessary regarding testing with
respect to the operation of the facility and providing
of information to the executive director.

Source: The provisions of this §305.191 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2601.

§ 305.192. Waiver of Requirements

For the purpose of expediting review and issuance
of permits under this subchapter, the comumission
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may, consistent with the protection of human health
and safety and the environment, modify or waive
permit application and permit issuance require-
ments of this chapter, except that there may be no
modification or waiver of regulations regarding fi-
nancial responsibility (including insurance) or of
procedures regarding public participation.

Source: The provisions of this §305.192 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2601; amended to be effective August 30,
1988, 13 TexReg 4071,

§ 305.193. ‘Termination

The commission may order an immediate termi-
nation of all operations at a facility subject to this
subchapter at any time the commission determines

" that termination is necessary to protect human

health and safety and the environment.
Saurce: The provisions of this §305.193 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2601,

8§ 305.194. Renewal

Any permit issued under this subchapter may be
renewed not more than three times. Fach such
renewal shall be for a period of not more than one
year.

Source: The provisions of this §305.194 adopted to be effective
June 19, 1986, 11 TexReg 2601.

SUBCHAPTER L. GROUNDWATER
COMPLIANCE PLAN

§ 305.401. Compliance Plan

tection requirements relating to compliance mo
toring and corrective action for facilities that store,
process, or dispose of hazardous waste in strface
impoundments, waste piles, land treatment’units, or
landfills, and the requirements of §335/167 of this
title (relating to Corrective Action for Solid Waste
Management Units), the commissieh shall establish
a compliance plan.

(b) The following rules pe ammg to application,
and notice and hearing shall be applicable in pro-
ceedings to establish the plan: 839.3 of this title
(relating to Purpose);/839.5 of this title {relating ic
General Provisions); §39.7 of this title (relating to
.11 of this title (relating to Text of

Request on an Application); §39.23 of this title
¢ atmg 10 Notxce cf Hearmg Held by SOAH In-

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVA’{ION COMMISSION

ment Case Hearmg) §39 103 of ﬂus mle (relatm g

Application for Industrial or Hazardous Waste’Fa-
cility Permit); §39.105 of this title (relating toAppli-
cation for a Class 1 Modification of an Ipdustrial
Solid Waste, Hazardous Waste, or Munigipal Solid
Waste Permit); §39.107 of this title (relating to Ap-

plication for a Class 2 Modification of an Industrial
or Hazardous Waste Permit); 839109 of this title
{relating to Application for a Clagé 3 Modification of
an Industrial or Hazardous Waste Permit): §50.13 of
this title (relating to Action ofi Application); §50.15
of this title (relating to Scopé of Proceedings); §50.17
of this title {relating to Ceinmission Actions); §55.21
of this title (relating to/Requests for Contested Case
Hearings, Public ?mem) Chapter 281 of this title

{relating to Applications Processing); §305.43 of this
title (relating to, ho Applies); §305.44 of this title
(relating to Si 2 {atories to Apphcatmns). §305 47 of

(c) Any investigation report to establish compli-
ance monitoring or corrective action shall contain
the information specified in the regulations con-
tained in 40 Code of Federal Regulations, §270.
14(c)(7) and (8), which are in effect as of September
9, 1987. The executive director may authorize, in
writing, in advance the submittal of a proposed
permit schedule for the submittal of an engineering
feasibility plan as set forth in the regulations con-
tained in 40 Code of Federal Regulations, §270.
14{c)(7), which are in effect as of September 9, 1987.
The executive director may also authorize, in writ-
ing, prior to the submittal of a complete permit
application, the submitial of a schedule for the
information required in the regulations contained in
40 Code of Federal Regulations, §270.14(c){(8)iii)
and {iv), as set forth in the regulations contained in
40 Code of Federal Regulations, §.270.14{c) (8}{v),
which are in effect as of September 9, 1987, The
executive director may request information neces-
sary to determine the appropriateness and extent of
corrective action required by §335.167 of this title
(relating to Corrective Action for Solid Waste Man-
agement Units).

BTl ecutive.di Lall traf
-compliance-plan-unless-the-executive-director-ree~
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located within the coastal zone and engaged in ?é

production of shrimp, the commission shall cén-
sider all relevant factors, including: /

(1) the site-assessment environmental repodft pro-
vided by the applicant under subsection (a)(l XA) of
this section;

(2) any sensitive aquatic habitat guidélines estab-
lished by TPWD; and
/
(3) any comments on the appliiﬁﬁon provided by
the three-member application review committee re-
ferred to in subsection (b) of thi¢ section.

Source: The provisions of this §305/539 adopted to be effective
September 13, 2000, 25 TexReg 898

SUBCHAPTER P EFFLUENT
GUIDELINES A STANDARDS FOR
TPDES PERMITS

§ 305.541. Efffuent Guidelines and Standards
/ for Texas Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System Permits

Except to the extent that they are less stringent
than the Téxas Water Code or the rules of the
commissign, 40 Code of Federal Regulations, Sub-
chapterﬁ, parts 400-47 1, except 40 Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 403, which are in effect as of the
date ©f Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination Sys-
tertd (TPDES) program authorization, as amended,

e adopted by reference.

Source: The provisions of this §305.541 adopted to be effective

SUBCHAPTER Q. PERMITS FOR
BOILERS AND INDUSTRIAL FURNACES
BURNING HAZARDOUS WASTE

§ 305.571. Applicability

(a) Owners and operators of new boilers and
industrial furnaces (those not operating under the
interim status standards of 40 Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) $266.103 and §335.224 of this
title (relating to Additional Interim Status Standards
for Burners)) are subject to §305.572 of this title
(relating to Permit and Trial Burn Requirements).
Owners and operators of existing boilers and indus-
trial furnaces operating under the interim status
standards of 40 CFR §266.103 and §335.224 of this
title are subject to §305.573 of this title (relating 1o
Interim Status and Trial Burn Requirements).

(b) When an owner or operator of a cement or
lightweight aggregate kiln demonstrates compliance
with the air emission standards and limitations in 40

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

CFR Part 63, Subpart EEE by conducting a compre-
hensive performance test and submitting a Notifica-
tion of Compliance, the requirements of this sub-
chapter do not apply, except that the executive
director may apply the provisions of this subchapter,
on a case-by-case basis, and require a permitiee or
an applicant to submit information in order to
establish permit conditions under §305.127(1)(B){ii)
or (4)(A) of this title (relating to Conditions To Be
Determined for Individual Permits).

Source: The provisions of this §305.371 adopted to be effective
Tuly 29, 1992, 17 TexReg 5016; amended to be effective November
18, 2001, 26 TexReg 9123.

§ 305.572. Permit and Trial Burn Require-
ments

(a) The following regulations contained in 40 Code
of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 270 are adopted
by reference, as amended and adopted in the CFR
through December 11, 1995 (see 60 FedReg 63417):

(1) §270.66(b)—Permit Operating Periods for New
Boilers and Industrial Furnaces, except that any
permit amendment or modification shall proceed
according to the applicable requirements of Sub-
chapter D of this chapter (relating to Arnendments,
Modifications, Renewals, Transfers, Corrections, Re-
vocation, and Suspension of Permits);

(2) §270.66{(c)}—Requirements for Trial Burn Plans;

(3) 8§270.66(d)—Trial Burn Procedures, except
§270.66(d)3), and except that all required submis-
sions must be certified on behalf of the applicant by
the signature of a person authorized pursuant to
§305.44 of this title (relating to Signatories to Appli-
cations);

{4) 8270.66{e)}—Special Procedures for DRE Trial
Burns; and

(5) 8270.66(D-—Determinations Based on Trial
Burn.

(b) With regard to trial burn notice procedures,
the chief clerk shall send notice to the state senator
and representative who represent the area in which
the facility is or will be located, and to the persons
listed in §39.13 of this title (relating to Mailed
Notice) announcing the scheduled commencement
and completion dates for the trial burn. The notice
shall meet the requirements of 40 Code of Federal
Regulations §270.66(d)(3)i)-(ii) as amended through
December 11, 19953, at 60 FedReg 63417. The appli-
cant may not commence the trial burn until after the
chief clerk has issued such notice. This paragraph
applies to initial trial burns and all other trial burns
except those that are to be conducted within 180
days after permit modification covering the trial
burn.
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CONSOLIDATED PERMITS

Source: The provisions of this §305.572 adopted to be effective
July 29, 1992, 17 TexReg 3014; amended to be effective November
20, 1996, 21 TexReg 10982; amended to be effective August 8, 1999,
24 TexReg 5879

§ 303.573. Interim Status and Trial Burn Re-
quirements

(a) For the purpose of determining feasibility of
compliance with the performance standards of 40
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) §8266.104 through
266.107 and of determining adequate operating con-
ditions under 40 CFR 8266.103 and §335.224 of this
title (relating to Additional Interim Status Standards
for Burners), applicants owning or operating exist-
ing boilers or industrial furnaces operated under the
interim status standards of 40 CFR §266.103 and
§335.224 of this title (relating to Additional Interim
Status Standards for Burners) must either prepare
and submit a trial burn plan for approval by the
executive director and perform a trial burn in accor-
dance with the approved trial burn plan and in
accordance with 40 CFR §270.66 and §305.572 of
this title (relating to Permit and Trial Burn Require-
ments) or submit other information as specified in
40 CFR §270.22(a){6). The chief clerk shall provide
notice of the executive director’s intention to ap-
prove the trial burn, in accordance with the timing
and distribution requirements of §303.572(b) of this
title (relating to Determining Feasibility of Compli-
ance and Adequate Operating Conditions). The con-
tents of the notice must include: the name and
telephone number of a contact person at the facility;
the name and telephone number of a contact office
at the permitting agency; the location where the trial
burn plan and any supporting documents can be
reviewed and copied; and a schedule of the activities
that are required prior to permit issuance, including

30 TAC § 305.573

the anticipated time schedule for approval of the
plan and the time period during which the trial burn
would be conducted. Applicants who submit a trial
burn plan and receive approval before submission of
the part B permit application must complete the
trial burn and submit the results specified in 40 CFR
§270.66(f) with the Part B permit application. If
completion of this process conflicts with the date set
for submission of the Part B application, the appli-
cant must contact the executive director to establish
a later date for submission of the Part B application
or the trial burn results. If the applicant submits a
trial burn for approval by the executive director with
Part B of the permit application, the approved irial
burn must be conducted and the results submitted
within a time period prior to permit issuance to be
specified by the executive director.

(b) Owners and operators who have obtained
approval of trial burn plans pursuant to 40 CFR
§270.66 prior to the effective date of this section may
request executive director approval of the trial burn
plan and the executive director may approve the
trial burn plan, whether or not the trial burn has
been conducted. If the executive director does not
approve the trial burn plan, then the owner or
operator must prepare and submit a trial burn plan
and receive approval from the executive director,
and then perform a trial burn in accordance with
the approved trial burn plan and in accordance with
40 CFR §270.66 and §305.572 of this title (relating
to Permit and Trial Burn Requirements) or submit
other information as specified in 40 CFR §270.
22(a)(6).

Source: The provisions of this §305.573 adopted to be effective

July 29, 1992, 17 TexReg 5016; amended to be effective August 8,
1999, 24 TexReg 5869
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